’ M)
’ Yucaipa Valley Water District
W

Notice and Agenda of a Board Workshop
Tuesday, November 13, 2018 at 4:00 p.m.

MEETING LOCATION: District Administration Building
12770 Second Street, Yucaipa

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD: Director Chris Mann, Division 1
Director Bruce Granlund, Division 2
Director Jay Bogh, Division 3
Director Lonni Granlund, Division 4
Director Tom Shalhoub, Division 5

VL.

Call to Order

Public Comments At this time, members of the public may address the Board of Directors on matters within its
jurisdiction; however, no action or significant discussion may take place on any item not on the meeting agenda.

Staff Report
Presentations

A. Overview of the Audited Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year Ending on June 30,
2018 [Workshop Memorandum No. 18-245 - Page 8 of 166]

B. Overview of the GASB 75 Compliance — Actuarial Report [\Workshop Memorandum No. 18-
246 - Page 9 of 166]

Capital Improvement Projects

A. Status Report on the Construction of the Replacement of Drinking Water Pipelines on
Douglas Street, Cornell Drive, Auburn Avenue, Citibank / Yucaipa Boulevard and Oak Glen
Road [Workshop Memorandum No. 18-247 - Page 20 of 166]

B. Status Report on the Construction of an 8-Inch Sewer Mainline in Yucaipa Boulevard
[Workshop Memorandum No. 18-248 - Page 24 of 166]

Administrative Items

A. Presentation of the Unaudited Financial Report for the Period Ending on October 31, 2018
[Workshop Memorandum No. 18-249 - Page 27 of 166]

B. Review of the Updated Personnel Manual for the Yucaipa Valley Water District [\Workshop
Memorandum No. 18-250 - Page 52 of 166]

Any person who requires accommodation to participate in this meeting should contact the District office at (909) 797-5117, at least
48 hours prior to the meeting to request a disability-related modification or accommodation.

Materials that are provided to the Board of Directors after the meeting packet is compiled and distributed will be made available
for public review during normal business hours at the District office located at 12770 Second Street, Yucaipa. Meeting materials
are also available on the District’'s website at www.yvwd.dst.ca.us

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 1 of 166


http://www.yvwd.dst.ca.us/

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop Page 2

VIL.

VIIL.

C.

D.

Ratification of the Issuance of a Class Il Non-Significant Industrial User Discharge Permit
to Skat-Trak Performance Products - Permit No. CP-003-03 [\Workshop Memorandum No.
18-251 - Page 134 of 166]

Overview of Required Documents for a State Revolving Fund Loan for the Calimesa
Recycled Water Pipeline Project [Workshop Memorandum No. 18-252 - Page 156 of 166]

Director Comments
Announcements

ST TITOomMmmMmOoDOm>

November 20, 2018 at 6:00 p.m. - Regular Board Meeting
November 27, 2018 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop
December 4, 2018 at 6:00 p.m. - Regular Board Meeting
December 11, 2018 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop
December 18, 2018 at 6:00 p.m. - Regular Board Meeting

December25-2018-at4:00-p-m—Board Woerkshop Cancelad

January-1,-2019-at 6:00-p-m-—RegularBeoard-Meeting Canceled
January 8, 2019 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop

January 15, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. - Regular Board Meeting
January 29, 2019 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop

Closed Session

A

Conference with Real Property Negotiator(s) - Government Code 54956.8
Property: Assessor’s Parcel Numbers: 413-380-001 - 009, and 013
Agency Negotiator: Joseph Zoba, General Manager

Negotiating Parties: Johnson Brothers Partnership

Under Negotiation: Terms of Payment and Price

Conference with Real Property Negotiator(s) - Government Code 54956.8

Property: Assessor’s Parcel Number(s): 294-121-24, 25 / 473-020-006, 008, 029, 043
Agency Negotiator: Joseph Zoba, General Manager

Negotiating Parties: Joanna Averett

Under Negotiation: Terms of Payment and Price

Conference with Legal Counsel--Existing Litigation - Government Code 54956.9(d)
YVWD vs Hillcrest Mobile Home Park
San Bernardino Superior Court Case No. CIVDS 1808441

Adjournment

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 2 of 166



Staff Report

2%
' Yucaipa Valley Water District
W

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 3 of 166



THE SACRAMENTO BEE

WATER & DROUGHT

Did gas, homeless people and sick
kids kill California’s water bond?

0 BY RYAN SABALOW, LEWIS GRISWOLD AND BRYAN ANDERSON
rsabalow@sacbee.com
Movember 08, 2018

"\.r: G
Updated November 08, 2018 10:20 AM

California voters on Tuesday rejected a water bond for the first time in almost 30 years,
disregarding pleas from its backers that the money would fix crumbling infrastructure,
bring clean drinking water to disadvantaged communities and kick-start badly needed
environmental restoration projects.

As of Thursday’s tally, 54 percent of voters had rejected the $8.9 billion Proposition 3 that
promised funds to help repair Oroville Dam and aid Central Valley farmers facing
groundwater problems, among a list of other expenditures.

The failure is notable: The last time voters rejected a water bond was 1990. Since then,
nine water bond measures have passed.

So why did this bond campaign go down in flames, when so many others in the drought-
prone state have sailed through?

“I have no idea,” said Jerry Meral, the veteran water-policy advocate who drafted the
initiative. “If I did, we would have fixed it before the election was happening. It really is
kind of a mystery because it really was much like previous water bonds: safe drinking
water, water supply and environmental elements and so on. It’s hard to figure out.”

Foes called Proposition 3 a grab bag of special interest projects for which farmers and
water users should be paying - not taxpayers. With its nearly $9 billion price tag,
Proposition 3 was the largest bond measure on the ballot in decades.

Unlike most other water bonds, Proposition 3 funds wouldn’t have been allocated through
the state budgeting process. Instead, money would have been paid as grants directly to
the farms and other groups that would have spent it. That troubled Proposition 3’s critics
who said it lacked accountability.

“The measure reflected a classic pay-to-play bond measure scheme,” the Sierra Club of
California said Wednesday in a statement. “To attract wealthy investors ... the bond’s
developers included in the measure billions of dollars worth of projects that would allow

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 4 of 166



those investors to use taxpayer funds for projects they would otherwise have to pay for
themselves.”

Those arguments might have been too complex for the average voter to grasp, said
University of California San Diego political scientist Thad Kousser.

Instead, Kousser said he suspects the reason the bond failed was because voters in 2014
and in June passed water-related bonds.

Plus, voters this election agreed to keep higher gas taxes, and they also passed bonds for
children hospitals, homeless people and affordable housing.

“I think there was bond fatigue here,” Kousser said. “And let’s face it, a dam isn’t as
sympathetic as a veteran, a sick child and a homeless person. .... When voters are voting
to continue to tax themselves for gas use, voting for three other bonds, and then they see
the big price tag of this, I think voters just balked at that price tag.”

Asked Wednesday why he thought the bond failed, Gov. Jerry Brown offered a similar
assessment.

“Hard to say,” Brown said. “It might be there was so many bonds.”

Brown, who championed the 2014 Proposition 1 water bond, declined to say how he voted
on the initiative.

Meral said it didn’t help that at least 15 editorial boards at the state’s newspapers,
including The Sacramento Bee, wrote editorials that condemned the bond.

Money may have also been a factor. Farming groups and others had donated nearly $5
million to its campaign war chest, but in an email to bond supporters, Meral said the
campaign lacked money to buy TV ads, and “memory of the drought has faded, so water
was not considered a high priority.”

The bond would have allocated $750 million to repair the Friant-Kern Canal in the eastern
San Joaquin Valley, which is sinking because farmers in the area have pumped so much
groundwater it’s caused the region’s floor to collapse several feet. The failing canal is
losing its ability to supply water to more than 300,000 acres of crops. The bond also
would have paid more than $200 million for repairs and other work associated with the
Oroville Dam crisis in 2017.

Proposition 3 also would have provided more than $1 billion to help farmers comply with
pending groundwater regulations. Around $3 billion would have gone to water quality
improvements and fish and wildlife habitat projects across the state. Another $500
million would have gone to flood protection. Proposition 3 would have provided $500
million to clean up drinking water.

The loss of the drinking-water funds leaves a continuing shortage for poor communities
with unsafe water supplies, especially since the state legislature this summer failed to

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 5 of 166


https://www.sacbee.com/news/state/california/water-and-drought/www.sacbee.com

approve a tax that would have helped clean up contamination, said Meral, Proposition 3’s
author.

“They haven’t solved safe drinking water,” Meral said.

A 2018 McClatchy investigation found that 360,000 Californians are served by water
systems that violate state standards for nitrates, arsenic, uranium and other pollutants.

Jason Phillips, CEO of the Friant Water Authority said the bond’s failure affects more
than the farmers who get water from the Friant-Kern Canal. Proposition 3’s defeat also
hurts several disadvantaged communities in the area, he said.

“Not having this funding is going to bring (on) the water crisis that is pending a lot faster,”
he said.

Phillips’ water district may end up asking the federal government to fund the canal repairs
because state lawmakers are unlikely to pay, he said.

Jay Ziegler of the Nature Conservancy, which supported the bond, said the loss of $3
billion that the initiative would have set aside for water quality and habitat projects was a
blow to California’s ecosystem restoration goals.

“I think there’s a very real and immediate impact that comes with this,” Ziegler said.

Source: https://www.sacbee.com/news/state/california/water-and-drought/article221317605.htm|

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 6 of 166


https://www.sacbee.com/news/state/california/water-and-drought/article221317605.html

Presentations

%)
’ Yucaipa Valley Water District

L T\ 4

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 7 of 166



29D
' Yucaipa Valley Water District ~ Workshop Memorandum 18-245
W

Date: November 13, 2018
From: Allison M. Edmisten, Chief Financial Officer
Subject: Overview of the Audited Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year Ending on

June 30, 2018

The certified public accounting firm of Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Company, LLP (VTD) has completed
the financial audit for the fiscal year ending on June 30, 2018.

A representative from VTD will attend the board workshop to provide an overview of the audited
financial documents and answer questions about the report.

Total Assets by District Enterprise
$160,000,000

$140,000.000 == \\later Assets

I = Sewer Assets
$120,000,000 +——— e====Recyled Water Assets
$100,000,000 /
$80,000,000 / /
$60,000,000 / /7\J
$40,000,000 /
$20,000,000 / / —

$0 T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T 1
O «w N MO I IO O 0 O O «— N MO I IV O 0O O «— AN M T U © M~ ©
DD O OO0 OO0 OO0 000 «—“ ™« « T OT OT T
DO OO0 00000 0 0 0O 0 O O O O 0O O OO OO OO O O o o
T DT T T T T T o od dada N AN AN N N AN AN AN AN AN ANANANANANANA
~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~
™ Y Y Y YT YT YT YT YT YT YT YT YT YT YT YT YT YT YT YT YT YT YT YT YT YT YT YT v
O O O O O O O O O O 0O 0O O 0O 0O OO0 OO0 OO OO O O O O oo
~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~
™ Y Y Y YT YT YT YT YT YT YT YT YT YT YT YT YT YT YT YT YT YT YT YT YT YT OYT YT v
O O O O O O O O O O 0O 0O 0O O 0O 00O OoOoOOoOOoOOoOo o oo oo

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 8 of 166



P\

' Yucaipa Valley Water District  Workshop Memorandum 18-246
W

Date: November 13, 2018

Prepared By: Allison M. Edmisten, Chief Financial Officer

Subject: Overview of the GASB 75 Compliance — Actuarial Report

On July 17, 2018 [DM 18-099], the Board authorized District staff to coordinate the preparation of
the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 75 Compliance Report (“Statement”) with
Dempsey, Filliger & Associates. Many local governments offer retiree medical benefits that are
now subject to new requirements through this statement. If material, the Net OPEB Liability will
be reported on the face of the Statement of Net Position, similar to the Net Pension Liability
recently added through GASB 68. If the liability is immaterial, it will not be included on the financial
statements.

The primary objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by state
and local governments for postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB). This Statement
establishes standards for recognizing and measuring liabilities, deferred outflows of resources,
deferred inflows of resources, and expenses.

District staff received the completed actuarial report on October 22, 2018 (attached). The Net
OPEB Liability is $789,019. Due to the fact this amount is only 2.9% of our annual operating
budget, it is immaterial and will not be stated on the audited financial statements. This liability will
be calculated and reviewed annually at the time of the audit. Every 3 to 5 years, the District will
have an actuarial firm compile a formal report to ensure there are no significant changes to the
liability and to validate the District staff calculations. If the OPEB liability becomes material in the
future, it will be stated on the audited financial statements and the appropriate note disclosures
will be included. This meets the requirements as stated in GASB 75.

Financial Consideration

The cost of the actuarial report was $1,875 and was approved by the Board on July 17, 2018.

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 9 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-246 Page 2 of 10

(A

Alternative Measurement Method Report
for Yucaipa Valley Water District

Valuation Date: July 1, 2017 (June 30, 2017)
Measurement Period: July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017
Reporting Period: July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018

QOctober 19, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 10 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-246 Page 3 of 10

Yucaipa Valley Water District
Alternative Measurement Method

Net OPEB Liability

The District's Net OPEB Liability was measured as of June 30, 2017 and the Total OPEB Liability used to
calculate the Net OPEB Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2017 (June 30,
2017). Standard actuarial update procedures were used to project/discount from valuation to
measurement dates.

Actuarial assumptions. The total OPEB liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions,
applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Salary increases 3.00 percent

Medical cost trend rate 6.00 percent for 2017; 5.00 percent for 2018 and later
years

Employer cap adjustment N/A

Age adjustment factor 4.00 percent

Percent married 50 percent

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Employee Mortality Table for Males or
Females, as appropriate, without projection. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2014
Health Annuitant Mortality Table for Males or Females, as appropriate, without projection.

Discount rate. GASB 75 requires a discount rate that reflects the following:

a) The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments — to the extent that the OPEB
plan’s fiduciary net position (if any) is projected to be sufficient to make projected benefit
payments and assets are expected to be invested using a strategy to achieve that return;

b} Avyield or index rate for 20-year, tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average
rating of AA/Aa or higher — to the extent that the conditions in (a) are not met.

To determine a resulting single (blended) rate, the amount of the plan’s projected fiduciary net position (if
any) and the amount of projected benefit payments is compared in each period of projected benefit
payments. The discount rate used to measure the District's Total OPEB liability is based on these
requirements and the following information:

Long-Term
Expected Return of Municipal Bond 20-
Plan Investments Year High Grade Discount
Reporting Date Measurement Date (if any) Rate Index Rate
June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 4.00% 3.13% 3.13%
—' 1 10/18/2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 11 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-246 Page 4 of 10

Yucaipa Valley Water District
Alternative Measurement Method

The components of the net OPEB liability are as follows:

Total OPEB liability 789,019
Plan fiduciary net position 0
Net OPEB liability (asset) $789,019
Measurement date June 30, 2017
Reporting date June 30, 2018
Actives Retirees Total
Employer present value of future benefits 717,389 177,438 894,827
Employer Total OPEB Liability 611,581 177,438 789,019
Employer Normal Cost 12,441 0 12,441

2 10/19/2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 12 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-246 Page 5 of 10

Yucaipa Valley Water District
Alternative Measurement Method

Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liabifity

Total OPEB Liability

Service Cost 12,456
Interest 24,532
Changes of benefit terms 0
Difference between expected and actual experience 0
Changes of assumptions 0
Expected Benefit payments’ (62,988)
Net change in total OPEB liability (26,000)
Total OPEB liability — beginning {a) $815,019
Total OPEB liability — ending (b) $789,019
Plan fiduciary net position

Expected Contributions — employer’ 62,988
Net investment income 0
Expected Benefit payments’ (62,988)
Administrative expense (0)
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 0
Plan fiduciary net position — beginning (¢) $0
Plan fiduciary net position — ending (d) $0
Net OPEB liability — beginning {c) — {a) $815,019
Net OPEB liability — ending {d) — {b) $789,019

T Amount includes implicit subsidy associated with benefits paid.

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability fo changes in the discount rate. The following presents the net OPEB
liability, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-
percentage point lower {2.13 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (4.13 percent) than the current
discount rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(2.13%) (3.13%) (4.13%)
Net OPEB liability (asset) 833,474 789,019 746,494

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost frend rates. The following presents
the net OPEB liability, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare
cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower (5.00 percent decreasing to 4.00 percent) or 1-
percentage-point higher (7.00 percent decreasing to 6.00 percent) than the current healthcare cost trend

rates:
1% Decrease Trend Rate 1% Increase
(5.00% decreasing (6.00% decreasing (7.00% decreasing to
to 4.00%) To 5.00%) 6.00%)
Net OPEB liability (asset) 737,684 789,019 845,992
d-_" ‘ 3 10/19/2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 13 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-246 Page 6 of 10

Yucaipa Valley Water District
Alternative Measurement Method

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

Additions
Expected Employer contributions? 62,988
Investment income:
Net increase in fair value of investments C
Total additions 62,088
Deductions
Trustee fees 0
Administrative expense 0
Expected Benefit payments? 62,988
Total deductions 62,988
Net increase in net position 0
Net position restricted for postemployment benefits other than
pensions
Beginning of year $0
End of year $0

2Includes $46,240 of pay-as-you-go contributions made from sources outside of trust, plus an implicit subsidy
amount of $16,748.

4 10/19/2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 14 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-246

Page 7 of 10

Yucaipa Valley Water District
Alternative Measurement Method

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

For the reporting year ended June 30, 2018, the District's deferred outflows of resources and deferred

inflows of resources to OPEB from the following sources are:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience3# 0 0
Changes in assumptions or other inputs®+ 0 0
Differences between projected and actual return 0 0
investments34
Total $0° $0

3 Measured at June 30, 2017;

4 See Schedule of Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources for additional information;

5Does not include District contributions after the measurement date, which will be recognized as a
reduction of the Net OPEB Liability in the year ending June 30, 2019.

Amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources will be recognized in OPEB

expense as follows:

Year ended June 30: Deferred Qutflows of Resources

Deferred Inflows
of Resources

2019

0]

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028

2029

2030

2031

2032

2033

2034

2035

2036

2037

2038

OI0IQ|IO0| 0|0 0|00 |0|o|o|oe|o (o

O0|IQ|O(0|00 0|00 |0|0|0|0o|c (o Qo

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 15 of 166

10/19/2018



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-246 Page 8 of 10

Yucaipa Valley Water District
Alternative Measurement Method

Net OPEB Expense
The District's Net OPEB expense was $36,988.

Net OPEB Liability - beginning (a) $815,019
Net OPEB Liability — ending (b) $780,019
Change in Net OPEB Liability [(b)-(a)] (26,000)
Change in Deferred Outflows 0
Change in Deferred Inflows 0
Employer Contributions 62,988
Net OPEB Expense $36,988
Service Cost 12,456
Interest Cost 24,532
Expected Return on Assets 0
Changes of benefit terms 0
Recognition of Deferred Outflows and Inflows
Differences between expected and actual experience 0
Changes of assumptions 0
Differences between projected and actual investments 0
Total 0
Net OPEB Expense $36,988

6 10/19/2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 16 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-246 Page 9 of 10

Yucaipa Valley Water District
Alternative Measurement Method

Plan Description

Plan administration. The District sponsors healthcare coverage under the California Public Employees
Medical and Hospital Care Act ("PEMHCA"), commonly referred to as PERS Health. PEMHCA provides
health insurance through a variety of Health Maintenance Organization (HMO) and Preferred Provider
Organization {(PPO) options.

Benefits provided. The District pays the retired employee’s medical premium until the age of 65, with the
requirement that the employee is vested with ten (10) years of regular, uninterrupted service and is at
least 55 years of age at retirement. Employees hired after July 1, 1999 are not eligible for any retiree
medical benefits. The District also pays the CalPERS PEMHCA administrative fee, or 0.33% of premium
{0.23% for 2018/19). The District does not offer vision, dental, or life insurance benefits for retirees.

Pilan membership. At July 1, 2017, membership consisted of the following:

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 4
Active plan members 18

Contributions. The District currently finances benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis.

7 10/19/2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 17 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-246 Page 10 of 10

Yucaipa Valley Water District
Alternative Measurement Method

Actuarial Certification

The results set forth in this supplement are based on our actuarial valuation of the health and welfare
benefit plans of the Yucaipa Valley Water District as of July 1, 2017 (June 30, 2017).

The valuation was performed in accordance with generally accepted actuarial principles and practices.
We relied on census data for active employees and retirees provided to us by the District. We also made
use of claims, premium, expense, and enrollment data, and copies of relevant sections of healthcare
documents provided to us by the District, and (when applicable) trust statements prepared by the trustee
and provided to us by the District.

The assumptions used in performing the valuation, as summarized in this report, and the results based
thereupon, represent our best estimate of the actuarial costs of the program under GASB 74 and GASB
75, and the existing and proposed Actuarial Standards of Practice for measuring post-retirement
healthcare benefits.

The undersigned actuary meets the Qualification Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries to

render the actuarial opinion contained in this report.

Certified by:

s T

Carlos Diaz, ASA, EA, MAAA
Actuary

8 10/19/2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 18 of 166



Capital Improvement Projects

%)
’ Yucaipa Valley Water District

L T\ 4

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 19 of 166



'\
' Yucaipa Valley Water District  Workshop Memorandum 18-247
W

Date: November 13, 2018
Prepared By: Matthew Porras, Implementation Manager
Subject: Status Report on the Construction of the Replacement of Drinking Water

Pipelines on Douglas Street, Cornell Drive, Auburn Avenue, Citibank / Yucaipa
Boulevard and Oak Glen Road

On, June 5, 2018 the Board of Directors
authorized District staff to solicit bids for PROJECT
the construction of drinking water AT LOCATIONS

pipelines on Douglas Street, Cornell ||sq4, PROJECT ’

Drive, Auburn Avenue, Citibank / Yucaipa LOCATIONS .
Blvd and Oak Glen Road. The Project \%’m’& e T “E:\;%f’ig
includes the construction of 411 linear i D . _
feet of 6-inch ductile iron pipe in the el e CEEEERE e
Citibank / Yucaipa Blvd area and 3,409 \ v ‘>/ LR . .
linear feet of 8-inch ductile iron pipe on D cmwgy axsn o e 3 3 B
Auburn Avenue, Cornell Drive, Douglas REDLANDS &> =) fuickiea |citeR] ) =
Street and Oak Glen Road. N

o BEOND COUTY . — - e
On July 25, 2018 the District received 4 = - o
bids for the Drinking Water pipeline 77N CALIMESA
replacement project as discussed at the L I (
regular Board Workshop on July 31, 2018
[WM 18-192].

On August 7, 2018, the Board of Directors awarded a construction contract to Borden Excavating
[DM 18-114]. Borden Excavating started work on November 5, 2018 and is scheduled to be
completed January 7,2018. The current phasing will include the Citi-Bank segment first, the Oak
Glen Road crossing second, and the residential subdivision third.

The purpose of this item is informational, discussing the progress of the project.

Financial Consideration

The engineers estimate for this project was $1,100,000. This project was included in the 2018-
19 approved Capital Improvement Projects Budget.

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 20 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-247 Page 2 of 4

Pipeline Project Bid Results

Borden Excavating $1,079,000

Weka $1,268,643

Downing Construction $1,359,120

TK Construction $1,449,880

Engineers Estimate $1,100,000

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 21 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-247 Page 3 of 4

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 22 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-247 Page 4 of 4

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 23 of 166




P 2
' Yucaipa Valley Water District  Workshop Memorandum 18-248
W

Date: November 13, 2018

Prepared By: Matthew Porras, Implementation Manager

Subject: Status Report on the Construction of an 8-Inch Sewer Mainline in Yucaipa
Boulevard

On October 4, 2016, the Board of Directors
authorized the General Manager to execute
an Agreement between The City of Yucaipa CRAFTON
and The Yucaipa Valley Water District for -
Yucaipa Boulevard Sewer Utility [Director &,
Memorandum No. 16-094]. oy,

On November 14, 2017, the Board of /.
Directors authorized the District staff to solicit il
bids for the construction of Yucaipa Boulevard \&
Sewer from Hampton Road to 18th Street
[Workshop Memorandum No. 17-163]. The || "EPHNPS
project includes the construction of LIVE o
approximately 2,550 linear feet of 8-inch ||« s mumemi. — - — — 2=
Vitrified Clay Pipe, including manholes, N
laterals and appurtenances. The sewer main I.C;\, ~  CALIMESA
project is categorically exempt from ||/ (
environmental review in accordance with the

BRYANT ST.

CALIFORNIA ST.

PROJECT o
LOCATION &
YUCAIPA oF /
2 — i _00

) viciiea (cregk] 3~ - 1

AVE L

California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15301(C).

As discussed in a Board Workshop on February 13, 2018, the District received 6 bids for the
pipeline project. Weka, Inc. was the low bidder in the amount of $526,193.00. On February 20,
2018 at a regular Board Meeting [Director Memorandum 18-035] the Board of Directors awarded
a construction contract with Weka, Inc. to complete the project. The contractor is scheduled to
start work in the month of November 2018 and is scheduled to complete within 60 working days
on the project.

The sewer main project is categorically exempt from environmental review in accordance with the
California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15301(C).

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 24 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-248 Page 2 of 2

Yucaipa Boulevard Sewer Project— Bid Results

$1,094,500

$859,585

Engineer’s Estimate $613,422 $622,222

Weka, Inc. Pacific West Borden Engineering  Christensen Brothers TBU Fischer
Underground

Financial Consideration

Funding for this project will be from Sewer Fund, Infrastructure Reserves [GL Account #03-
10311]. This project was not included in the 2017-18 budget, however, there is sufficient funding
available in the reserve fund listed above.

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 25 of 166



Administrative Items

" 2 )
' Yucaipa Valley Water District
W

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 26 of 166



'\ )

’ Yucaipa Valley Water Distict  Workshop Memorandum 18-249
W

Date:

From:

Subject:

November 13, 2018

Allison M. Edmisten, Chief Financial Officer
Peggy Little, Administrative Supervisor

Presentation of the Unaudited Financial Report for the Period Ending on October
31, 2018

The following unaudited financial report has been prepared by the Administrative Department for
your review. The report has been divided into five sections to clearly disseminate information

pertaining to the financial status of the District.
information has not been audited.

Please remember that the following financial

Cash Fund Balance and Cash Flow Reports
[Detailed information can be found on page 7 to 8 of 25]

The Cash Fund Balance Report provides a summary of how the total amount of funds maintained

by financial institutions is distributed throughout the enterprise and non-enterprise funds of the
District. A summary of the report is as follows:

Fund Source Operating Funds | Restricted Funds Total Funds
Water Division $ 4,713,096.57 | $§ (1,726,178.70) | $ 2,986,917.87
Sewer Division $ 10,404,818.25| § (6,126,059.31) | $ 4,278,758.94
Recycled Water Division | $ 541,391.69 | $ 645,090.12 | $ 1,186,481.81

Total | $ 15,659,306.51 | $ (7,207,147.89) | $ 8,452,158.62
Fund Balance
$15,000,000
$5,000,000
SO
R - - - b e R e T S R R A
($10,000,000)
= Drinking Water Fund - Operating Drinking Water Fund - Restricted
e Sewer Fund - Operating Sewer Fund - Restricted
e Recycled Water Fund - Operating Recycled Water Fund - Restricted

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 27 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-249 Page 2 of 25

Cash Position
$20,000,000

$18,000,000
$16,000,000
$14,000,000

$12,000,000
$10,000,000
$8,000,000

$6,000,000
$4,000,000
$2,000,000

2016-17 2017-18 emmm——?018-19

Most of the funds reflected in the Cash Fund Balance Report are designated for specific purposes
and are therefore restricted, either by law or by District policy.

The Cash Flow Report provides a list of the debt service payment due dates and amounts as well
as the cash flow requirements for debt service for each month of the fiscal year.

Cash Disbursement Report
[Detailed information can be found on pages 9 to 14 of 25]

The cash disbursement report lists each check and electronic payment processed during the
month of October 2018. All payments are reviewed by District staff for accuracy and
completeness, checks are usually signed by the General Manager and one Director, but may be
signed by two Directors. The Chief Financial Officer will make any check, payment, invoice or
supporting documentation available for review to any board member upon request.

' Number Processed Amount Processed

Checks 302 $ 1,098,131.63
Electronic Payments 11 $ 339,769.25
Total 313 $ 1,437,900.88
200 Number of Payments Processed s S Amt of Payments Processed
300 /\/ $6
200 §$4
100 §$2
0 S
3955838535535 3288385885535
ﬂ2$O§Q££§<§3 ﬁ{%O%Q—\u_§<§ﬁ
2016-17 2017-18 emmm——?(18-19 2016-17 2017-18 emmmm—?018-19

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 28 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-249 Page 3 of 25

Financial Account Information

The District currently deposits all revenue received into the Deposit Checking account. The
General Checking account is used as a sole processing account for all District checks and
electronic payroll. The Investment Checking account is used for the purchase and redemption of
US treasury notes and bills and for the transfer of LAIF funds. The US treasury notes and bills
are booked at cost.

The LAIF investment account is a pooled money account administered by the State of California.
Additional information on the LAIF account is provided below in the investment summary report.

Monthly Revenue Allocation:

Funding Source Total

Utility Bill Payments $ 2,126,961.28
Deposits $ 0.00
Misc. Water Related Activities $ 115,772.65
Misc. Sewer Related Activities $ 46,179.97
Misc. Recycled Related Activities $ 18,076.82

Total | $ 2,306,990.72

Monthly Revenue Allocation

$2,700,000
$2,400,000
$2,100,000
$1,800,000
$1,500,000
$1,200,000
$900,000
$600,000
$300,000

S_ — —

Utility Bill Payments Deposits Misc Water Misc Sewer Misc Recycled

W 2016-17 October 2017-18 October 2018-19 October

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 29 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-249 Page 4 of 25

Summary of Utility Bill Payments:

Payment Method Number of % of Total

Payments Received
Mail/Counter 5,915 35.78%
Payment Center 177 1.07%
Credit Card 1,133 6.85%
Electronic Rapid Pay 4,203 25.42%
Web Site 1,980 11.98%
ACH Auto Pay 3,123 18.89%
Total 16,531 100.00%

Type of Payments

Total

ACH Auto Pay

I
Web Site -
Electronic/ Rapid Pay
I
Credit Card -
Payment Center I
Mail/Counter
I
I I S R L

2018-19 October 2017-18 October W 2016-17 October

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 30 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-249 Page 5 of 25

Summary of Property Tax Revenue:

Current Month  Year-to-Date Budget Amount Percentage
Property Taxes | $ 0] $ 3,519,000 0%

Property Taxes - Actual vs. Allocation
$4,000,000
$3,500,000
$3,000,000
$2,500,000
$2,000,000
$1,500,000
$1,000,000

$500,000
S_

$3,132,456.68
$3,519,000.00

~
0
N
(o))
'\x
—
()]
—
(32}
wr

$2,988,634.38

N
Qo
<
[te)
o
(o))
~
=
[39)
v

|
wr

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

M Actual Allocation/Budget

Investment Summary
[Detailed information can be found on pages 15 to 16 of 25]

The investment summary report illustrates the District's investments in US treasury notes and bills
in addition to the investments held by the Local Agency Investment Fund or LAIF. The yields for
the treasury notes and bills are provided for each individual transaction. The historical annual
yield for funds invested with LAIF is also provided.

Separate pooled money investment reports prepared by the State of California are maintained by
the District and available for review.

Investment Policy Disclosure - The District is currently compliant with the portfolio of its Investment
Policy and State law. The District is using Sandy Gage with Merrill Lynch Wealth Management
(Bank of America Corporation) for Treasury investments. The District expects to meet its
expenditure requirements for the next six months.

Fiscal Year 2018-19 Detail Budget Status
[Detailed information can be found on pages 17 to 25 of 25]

The revenue and expense budget status for the 2018-19 Fiscal Year is provided for your review.

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 31 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-249 Page 6 of 25

Questions or Comments

If you have any questions about a particular budget account, please do not hesitate to contact the
Chief Financial Officer directly. If you need additional information, the members of the
Administrative Department would be happy to provide you with any detailed information you may
desire.

Summary of Revenue Budget
As of October 31, 2018 (30% of Budget Cycle)

Division Current Month Year-to-Date Budget Amount Percentage
Water $ 1,007,972 §$ 3,642,194 § 14,150,445 25.74%
Sewer $ 978,972 $ 3,262,890 $ 12,337,754 26.45%
Recycled Water $ 83,463 $ 259,301 § 1,293,270 20.05%

District Revenue $ 2,070,407 $ 7,164,385 $ 27,781,469 25.79%

Summary of Water Budget vs. Expenses
As of October 31, 2018 (30% of Budget Cycle)

Department Current Month Year-to-Date Budget Amount Percentage
Water Resources $ 278,025 $ 2,000,656 $ 5,274,337 37.93%
Public Works $ 183,213 $ 956,873 § 3,177,454 30.11%
Administration $ 288,251 $ 1,327,068 $ 3,403,916 38.99%
Long Term Debt $ - $ 1,718,806 $ 2,294,738 74.90%
Asset Acquisition 3 - 3 - $ - 0.00%

TOTAL $ 749,489 $ 6,003,403 $ 14,150,445 42.43%

Summary of Sewer Budget vs. Expenses
As of October 31, 2018 (30% of Budget Cycle)

Department Current Month Year-to-Date Budget Amount Percentage
Treatment $ 248,907 $ 1,240,964 $ 4,256,607 29.15%
Administration $ 231,480 $ 962,541 § 2,924,466 32.91%
Environmental Control § 68,825 $ 414,060 $ 1,322,963 31.30%
Long Term Debt $ - $ 2923669 $ 3,833,718 76.26%
Asset Acquisition $ - $ - $ - 0.00%

TOTAL $ 549,212 $ 5,541,234 $ 12,337,754 44.91%

Summary of Recycled Water Budget vs. Expenses

As of October 31, 2018 (30% of Budget Cycle)

Department Current Month Year-to-Date Budget Amount Percentage
Administration $ 134,723  $ 447,933 § 1,293,270 34.64%
TOTAL $ 134,723 $ 447,933 $ 1,293,270 34.64%

District Expenses $ 1,433,424 $ 11,992,570 $ 27,781,469 43.17%

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 32 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-249 Page 7 of 25
Cash Fund Balance Report - October 2018
B D ' Bala B
*ID 1 Construction Funds 02-10216 $ 293,145.85
*ID 2 Construction Funds 02-10217 $ 80,409.31
B |"FCC - Debt Service YYRWFF Phase | 02-10401 $ (4,957,139.07)
_'g *FCC - Future YYRWFF Phase Il & I 02-10403 $ 441,614.23
g *FCC - Recycled System 02-10410 & (831,281.86)
o |*FCC - Booster Pumping Plants 02-10411 $ 725,192.88
*FCC - Pipeline Facilities 02-10412 $ 183,789.63
*FCC - Water Storage Reservoirs 02-10413 $ 2,338,090.33
Depreciation Reserves 02-10310 $ 649,845.06
> Infrastructure Reserves 02-10311 $ 4,256,073.00
£ |Sustainability Fund 02-10313 $ 160,316.06
g Rate Stabilization Fund 02-10314 $ 500,209.14
8— Imported Water Fund - MUNI 02-10315 $ 850,981.55
Imported Water Fund - SGPWA 02-10316 $ 812,816.99
Operating Funds: $ (2,517,145.23)
Total Water Division $ 2,986,917.87
B D ' Bala B
*SRF Reserve Fund - Brineline 03-10218 $ 637,449.00
*SRF Reserve Fund - WISE 03-10219 $ 184,928.00
*SRF Reserve Fund - R 10.3 03-10220 $ 51,531.00
2 |"SRF Reserve Fund - Crow St 03-10221 $ 19,255.00
_'g *FCC - Debt Service WWTP Expansion & Upgrade 03-10405 § 2,065,218.54
g *FCC - Future WWTP Expansion 03-10407 $ 1,567,929.63
o |*FCC - Sewer Interceptors 03-10415 § (721,882.18)
*FCC - Lift Stations 03-10416 $ 386,658.01
*FCC - Effluent Disposal Fagilities 0310417  $ (1,557,186.02)
*FCC - Salt Mitigation Facilities 03-10418  $ (8,759,960.29)
- Project Fund - Encumbered 0310215 % 289,500.00
£ |Depreciation Reserves 03-10310 $ 3,963,209.51
g Infrastructure Reserves 03-10311 $ 5,477,966.64
OO_ Rate Stabilization Fund 03-10314 $ 1,464,394.90
Operating Funds: $ (790,252.80)
Total Wastewater Division $ 4,278,758.94
Re () ater D D 1 Bala =
2 |"'FCC - Recycled System 04-10410 § 75,585.67
_'g' *FCC - Booster Pumping Plants 04-10411 $ 13,048.41
% *FCC - Pipeline Facilities 04-10412 $ 279,680.96
i |*FCC - Water Storage Reservoirs 04-10413 $ 276,775.08
2 |Project Fund - Encumbered 04-10215  § -
% |Depreciation Reserves 04-10310 $ 38,828.01
g Infrastructure Reserves 04-10311 $ 282,492.31
O |Operating Funds: $ 220,071.37
Total Recycled Water Division $ 1,186,481.81
DISTRICT TOTAL $ 8,452,158.62

*=Restricted Funds

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 33 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-249

Page 8 of 25

Cash Flow Report for Fiscal Year 2018-19

Financial Obligations for Fiscal Year 2018-19

Term of
Due Date Fund Description Obligation Amount
9/1/2018 Water 2015A Bond Payment - YYRWFF 2015-2034 $ 1,718,806.25
9/10/2018 Sewer SRF Payment - WRWRF 2009-2028 $ 2,923,668.75
12/31/2018 Sewer SRF Payment - Yucaipa Regional Brineline 2013-2032 $ 649,273.50
3/1/2019 Water 2015A Bond Payment - YYRWFF 2015-2034 $ 575,931.25
3/31/2019 Sewer SRF Payment - Recycled Reservoir R-10.3 2014-2033 3 54,277.31
3/31/2019 Sewer SRF Payment - Desalinization at WRWRF 2014-2033 $ 185,251.30
3/31/2019 Sewer SRF Payment - Crow Street/Recycled Booster B-12.1 2016-2035 § 21,247 .48
Total $ 6,128,455.84
Payment Schedule and Cash Flow Requirements
for Fiscal Year 2018-19
$3,500,000
$3,000,000
$2,500,000 N\
$2,000,000 \
$1,500,000 / \
e / R
$500,000 \I
Z 3 3 3 3 2 3 3 3 3 3 3

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 34 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-249 Page 9 of 25
Check Register - October 2018

Check Date Check Number Name Check Amount
10/1/2018 32915 Atkinsaon, Andelson, Loya, Ruud 3 888.99
10/1/2018 32916 State Water Resources Contral % 110.00
10/1/2018 32917 ADS, LLC $ 4,275.00
10/1/2018 32918 Luke's Transmission Inc. 3 15.00
10/1/2018 32919 Ameripride Uniform Services $ 815.30
10/1/2018 32920 Balco Holdings Inc. $ 5,160.45
10/1/2018 32921 Bernell Hydraulics, Inc. $ 619.75
10/1/2018 32922 BSK Associates $ 415.00
10/1/2018 32923 CDW LLC $ 2,799.38
10/1/2018 32924 Crider Public Relations, Inc. $ 3,400.00
10/1/2018 32925 Environmental Systems Research $ 26,935.56
10/1/2018 32926 Evoqua Water Technologies LLC $ 1,223.88
10/1/2018 32927 Incode Division-Tyler Technolo $ 1,365.77
10/1/2018 32928 InfoSend, Inc. $ 3,747.32
10/1/2018 32929 Innerline Engineering $ 1,750.00
10/1/2018 32930 Nicholas C. Hendrickson $ 71.50
10/1/2018 32931 JB Paving & Engineering, Inc. $ 7,975.00
10/1/2018 32932 Raiset R. Santana and Adriana 3 41.50
10/1/2018 32933 MailFinance Inc. $ 353.07
10/1/2018 32934 Nagem, Inc. $ 1,188.64
10/1/2018 32935 NetComp Technolagies,Inc. 3 2,475.55
10/1/2018 32936 Pro-Pipe & Supply, Inc. $ 393.55
10/1/2018 32937 Antonio T. Paredes $ 27,500.00
10/1/2018 32938 SCCI, Inc. $ 3,300.00
10/1/2018 32939 SB CNTY-Treasurer-Tax $ 53.34
10/1/2018 32940 South Coast A.Q.M.D. $ 13,355.66
10/1/2018 32941 Assaciation of San Bernardino $ 140.00
10/1/2018 32942 Spectrum Business $ 1,834.00
10/1/2018 32943 Tattletale Portable Alarm Syst $ 3,105.00
10/1/2018 32944 The Gas Company $ 57.33
10/1/2018 32945 U.S. Telepacific Corp $ 2,652.10
10/1/2018 32946 Water Systems Consulting, Inc. $ 5,963.75
10/1/2018 32947 Water Systems Optimization Inc 3 4,000.00
10/1/2018 32948 Yucaipa Disposal, Inc. 3 1,5615.28
10/1/2018 32949 Aqua-Metric Sales Company $ 11,144.81
10/1/2018 32950 BofA Credit Card $ 2,360.09
10/1/2018 32951 Brenntag Pacific, Inc $ 17,021.43
10/1/2018 32952 Fresno Oxygen 3 781.56
10/1/2018 32953 Grainger $ 56.78
10/1/2018 32954 Hasa, Inc. $ 7,552.86
10/1/2018 32955 Home Depot U.S.A. Inc $ 786.24
10/1/2018 32956 House Of Quality, Parts Plus $ 3,691.33
10/1/2018 32957 VOID CHECK $ -
10/1/2018 32958 Inland Water Works Supply Co. $ 12,886.63
10/1/2018 32959 Nicholas C. Hendrickson $ 3,480.33

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 35 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-249

Page 10 of 25

Check Register - October 2018

Check Date Check Number

10/1/2018 32960
10/1/2018 32961
10/1/2018 32962
10/1/2018 32963
10/1/2018 32964
10/1/2018 32965
10/1/2018 32966
10/1/2018 32967
10/1/2018 32968
10/1/2018 32969
10/1/2018 32970
10/1/2018 32971
10/1/2018 32072
10/8/2018 32973
10/8/2018 32974
10/8/2018 32975
10/8/2018 32976
10/8/2018 32977
10/8/2018 32978
10/8/2018 32979
10/8/2018 32980
10/8/2018 32981
10/8/2018 329082
10/8/2018 32983
10/8/2018 32984
10/8/2018 32985
10/8/2018 32986
10/8/2018 32987
10/8/2018 32988
10/8/2018 32089
10/8/2018 32990
10/8/2018 32991
10/8/2018 32092
10/8/2018 32993
10/8/2018 32994
10/8/2018 32095
10/8/2018 32996
10/8/2018 32997
10/8/2018 32998
10/8/2018 32999
10/8/2018 33000
10/8/2018 33001
10/8/2018 33002
10/8/2018 33003
10/8/2018 33004

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 36 of 166

Name

Nuckles Qil Company, Inc.
NCL Of Wisconsin Inc
Palydyne Inc.

Power Plus International

US Bank

Kenneth Carnes

Jeremy Costello

DEL PILAR, JAMIE & M
Standard Insurance Company
Standard Insurance Vision Plan
MetLife Small Business Center
Jennifer Ares

Nippan Life Insurance Co. of A
MASINDE, GODFRED & R
State Water Resources Control
Ameripride Uniform Services

C & B Crushing, Inc.
CA-ARB/PERP

Cal-Mesa Steel Supply, Inc.
Coverall North America, Inc.
Crown Ace Hardware - Yucaipa
First American Data Tree, LLC

G&G Environmental Compliance,|

Innerline Engineering

Carlos Murillo

MBC Applied Environmental Scie
Nagem, Inc.

NetComp Technologies,Inc.
Office Salutions Business Prod
Pacific Coast Landscape & Desi
John Deere Financial f.s.b.
Pro-Pipe & Supply, Inc.

Q Versa, LLC

Quinn Company

Western Qilfields Supply Compa
Riverside County Treasurer
SCCdl, Inc.

U.S. Postal Service (Hasler)
Underground Service Alert Of S
UPS Store#1504/ Mail Boxes Etc
Yucaipa Valley Water District
Aqua-Metric Sales Company
John F. Simister

Brenntag Pacific, Inc

Fisher Scientific Co.

FRER LR ALR LA ALPRLEL N RN AL RN R LR LR LR N AR LR PR R

Check Amount

5,334.60
606.10
2,949.12
209.73
4,861.42
814.59
100.00
99.84
1,543.28
772.68
147.22
171.32
3,827.32
51.56
220.00
846.33
300.00
575.00
21.55
1,331.00
1,082.00
50.00
2,794.30
1,750.00
12.42
1,350.00
5,061.75
2,700.00
24952
6,325.00
213.32
116.45
43,757.87
282.10
357.88
266.42
350.00
2,000.00
485.20
25.00
74,603.75
72,125.16
1,639.40
2,299.97
1,364.66



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-249 Page 11 of 25

Check Register - October 2018

Check Date Check Number Name Check Amount

10/8/2018 33005 Global Equipment Co., Inc $ 626.43
10/8/2018 33006 Industrial Safety Supply Corp $ 601.96
10/8/2018 33007 Inland Water Warks Supply Co. 3 8,556.18
10/8/2018 33008 King Lee Chemical, Co. $ 20,291.48
10/8/2018 33009 Lawrence Roll Up Doors, Inc. $ 885.00
10/8/2018 33010 Lowe's Companies, Inc. $ 506.14
10/8/2018 33011 Nuckles Qil Company, Inc. $ 2,537.96
10/8/2018 33012 Uline, Inc. $ 1,983.17
10/8/2018 33013 Calmat Company $ 2,660.10
10/8/2018 33014 West Coast Lights & Sirens, In $ 386.61
10/8/2018 33015 Cal-Mesa Steel Supply, Inc. $ 70.04
10/8/2018 33016 California Association of Sani $ 16,711.00
10/8/2018 33017 Geoscience Support Services, | $ 53,5654.20
10/8/2018 33018 Incode Division-Tyler Technolo $ 5,721.40
10/8/2018 33019 Nagem, Inc. $ 85.00
10/8/2018 33020 Office Solutions Business Prod $ 48,32
10/8/2018 33021 State Water Resaurces Control 3 110.00
10/12/2018 33022 PAYROLL CHECK $ 2,299.62
10/12/2018 33023 PAYROLL CHECK $ 310.43
10/12/2018 33024 WageWorks, Inc. $ 1,281.51
10/12/2018 33025 IBEW Local 1436 $ 667.00
10/12/12018 33026 California State Disbursement $ 115.38
10/12/2018 33027 California State Disbursement $ 397.38
10/12/2018 33028 Ryan Janisch $ 435.70
10/15/2018 33029 Delta Partners, LLC $ 7,500.00
10/15/2018 33030 Dudek & Associates, Inc $ 20,646.93
10/15/2018 33031 HDR Engineering, Inc. $ 10,704 .13
10/15/2018 33032 One Stop Landscape Supply Inc $ 20,855.00
10/15/2018 33033 Platinum Advisors, LLC $ 5,000.00
10/15/2018 33034 Woodard & Curran Inc. $ 3,373.64
10/15/2018 33035 David L. Wysocki $ 3,975.00
10/15/2018 33036 Addiction Medicine Consultants $ 60.00
10/15/2018 33037 Ameripride Uniform Services 5 814.78
10/15/2018 33038 John F. Simister $ 684.58
10/15/2018 33039 California Special Districts A $ 7,552.00
10/15/2018 33040 Cal-Mesa Steel Supply, Inc. $ 70.04
10/15/2018 33041 Center Electric Services, Inc. $ 80,731.34
10/15/2018 33042 Central Communications $ 416.50
10/15/2018 33043 Clinical Laboratory of San Ber $ 15,973.50
10/15/2018 33044 Victor James Valenti $ 2,287.70
10/15/2018 33045 Corelagic, Inc. 3 330.00
10/15/2018 33046 Ernesto & Dora Placencia $ 3,129.11
10/15/2018 33047 Evoqua Water Technologies LLC 3 2,248.98
10/15/2018 33048 Fedex $ 4177
10/15/2018 33049 Frontier Communications $ 149.95

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 37 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-249 Page 12 of 25

Check Register - October 2018

Check Date Check Number Name Check Amount
10/15/2018 33050 InfoSend, Inc. $ 3,708.92
10/15/2018 33051 Innerline Engineering $ 1,750.00
10/15/2018 33052 Konica Minolta Business Soluti $ 956.15
10/15/2018 33053 Nagem, Inc. $ 510.00
10/15/2018 33054 NetComp Technologies,Inc. $ 34.278.77
10/15/2018 33055 Office Solutions Business Prod 3 3,288.47
10/15/2018 33056 Pro-Pipe & Supply, Inc. $ 328.84
10/15/2018 33057 Quinn Company $ 7.09
10/15/2018 33058 Red Alert Special Couriers $ 369.26
10/15/2018 33059 San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency $ 22,047.15
10/15/2018 33060 Spectrum Business $ 4.483.00
10/15/2018 33061 The Counseling Team Internatio $ 480.00
10/15/2018 33062 UPS Store#1504/ Mail Boxes Etc $ 45.45
10/15/2018 33063 Waestrux International, Inc. $ 751.68
10/15/2018 33064 Airgas, Inc. $ 1,506.53
10/15/2018 33065 All American Sewer Tools $ 1,166.73
10/15/2018 33066 Aqua-Metric Sales Company 3 50,858.00
10/15/2018 33067 Brenntag Pacific, Inc $ 19,923.12
10/15/2018 33068 Burgeson's Heating & Air Cond. $ 3,450.00
10/15/2018 33069 Fisher Scientific Co. $ 376.15
10/15/2018 33070 Grainger $ 2,578.18
10/15/2018 33071 Hasa, Inc. $ 3,941.46
10/15/2018 33072 Hemet Valley Tool Inc. $ 1,408.98
10/15/2018 33073 Industrial Safety Supply Corp $ 202.29
10/15/2018 33074 Inland Water Waorks Supply Co. $ 10,598.94
10/15/2018 33075 Nuckles Oil Company, Inc. $ 8,037.97
10/15/2018 33076 Odyssey Pawer Corporation 3 2,137.69
10/15/2018 33077 Quinn Company $ 10,752.90
10/15/2018 33078 Rosemount Analytical, Inc. $ 2,848.76
10/15/2018 33079 Sinclair Rock and Sand Inc. $ 3,100.00
10/15/2018 33080 Talley Inc. $ 4.114.83
10/15/2018 33081 Wells Tapping Service, Inc $ 6,000.00
10/15/2018 33082 California Water Environment A $ 188.00
10/15/2018 33083 Southwest Membrane Operator As $ 600.00
10/15/2018 33084 Gilbert A. Santacruz $ 50.00
10/15/2018 33085 Robert Mendez $ 188.00
10/15/2018 33086 NORTON, CATHIE $ 8545
10/15/2018 33087 MOSER, BAMBI $ 56.43
10/15/2018 33088 BURK, JACK $ 51.64
10/15/2018 33089 DAVID, CAROLINE $ 15.81
10/15/2018 33090 FRAZER, LOUIS & LIND $ 43.83
10/15/2018 33091 ONULDOQ,INC. $ 27.16
10/15/2018 33002 AT&T Mability $ 1,893.81
10/15/2018 33093 Mission Communications, LLC $ 563.40
10/15/2018 33094 Separation Processes, Inc. $ 932.00

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 38 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-249 Page 13 of 25

Check Register - October 2018

Check Date Check Number Name Check Amount
10/15/2018 33095 SF CC Intermediate Holdings In $ 277.22
10/15/2018 33096 Water Systems Consulting, Inc. $ 16,960.00
10/15/2018 33097 City of Yucaipa $ 90,000.00
10/22/2018 330908 American Family Life Assurance $ 3,410.03
10/22/2018 33099 Joan Cadiz $ 603.36
10/22/2018 33100 Joe DeSalliers 3 646.39
10/22/2018 33101 Rodd Greene $ 648.15
10/22/2018 33102 Dennis Neff 3 599.99
10/22/2018 33103 Robert Wall $ 599.99
10/22/2018 33104 Western Dental Services, Inc. $ 203.54
10/22/2018 33105 WageWorks, Inc. $ 207.50
10/22/2018 33106 Jacob Duncan $ 135.00
10/22/2018 33107 Allison Edmisten $ 236.51
10/22/2018 33108 Luis Crespo VOIDED $ -

10/22/2018 33109 California Water Environment A $ 188.00
10/22/2018 33110 Steven Eldridge $ 49.56
10/22/2018 33111 Courtland R. Gear 3 95.00
10/22/2018 33112 Christopher Beard $ 100.00
10/22/2018 33113 Steven Moalina $ 155.00
10/22/2018 33114 Kelly Hamilton $ 170.00
10/22/2018 33115 Kyle Rose $ 76.00
10/22/2018 33116 Johnny Shackleford 3 434.00
10/22/2018 33117 Sean Ferris $ 688.69
10/22/2018 33118 Matthew M. Barlow $ 1,5617.77
10/22/2018 33119 Ralph C. Casas $ 77.45
10/22/2018 33120 Ameripride Uniform Services $ 855.19
10/22/2018 33121 Balco Holdings Inc. $ 1,393.91
10/22/2018 33122 Beaumont Basin Watermaster $ 13,380.00
10/22/2018 33123 BSK Associates $ 1,495.00
10/22/2018 33124 Cal-Mesa Steel Supply, Inc. $ 168.09
10/22/2018 33125 Cliff's Pest Control, Inc. 3 115.00
10/22/2018 33126 Evoqua Water Technologies LLC $ 1,144.14
10/22/2018 33127 Fedex $ 4216
10/22/2018 33128 FMB Truck Oulffitters, Inc. $ 98.48

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 39 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-249 Page 14 of 25

Check Register - October 2018

Check Date Check Number Name Check Amount
10/22/2018 33129 Frontier Communications $ 151.01
10/22/2018 33130 Home Depot U.S.A. Inc $ 337.98
10/22/2018 33131 Incode Division-Tyler Technolo $ ©631.30
10/22/2018 33132 InfoSend, Inc. $ 5,033.75
10/22/2018 33133 Inland Empire Resource Conserv $ 1,263.11
10/22/2018 33134 Innerline Engineering $ 1,750.00
10/22/2018 33135 Nagem, Inc. $ 1,360.00
10/22/2018 33136 NetComp Technologies,Inc. $ 3,600.00
10/22/2018 33137 John Deere Financial f.s.b. $ 575.97
10/22/2018 33138 Pro-Pipe & Supply, Inc. $ 1,047.59
10/22/2018 33139 Waestern Qilfields Supply Compa $ 4,483.68
10/22/2018 33140 Redlands-Yucaipa Rentals Inc. $ 26.40
10/22/2018 33141 SB CNTY-Recarder/County Clerk $ 113.00
10/22/2018 33142 SB CNTY-Solid Waste Mgmt Div $ 184.62

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 40 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-249

Page 15 of 25

Investment Summary - October 2018

U.S. TREASURIES

Quantity Description Cusip Maturity Date Yield Cost of Purchase Market Value
510,000 US Treasury Bill 912796QM4 June 20, 2019 2150% | $ 500,225.51 | $ 511,120.90
510,000 Total Values $ 500,225.51 % 511,120.90
Money Market Account Activity-Beginning Balance $ 10,038.26
713117 - Bond Interest $ -
7/31/18 - Dividend/Interest $ 2.54
Cusip 912796PQ6 Accrued Interest Paid
Business Account Fee $ -
Income $ 2.54
Intra-Bank Transfers to/from Investment Checking $ -
Fund Transfers $ -
Cusip Maturity $ -
Redemptions $ -
Cusip Purchase $ -
Purchases $ -
Ending Balance - Money Market $ 10,040.80
US Treasury Securities Investment Principal $ 500,225.51
Total Assets 3 510,266.31

Note: As of 11/1/18, the updated treasury information for October has not been received. The information above is as of

9/30/18.

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 41 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-249 Page 16 of 25

Investment Summary - October 2018

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND

TOTAL ACCRUED
WITHDRAWAL TOTAL DEPOSIT INTEREST
PERIOD AMOUNT AMOUNT (QUARTERLY) ENDING BALANCE
July 31, 2018 3 - $ - $ 50,400.17  $  10,674,082.68
August 31, 2018 $  (4,000,000.00) % - $ - $  6,674,082.68
September 30, 2018 $ - $ - $ - $ 6,674,082.68
October 31, 2018 $ - $ - $ 47122687 $  6,721,205.35
November 30, 2018 5 - $ - $ - $  6,721,205.35
December 31, 2018 5 - $ - $ - $  6,721,205.35
January 31, 2019 3 - $ - $ - $  6,721,205.35
February 28, 2019 3 - $ - $ - $  6,721,205.35
March 31, 2019 3 - $ - $ - $  6,721,205.35
April 30, 2019 3 - $ - $ - $  6,721,205.35
May 31, 2019 3 - $ - $ - $  6,721,205.35
June 30, 2019 3 - $ - $ - $  6,721,205.35
L.A.l.LF. INCOME SUMMARY CURRENT QUARTER FY YEAR-TO-DATE
INCOME RECEIVED $ 4712267 % 97,531.84

Effective Yield of the LAIF Pooled Money Investment Account

2.40%

2.20%

2.00%

1.80% /
1.60% /
1.40%

1.20% /

1.00%

0.80% /

0.60% /

0.40% //

0.20%

0.00%

Jul-14

Jan-14
Mar-14 -
May-14 -
Sep-14 4
Nowv-14
Jan-15 1
Mar-15 -
May-15 -
Jul-15
Sep-15+
Nowv-15
Jan-16
Mar-16
May-16 -
Jul-16
Sep-16
Nowv-16
Jan-17 4
Mar-17
May-17
Jul-17 A
Sep-17
Nowv-17
Jan-18 1
Mar-18
May-18
Jul-18
Sep-184

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 42 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-249

Page 17 of 25

FY 2018-19 Water Revenue

GIL
ACCOUNT
#
02-40010
02-40011
02-40012
02-40013
02-40014
02-40015
02-40016
02-41000
02-41001
02-41003
02-41005
02-41010
02-41110
02-41112
02-41113
02-41121
02-41124
02-42122
02-42123
02-43010
02-43110
02-43120
02-43130
02-43140
02-49110
02-49150

02-89901
02-89902

DESCRIPTION

Sales - Water

Sales - Censtruction Water

Sales - Imported Water (SGPWA)
Sales - Imported Water (MUNI)

Sales Disc.-Multi Units Usage Chryg.

Water Wholesale Revenue
Service Establishment Fee
Service Demand Charges
Fire Service Standby Fees
Construction Service Charge

Sales Disc-Multi Units Service Chrg.

Unauthcerized Use of Water Charge
Meter/Lateral installation

Fire Flow Test Fees
Bisconnect/Reconnect Fees
Penalty - Late Charges

Bad Debt

Revenue - Other Operating
Management & Accounting Fees
Interest Earned

Property Tax - Unsecured
Property Tax - Secured

Tax Collection - Prior

Other Taxes

Rental Income (WATER STOCK)
Revenue - Misc. Non-Operating

WATER OPERATING REVENUE

Grants
Facility Capacity Charges
Sustainability

GO OO LA O O A O R R 0 &0 00 R 4R OO R 4O 0| R OO R A OO &R &7 &0

&

BUDGET
5,058,445
25,000
250,000
850,000
{110,000)
200,000
5,000
3,400,000
45,000
15,000
(135,000)
2,000
50,000
4,500
100,000
135,000
{20,000)
202,500
85,000
80,000
2,700,000
25,000
180,000
3,000
100,000
14,150,445

TOTAL WATER REVENUE | $ 14,150,445

NOTE: Plan check & inspection fees to 02-42122

Oct "18
$ 563,701

$ 18,286

$ 22,896

$ 78,469

$ {2,350)
$ 8,435
$ 75
$ 266,071

$ 2,039

$ 280

$  (11,360)
3 -

$ 3,000

$ 800

$ 7,650

$ 13,007

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

16,875
21,205

3,913
1,007,972

=3

$ 12,805
% -

$ 1,020,777

Year to Date

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

&

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 43 of 166

2,097,433
61,856
100,679
271,746
(34,388)
39,531
675
854,708
10,750
878
(36,588)

23,030
1,675
25,425
50,717
335
(6)

67,500
48,398
7,989

{20)
16,120
3,642,194
140,196
38,532

3,820,921

%
35.20%
247.42%
40.27%
31.87%
31.26%
19.77%
13.50%
25.14%
23.89%
5.86%
27.10%
0.00%
46.06%
37.22%
25.43%
37.57%
-1.68%
NfA
33.33%
56.94%
9.99%
0.00%
0.00%
-0.01%
0.00%
16.12%
25.74%



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-249 Page 18 of 25

FY 2018-19 Sewer Revenue

G/L
ACCOUNT
# DESCRIPTION BUDGET Oct'18 Year to Date %
03-40016 :Sales - Establish Service Fee $ 5001 % 501 % 75 15.00%
03-41000 Sales - Sewer Charges $ 12116,254 1 $ 973,490 .3 3,214524; 26.53%
03-41005 |Sales Disc-Multi Units Service Chrg. | $  (200,000); $ (18,262); &  (60,471) | 30.24%
03-41110 Meter/Lateral Installation $ 2500 % - $ 2,500 | 100.00%
03-41121 Penalty - Late Charges 3 135,000 | $ 11,300 | § 44,000 | 32.58%
03-41124 Bad Debt $  (15000) $ - 8 - 0.00%
03-41131 |Front Footage Fees $ 30,000 | $ - 3 16,250 | 54.17%
03-42122 |Revenue - Other Operating $ 2,000 % 180 | 3 5401 27.00%
03-43010 !Interest Earned $ 95,000 | $ 21,2051 § 45414 1 47.80%
03-43110 Property Tax - Unsecured 3 50,000 | $ - 3 - 0.00%
03-43120 Property Tax - Secured $ 100,000 : $ - S - 0.00%
03-43130 Tax Collection - Prior $ 10,000 : § - 3 - 0.00%
03-43140 :Other Taxes $ 1,500 $ - S - 0.00%
03-49150 |Misc. Non-Oper Revenue $ 10,000 | $ - $ 58 0.58%
SEWER OPERATING REVENUE!: $ 12,337,754 | § 987,972 | $ 3,262,890 | 26.45%
Grants $ - 3 -
03-89901 |Facility Capacity Charges 3 - 3 41,1058 252,253
03-89903 :Contrib Capital-Front Foctage Fees 3 - 3 - $ -
03-89905 | Contrib Capital-Infrastructure $ - $ 4500:% 13,500
TOTAL SEWER REVENUE: $ 12,337,754 | § 1,033,577 | $ 3,528,643

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 44 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-249

Page 19 of 25

FY 2018-19 Recycled Revenue

GIL
ACCOUNT
#
04-40010
04-40011
04-41000
04-41003
04-41110
04-41121
04-41122
04-43010
04-43110
04-43120
04-43130
04-43140
04-49150

04-89901

DESCRIPTION

Sales - Recycled Water

Sales - Construction Water
Sales - Service Demand Chrg.
Const. Water Minimum Chrg.
Meter/Lateral installation
Penalty - Late Charges
Revenue - Other Operating
Interest Earned

Property Tax - Unsecured
Property Tax - Secured
Property Tax - Prior

Property Tax - Other

Misc. Non-Operating Revenue

RECYCLED OPERATING REVENUE

Grants
Facility Capacity Charges

R d R R o TR AR o AR h - R AR o TR e o R R TR o

“n

BUDGET
694,270
65,000
85,000
5,000
45,000
5,000
500
20,000
1¢,000
350,000
1¢,000
2,500
1,000
1,293,270

TOTAL RECYCLED REVENUE: $ 1,293,270

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 45 of 166

Oct™8
$ 70,591
$ 11

6,279
51
1,470
348

$

$

$

$

g
$ 4712
$

$

$

$

$

$

83,463

g -
$ 16,531

$ 99,994

Year to
Date

20,026
169
4,410
1,261

$

$

$

$

$

3 _
$ 10,002
$

$

$

$

$

$

$ 296,893

%
32.16%
0.15%
23.56%
3.39%
9.80%
25.22%
0.00%
50.46%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
20.05%



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-249

Page 20 of 25

FY 2018-19 Water Expenses

G/L ACCOUNT
#
02-5-01-50010
02-5-01-50011
02-5-01-50013
02-5-01-50014
02-5-01-50016
02-5-01-50017
02-5-01-50019
02-5-01-50021
02-5-01-50022
02-5-01-50023
02-5-01-50024
02-5-01-50025
02-5-01-51003
02-5-01-51011
02-5-01-51115
02-5-01-51140
02-5-01-51210
02-5-01-51211
02-5-01-51316
02-5-01-54019
02-5-01-54110
02-5-01-57040

02-5-03-50010
02-5-03-50011
02-5-03-50013
02-5-03-50014
02-5-03-50016
02-5-03-50017
02-5-03-50019
02-5-03-50021
02-5-03-50022
02-5-03-50023
02-5-03-50024
02-5-03-50025
02-5-03-51001
02-5-03-51011
02-5-03-51020
02-5-03-51021
02-5-03-51022
02-5-03-51029
02-5-03-51030
02-5-03-51031
02-5-03-51092
02-5-03-51140

DESCRIPTION

Labor-Water Resources
Labor Credit

Benefits-Fica

Benefits-Life Insurance
Benefits-Health\Defrd Comp
Benefits-Disability Insurance
Benefits-Workers Compensation
Benefits-PERS-Employee
Benefits-PERS-Employer
Benefits-Uniforms
Benefits-Vacation & Sick Pay
Benefits-Boot Allowance
R&M - Structures

R&M - CLA Valves
Laboratory Supplies

General Supplies & Expenses
Utilities - Power Purchases
Utilities - Electricity & Fuel
Imported Water Purchases
Licenses & Permits
Laboratory Services
YVRWFF QOperating Expense

WATER RESOURCE TOTALS

Labor-Public Works

Labor Credit

Benefits-Fica

Benefits-Life Insurance
Benefits-Health\Defrd Comp
Benefits-Disability Insurance
Benefits-Warkers Compensation
Benefits-PERS Employee
Benefits-PERS Employer
Benefits-Uniforms
Benefits-Vacation & Sick Pay
Benefits-Boot Allowance

R & M -Vehicles & Equipment
R&M - Valves

R&M - Pipelines

R&M - Service Lines

R&M - Fire Hydrants

R&M - Backflow

R&M - Water Meters

Fire Flow Testing

Equipment Credits

General Supplies & Expenses

BUDGET
997,976
76,345
5,568
218,544
8,982
26,945
149,696
5,800
6,001
3,480
319,000
20,000
2,000
1,394,000
5,000
1,200,000
70,000
65,000
700,000
5,274,337

1,650,107
126,443
10,776
422,958
14,851
44,553
247,516
11,225
4,000
6,525
200,000
10,000
225,000
96,000
25,000
20,000
30,000
30,000

2,500

PUBLIC WORKS TOTALS; $ 3,177,454

Oct "8
$ 65931
$ _

$ 5220

$ 133

§ 4782

$ 1,166

$ 664

$ (309
$ 4484

$ 132

$ 723

$ -

$ 4137

$ -

3

3

$

$

$

$

$

45
154,464
348

3 36,104
$ 278,025

$ 110,912
$ _

$ 8661
$ 287
$ 6458
$ 1,800
$ 664
$  (938)
$ 7,740
$ 678
$ 393
$ 300
$ 16,065
$ -

$ 12,806
$ 2,384
$ 1,611
$ 5,169
$ 8,224
$
$
3

$ 183,213

Year to Date
$ 288,763
$ _

3 22,808
$ 506
3 68,973
$ 4,373
$ 2,688
3 (3,592)
$ 19,343
$ 703
$ 3,290
3 Q00
3 397,754
3 11,427
3 _

$ 128
$ 524,695
3 1,288
$ 406,252
$ 1,192
3 39,697
3 209,468
$ 2,000,656

416,422
(9,533)
32.568
855
143,213
6,045
2,999
(6.881)
30,768
4,168
1,833
7,200
91,679
800
78,017
26,933
27 877
18,599
83,103
3,117
(4,403)
1,493
956,873

LR AR IR B R A AN ,MimMea e

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 46 of 166

%
28.93%

29.87%
9.08%
31.56%
48.69%
9.98%

12.92%
12.12%
54.82%
25.86%
124.69%
57.13%

6.39%
37.64%
2577%
33.85%

1.70%
61.07%
29.92%
37.93%

25.24%

2576%
7.94%
33.86%
40.71%
6.73%

12.43%
37.13%
45.83%
110.34%
45.84%
8.00%
34.67%
28.06%
111.51%
93.00%
277.01%
10.39%

59.73%
30.11%



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-249

Page 21 of 25

FY 2018-19 Water Expenses

G/L ACCOUNT
#

02-5-06-50010
02-5-06-50011
02-5-06-50012
02-5-06-50013
02-5-06-50014
02-5-06-50016
02-5-06-50017
02-5-06-50019
02-5-06-50021
02-5-06-50022
02-5-06-50023
02-5-06-50024
02-5-06-50025
02-5-06-51003
02-5-06-51091
02-5-06-51120
02-5-06-51125
02-5-06-51130
02-5-06-51140
02-5-06-51199
02-5-06-51211
02-5-06-51213
02-5-06-54002
02-5-06-54005
02-5-06-54010
02-5-06-54011
02-5-06-54012
02-5-06-54013
02-5-06-54014
02-5-06-54016
02-5-06-54017
02-5-06-54020
02-5-06-54022
02-5-06-54024
02-5-06-54025
02-5-06-54099
02-5-06-54104
02-5-06-54107
02-5-06-54108
02-5-06-54109
02-5-06-55500

02-5-06-56001
02-5-06-57030
02-5-06-57090
02-5-06-57096

DESCRIPTION

Labor-Administration

Labor Credit

Director Fees

Benefits-Fica

Benefits-Life Insurance
Benefits-Health\Defrd Comp
Benefits-Disability Insurance

Benefits-Workers Compensation

Benefits PERS Employee
Benefits PERS Employer
Uniforms

Benefits-Vacation & Sick Pay
Benefits-Boots

R&M - Structures

Expense Credits (overhead)
Safety Equipment/Supplies
Petroleum Products

Office Supplies & Expenses
General Supplies & Expenses
Disaster Incidences

Utilities - Electricity

Utilities - Natural Gas

Dues & Subscriptions
Computer Expenses
Postage

Printing & Publications
Education & Training

Utility Billing Expenses
Public Relations

Travel Related Expenses
Certifications & Renewals
Meeting Related Expenses
Utilities - YYWD Services
Utilities - Waste Disposal
Utilities - Telephone & Internet
Conservation & Rebates
Contractual Services

Legal

Audit & Accounting
Professional Fees
Depreciation Reserves
Infrastructure Replacement
Insurance

Regulatory Compliance
Election Related Expenses
Beaumont Basin Watermaster

BUDGET

602,359
25,000
46,080

2,952
115,866
5,421
16,264

90,354
3,075
10,000
1,845
30,000
25,000
105,000
35,000
35,000
65,000
1,500
41,500
100,000
4,200

15,000
150,000
25,000
8,000
8,000
8,000
60,000
2,500
45,000
30,000
100,000
50,000
12,000
165,000
200,000
1,000,000
100,000
15,000
5,000
44,000

R AR AR R R A A R R

FER IR RIEH R IR R R A R A LR A R PR P RN R NN A AR P

Oct 18

42,258
2,548
3,331

98
7,007
695
664

(235)

3,220
133
385

2,935
3,612
15,387
3,616
7,025

2,806
4,478
19,961
2,084
29

743
10,723
423
1,068
439

3,655

7,633

2,600
16,667
83,333

7,942

4,332

13,380

Year to Date

185,014

%

30.71%

(556)

7,299
14,308
448
60,566
2,785
1,676

29.20%
31.05%
15.19%
52.27%
51.37%
10.30%

(2,896)

14,029
542
1,427
3,300
14,622

15.53%
17.63%
14.27%
178.86%
48.74%

(9,947)

8,728
71,799

13,981

15,497

13,958

91

39,096
2,773

34.91%
68.38%
39.94%
44 .28%

21.47%

6.05%
22.01%
39.10%
66.03%

129

8,574
61,804
9,228
3,333
4,766
3,062
85,095
3,228
16,985

34,098
7,132

138,760
66,667
333,332

36,641
18,961

14,219

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 47 of 166

$
$
$
8
3
3
S
$
$
$
8
$
$
S
3
S
$
$
$
8
8
3
S 9,133
S
$
S
$
$
$
8
3
$
S
$
$
$
8
$
$
S
3
S
$
$
$
8

57.16%
41.20%
36.91%
41.66%
59.58%
38.28%
141.82%
129.13%
37.74%
0.00%
34.10%
14.26%
0.00%
84.10%
33.33%
33.33%
36.64%
126.41%
0.00%
32.32%



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-249 Page 22 of 25

FY 2018-19 Water Expenses

G/L ACCOUNT
# DESCRIPTION BUDGET Oct 18 Year to Date %

02-5-06-57097 |San Timoteo SGMA 3 - $ - $ - -
02-5-06-57098 Bunker Hill GSC 3 - $ 13379:% 13,379 -
02-5-06-57199 | Suspense 3 - $ - $ -
ADMINISTRATION TOTALS | $ 3,403,916 | $ 288,251 | $ 1,327,068 38.99%
02-5-40-57201 :Debt Srv-Series 2015A Princ.(2500: $ 1,115,000 : - $ 1,115,000 : 100.00%
02-5-40-57402 | Interest-Long-Term Debt Bonds $ 1,179,738 ' $ - $ 603,806 ! 51.18%
40 -Debt: $ 2,294,738 | § - $ 1,718,806 74.90%
02-5-40-57001 |Asset Acq, - Water Resources 3 - 3 - 3 - -
02-5-40-57003 | Asset Acq, - Public works 3 - 3 - 3 - -
02-5-40-57006 | Asset Acq. - Admin (fuel master) | § - 3 - 3 - .
40 - Capital Outlay: $ - 18 - i3 - -
$ 6,003,404
TOTAL WATER EXPENSES: $ 14,150,445 | $ 749,489 | $ 6,003,404 | 42.43%

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 48 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-249 Page 23 of 25

FY 2018-19 Sewer Expenses

G/L ACCOUNT
# DESCRIPTION BUDGET Oct"18 Year to Date %

03-5-02-50010 Labor-S Treatment $ 1,170,711 ;% 95353 § 336,244 28.72%
03-5-02-50013 | Benefits-Fica $ 89,559 | § 6,891 % 25,646 28.52%
03-5-02-50014 'Benefits-Life Insurance $ 6,336 ' $ 149 ' § 558 8.81%
03-5-02-50016 | Benefits-Health\Defrd Comp $ 248,688 | $ 4382 | % 68,799 27.66%
03-5-02-50017 |Benefits-Disability Insurance $ 10,536 | $ 1,208 | § 4,582 43.458%
03-5-02-50019 :Benefits-Workers Compensation $ 31,609 ' § 664 ' § 2,688 8.50%
03-5-02-50021 |Benefits-PERS Employee $ - $ (308) % (3,590)
03-5-02-50022 |Benefits-PERS Employer $ 175,607 | $ 5649 | § 22,166 12.62%
03-5-02-50023 | Benefits-Uniforms $ 6,600 | $ 263 | § 1,199 18.17%
03-5-02-50024 | Benefits-Vacation & Sick Pay $ 5001 % 723 % 2,996 59.90%
03-5-02-50025 | Benefits-Boot Allowance $ 3,960 $ - $ 5,400 | 136.36%
03-5-02-51003 \R&M - Structures $ 300,000 ' $ 17,714 ' § 102,565 34.19%
03-5-02-51010 |R&M - Automation Control $ 70,000 | $ - $ 23,723 33.89%
03-5-02-51106 Chemicals $ 600,000 | $ 43,090 ' § 229,486 38.25%
03-5-02-51111 Propane $ 1,000 | $ - $ - 0.00%
03-5-02-51115 | Laboratory Supplies $ 35,000 ' § 376 ' § 11,022 31.49%
03-5-02-51140 | General Supplies & Expenses $ 2,000 ' $ 7508 1,633 | 81.65%
03-5-02-51210 |Utilities - Power Purchases $ 800,000 | $ 70,135 % 312,195 39.02%
03-5-02-54110 | Laboratory Services $ 85,000 | § 1018 ' § 26,141 30.75%
03-5-02-57031 :Sludge Disposal $ 230,000 ' $ - $ 63,5695 27.65%
03-5-02-57034 |Brine Operating Expenses $ 385,000 1'% 1,526 ' § 4,014 1.04%
TREATMENT TOTALS | $ 4,256,607 | $ 248,907 | $ 1,240,964 29.15%
03-5-06-50010 | Labor-Administration $ 602,359 | $ 42258 | § 174,971 29.05%
03-5-06-50011 |Labor Credit $ - $ - $ -
03-5-06-50012 | Directors Fees $ 25,000 | $ 2548 | § 7,299 29.20%
03-5-06-50013 | Benefits-Fica $ 46,080 ' $ 3331 % 13,619 29.34%
03-5-06-50014 | Benefits-Life Insurance $ 2952 % 98 | 3 430 14.57%
03-5-06-50016 | Benefits-Health\Defrd Comp $ 115,866 | $ 7,105 ' § 58,318 50.33%
03-5-06-50017 |Benefits-Disability Insurance $ 5421 % 695 ' $ 2,638 1 48.66%
03-5-06-50019 |Benefits-Workers Compensation $ 16,264 | § 664 | 1,676 10.30%
03-5-06-50021 :Benefits PERS Employee $ - $ (189): $ (2,376)
03-5-06-50022 | Benefits PERS Employer $ 90,354 | § 3220 % 13,615 15.07%
03-5-06-50023 | Benefits-Uniforms $ 3,075 1 $ 761 $ 215 6.99%
03-5-06-50024 | Benefits-Vacation & Sick Pay $ 5,000 ' % 385 % 1,427 28.54%
03-5-06-50025 Benefits-Boot Allowance $ 1,845 ' § - $ - 0.00%
03-5-06-51120 | Safety Equipment/Supplies $ 5500 | $ 284 1 § 4,011 72.92%
03-5-06-51125 | Petroleum Products $ 18,000 | $ 1,500 ' $ 6,000 33.33%
03-5-06-51130 |Office Supplies $ 10,000 | § - $ 746 7.46%
03-5-06-51140 |General Supplies & Expenses $ 30,000:% 5720:% 11,946 | 39.82%
03-5-06-51199 :Disaster Repairs $ - $ - $ -
03-5-06-54002 Dues & Subscriptions $ 25,000 1§ 20,897 ' % 21,912 87.65%
03-5-06-54003 |Management & Admin Services $ 202,500 ' $ 16,875 % 67,500 | 33.33%
03-5-06-54005 | Computer Expenses $ 100,000 ' $ 19,835 % 38,045 38.04%
03-5-06-54011 |Printing & Publications $ - $ - $ 101 N/A
03-5-06-54012 Education & Training $ 15,000 : 842 ' § 7,381 49.20%
03-5-06-54014 |Public Relations $ 25,000 | § - $ 568 2.27%
03-5-06-54016 | Travel Related Expenses $ 10,000 | $ 1701 $ 6,068 | 60.68%
03-5-06-54017 | Certifications & Renewals $ 7,500 | % 622 1 § 3,744 | 49.92%
03-5-06-54019 | Licenses & Permits $ 65,000 | $ - $ 16,804 25.85%
03-5-06-54020 |Meeting Related Expenses $ 5,000 ' % 439 1 $ 1,983 39.65%

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 49 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-249 Page 24 of 25

FY 2018-19 Sewer Expenses

G/L ACCOUNT
# DESCRIPTION BUDGET Oct ™18 Year to Date %
03-5-06-54022 Utilities - YVWD Services $ 16500 ' § - $ 509 33.94%
03-5-06-54024 Utilities - Waste Disposal $ 13,000 ' $ - $ 5,218 40.14%
03-5-06-54025 Utilities - Telephone & Internet $ 45,000 | $ 4557 ' § 19,820 44.04%
03-5-06-54030 Drinking Water $ 1,250 ' § 77 9% 317 25.38%
03-5-06-54104 Contractual Services $ 50,000 | $ 1,639 | § 16,801 33.80%
03-5-06-54107 |Legal $ 45,000 | $ - $ 12,041 26.76%
03-5-06-54108 | Audit & Accounting $ 12,000 ' $ - 5 - 0.00%
03-5-06-54109 |Professional Fees 3 158,000 | $ 2,500 ' § 58,264 36.64%
03-5-06-55500 |Depreciation Reserves $ 500,000 ' $ 41667 | % 166,667 33.33%
Infrastructure Replacement $ 500,000 | $ 41,667 | $ 166,667 33.33%
03-5-06-56001 !Insurance $ 115,000 ' § 11124 ' § 44 494 38.68%
03-5-06-57030 |Regulatory Compliance $ 50,000 ' $ 878 ' $ 13,104 | 26.21%
ADMINISTRATION TOTALS ' § 2,924,466 ' $ 231,480 ' § 962,541 32.91%
03-5-07-50010 :Labor-Enviromental Control $ 614646 | $§ 42,265 % 176,078 28.65%
03-5-07-50011 |Labor Credit $ - $ - 5 - 0.00%
03-5-07-50013 |Benefits-Fica 3 47,020 ' $ 3,225 1 § 13,475 28.66%
03-5-07-50014 |Benefits-Life Insurance $ 3888 ' % 106 | $ 326 8.38%
03-5-07-50016 |Benefits-Health\Defrd Comp $ 152,604 | 2035 % 52,800 34.60%
03-5-07-50017 Benefits-Disability Insurance $ 55632 % 783 ' $ 2,663 1 46.32%
03-5-07-50019 Benefits-Workers Compensation $ 16,695 | § 664 | $ 2,688 16.20%
03-5-07-50021 |Benefits-PERS Employee $ - 3 (268) $ (2,051)
03-5-07-50022 Benefits-PERS Employer $ 92,197 | § 2,066 | $ 11,543 12.52%
03-5-07-50023 Benefits-Uniforms $ 4050 ' % 219 ' $ 1,410 34.81%
03-5-07-50024 |Benefits-Vacation & Sick Pay 3 2,501 1'% 314 1 % 1,346 53.83%
03-5-07-50025 |Benefits-Boot Allowance $ 2430 ' $ - $ 600 | 24.6%9%
03-5-07-51003 |R&M - Structures $ 225000 % 10,256 | $ 107,841 47.93%
03-5-07-51140 |General Supplies & Expenses $ 1,000 ' § - $ 9 0.91%
03-5-07-51241 |Lift Station #1 3 55,000 | § 4,003 ' § 20,974 38.13%
03-5-07-51242 |Lift Station #2 5 14,000 | § 1,146 | § 4,089 29.21%
03-5-07-51243 |Lift Station #3 $ 9,000 | $ 204 | § 864 9.60%
03-5-07-51244 |Lift Station #4 $ 14,500 | $ 825 % 3,147 21.70%
03-5-07-51248 'Lift Station #8 $ 3,000 ' $ 83 % 324 10.80%
03-5-07-54111 Pretreatment $ 60,000 | § - $ 16,036 26.73%
ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL TOTAL § 1,322963 | § 68,825 ' $ 414,060 31.30%
03-5-40-57202 |Debt Service - Principal - WRWRF $ 2262312 % - $ 2,252,312 1 100.00%
03-5-40-57203 'Debt Service - Principal - Brineline $ 435383 | § - $ - 0.00%
03-5-40-57204 :Debt Service - Principal - WISE $ 133,659 | § - $ - 0.00%
03-5-40-57205 |Debt Service - Principal - R 10.3 $ 39,161 | § - $ - 0.00%
03-5-40-57206 Debt Service - Principal - Crow & B12-1 $ 15,330 ' § - $ - 0.00%
03-5-40-57403 (Debt Service - Interest $ 957,873 | § - $ 671,356 70.08%
40 -Debt' $ 3,833,718 | § - $ 2,923,669 76.26%
03-5-40-57002 'Asset Acq. - Treatment $ - $ - $ -
03-5-40-57006 'Asset Acq. - Admin {fuel master) $ - $ - $ -
03-5-40-57007 Asset Acq. - EC (ADS flow monitors & $ ) $ )
smart covers) $ -
40 - Capital Outlay | $ - 3 - $ -
$ 5,541,235
TOTAL SEWER EXPENSES $ 12,337,754 | § 549,212 | $ 5,541,235 44.91%

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 50 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-249

Page 25 of 25

FY 2018-19 Recycled Expenses

G/L ACCOUNT
#
04-5-06-50010
04-5-06-50011
04-5-06-50012
04-5-06-50013
04-5-06-50014
04-5-06-50016
04-5-06-50017
04-5-06-50019
04-5-06-50021
04-5-06-50022
04-5-06-50023
04-5-06-50024
04-5-06-50025
04-5-06-51003
04-5-06-51011
04-5-06-51020
04-5-06-51021
04-5-06-51022
04-5-06-51030
04-5-06-51140
04-5-06-51210
04-5-06-54002
04-5-06-54005
04-5-06-54011
04-5-06-54012
04-5-06-54014
04-5-06-54016
04-5-06-54017
04-5-06-54019
04-5-06-54020
04-5-06-54022
04-5-06-54025
04-5-06-54104
04-5-06-54107
04-5-06-54108
04-5-06-54109
04-5-06-54110
04-5-06-55500

04-5-06-56001
04-5-06-57030
04-5-06-57040

DESCRIPTION
Labor-Recycled Water
Labor - Credit

Director Fees

Benefits-FICA

Benefits-Life Insurance
Benefits-Health & Def Comp
Benefits-Disability Insurance

Benefits-Workers Compensation

Benefits-PERS Employee
Benefits-PERS Employer
Benefits-Uniforms
Benefits-Vacation & Sick Pay
Benefits-Boots

R & M-Structures

R & M-Valves

R & M-Pipelines

R & M-Service Lines

R & M-Fire Hydrants

R & M-Meters/Backflows
General Supplies & Expenses
Utilities-Power Purchasess
Dues & Subscriptions
Computer Expense
Printing & Publications
Education & Training
Public Relations

Travel Related Expenses
Certifications & Renewals
Licenses & Permits
Meeting Related Expenses
Utilities - YVWD Services
Utilities - Telephone & Internet
Contractural Services
Legal

Audit & Accounting
Professional Fees
Laboratory Services
Depreciation

Infrastructure Replacement
Insurance

Regulatory Compliance
Environmental Compliance

$
$
3
$
$
$
3
3
$
$
$
$
$
3
3
$
$
3
$
$
$
3
3
$
$
3
$
$
3
3
3
$
$
$
$
$
$
3
$
$
3
$

TOTAL RECYCLED EXPENSES ! $

BUDGET
677,931

5,000
51,862
3,528
138,474
6,101
18,304
101,690
3,675
1,000
2,206
34,000
5,000
2,500
2,500
1,000
10,000
5,000
70,000
1,500
5,000
4,000
6,500
2,500
1,000
10,000
1,500
30,000
2,000
5,000
1,500
2,500
10,000

8,000
15,000
20,000
25,000

2,500

1,293,270

Oct "8
$ 45,102

3,355
97
2,764
743
664
(200)

3,391
49

56

G AR N W N NN, N, NN e Mme N W, KMo WMy MK ,me e ,megen e
—~J
[$)]
(%]

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 51 of 166

A LRGP LA A AR LA LA A R RILA LA LA A LA IA LA A AL (N N AN LN LA LML LN RN LN LML N A ML

Year to
Date
193,844

14,540
310
50,984
2,710
1,788
(1,832)
13,305
199
253
600
8,380

3,531
3,348
104
2,491
31,725
771
1,058
1,317
126
551

15
7,146
254
60,636
401
2,133

27,319

2,680
5,000
7,059
5,188
447,933
447,933

%
28.59%

0.00%
28.04%
8.77%
36.82%
44 41%
9.77%

13.08%
542%
25.27%
27.21%
24.65%
0.00%
0.00%
141.25%
334.77%
1.04%
49.82%
45.32%
51.38%
21.15%
N/A
32.92%
1.94%
22.03%
1.50%
71.46%
16.94%
202.12%
20.07%
42.65%
0.00%
0.00%
273.19%

33.50%
33.33%
35.30%
20.75%

0.00%

34.64%



P\

' Yucaipa Valley Water District  Workshop Memorandum 18-250
W

Date: November 13, 2018

Prepared By: Allison M. Edmisten, Chief Financial Officer

Subject: Review of the Updated Personnel Manual for the Yucaipa Valley Water District

After the negotiations with the employee groups concluded earlier this calendar year, District staff
began updating the Personnel Manual. The current version of the Personnel Manual was adopted
by the Board on September 21, 2005 [DM 05-111]. Revisions and updates were made to the
Personnel Manual to document current practice as well as to incorporate text to reflect the
changes contained within the approved Memorandum of Understandings. The revisions and
updates to the Personnel Manual were reviewed by multiple district staff in each employee group
(General, Supervisory and Exempt). Attached is a revised version of the District's Personnel
Manual.

Some of the changes to the Personnel Manual include:
o Employee group names updated
Swing shift pay — removed
Medical, Dental, Vision calculations/language updated
Flexible Spending Plan added
AFLAC added
Various time off categories — updated language
Work Boots — updated per MOU
Memorandum of Understandings added at the end of the document

Financial Consideration:

There is no financial impact to the District by updating the Personnel Manual.

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 52 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 2 of 82

%)
’ Yucaipa Vdlley Water District

W

12770 Second Street, Yucaipa, California 92399

Personnel Manual

November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 53 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 3 of 82

Table of Contents

NOTICE 1
INTRCDUCTICN 2
Management RIGNIS ... e e e 2
YVWD General Employees’ Bargaining Unit.............ooiiiii e 3
YVWD Supervisory Bargaining Unit. ... 3
YVWD Exempt Bargaining Unit ... 3
YVWD Confidential Employee Bargaining Unit ... 3

YOU AND YOUR JOB 4
SeleCtion ProCeAUIES ...t et e r e e 4

A. Employee Background Check ... e 4

B. Credit Investigation............cooii i e, 4

C. CrMINAI RECOFAS ... ..o e e 4

D. Driver's License and Driving Record. ... 4

E. Health EXaminations ... e 5

Physical Examinations and Fitness for DUty ... 5

Fair and Equal EMpPlOYMENT ...... o e e e e eeeeen 5
ANNUAT EVAIUAIIONS .....oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee ettt e 5

NEW EMPIOYEES ..o e e e et e aeas 5
Promotions and DemMOtIONS ... .. ..t e e e e e eeeae s 6
Reclassification of EMpPIOYees ... e 6
Classifications of Employment ... e e 7

A Exempt and Non-Exempt EmMplOYees ... 7

B. Introductory Period and Evaluations for New Employees ......................... 7

C. Intro. Period for Promoted, Reassigned or Reclassified Employees ..... ... 8

D. Regular Full-Time EMPIOYEE .......cccoooii e 8

E. Regular Part-Time EmMpPloyee ... e, 8

F. Temporary EMPIOYee ... 8

Transfer and Promotion PONGY ... e 8

Policy Against Harassment in the Workplace..............ccoo e 9

I 1o 1T = 11T SRR 10
MONEY MATTERS 11
= T = T o £ SRR 11
SAIAMES oo 11
Mandatory Deductions from Paycheck ... 11
Automatic Payroll DEPOSIE......c. . e e e e 12

Ty o 1 T = PR 12

L0 3= T3 = U 12

Salary ReVIEW PoOlICY ... e e 13
Performance EValUations. ... ..c.c ittt e s e e 13

L=t g o =T T PP 13
HoOlIAY Pay ... e e ettt 14

8 €= T o oY T U 14
TO-HOUr WOrKAay ... e e e 15
Emergency ApPPOINTMENTS. .. ... e 16

I T =T o (o ==Y PP PP 17

YVWD Personnel Manual Page i

Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 54 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 4 of 82

BENEFITS AND RETIREMENT 18
Medical, Dental and Vision INSUranCe. ..........oooo oo 18
Group Disability Plan ... 19
GroUp Life INSUFANGCE ... .t 19
Group Vision Plan ... e 19
Retirement Plan. ... ..o e 19
Retirement Health Coverage ... 20
Flexible Spending ACCOUNT ... o s 20
AFLAC Supplemental Plans ...... ..o 20
COBRA BeNafits. ..o e 21
Deferred Compensation ... 23

A Payroll DedUCHON ........oi e 23
B. Allocation of Unused Medical, Dental and Vision Contribution................ 23
C. Conversion of Accrued Sick Leave to Deferred Compensation............... 23
D. Conversion of Accrued Sick Leave to Medical Premiums....................... 23
E. Employer Contributions and Matching Funds to Def. Compensation ...... 23
Workers' COmMPeNSatioN .......ooooiiii i e e 24
Unemployment Compensation ... e 25
SOCHIAL SECUITTY ... i e et e e e e e et e e e e e aeaaeeas 25

SAFETY ISSUES 26
General Sal ety ... 26
What To Do If You Are Injured At WOrk ... 26
WOrK Place VIOIENGE ..o e e s 27
Reporting Safety ISSUBS ..o 27
Entering and Leaving the Premises ... 28
Security Checks — Packages/Parcels ... 28
Parking Lot ... 28
SaATETY RUIES ..o e e et 28

A Working Safely ... 28
B. )3 o PR 29
C. Materials Handling................oooii i e, 29
D. Trash DHSPOSAl ..o e 29
E. Cleaning Up ..o e e 29
F. Preventing Falls...........coooiiii i e 29
G. Handling Tools ... e e 29
H. Falling Objects. .. .o 29
I WWOIK AFEAS ..ttt et e e 29
J. UsiNg LAadders ... e e 29
K. Maching GUAKdS ... e 29
L. Personal Protective EqQUipment ... 29
M. Electrical HAZards ... ..o 29
N. Fire EXtNQUISREIS. .......ooii e 29
0. RePOI INJUAIES ..o e e e 29
P. ASK QUESTIONS ..o e 29
Employee Participation in Making Safety a High Priority.............ccooooooii 30
A Safety OffiCer ..o 30
B. Department Managers. ... eei i e e e e anee 30
C. SUPEIVISOIS ..o iee ettt ettt e et s e e e e e e eeeeee e 30
D. Safety Representatives ..o 31
E. The Safety Committee........ooiii i e 31
YVWD Personnel Manual Page ii

Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 55 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 5 of 82

F. Al EMPIOYEES ..o 31

LA L= ToTo] T SR 31

Fire Prevention .. .. ..o e e e e 32

IN CASE Of FINE ..ot 32
Emergency EvacUation. ... ... e e 32
Property and EQUIpMENt Care ... e e 33

Safety Rules When Operating Machines and Equipment ... 33
ST o U 1) PO PP OR PN 33
MODIFIED DUTY FOR WORK RELATED INJURIES 34
Modified DULY POLICY ..... oo e e e 34

0T 1 (o PP 34
Procedure for Modified DULY ... e e e, 34
Procedures for Employees on Modified DUty ..., 35
REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION POLICY 36
Reasconable Accommodation PONCY ...........ouiiuiiiiiiiiiiiii e 36

L= T o o S 36

TIME CFF 38
Recognized Holidays . ... ... e e e 38
Saturday and Sunday Holiday ... 38
Floating HOAAYS ... e e e e 38

R Tz Lo o T == Y = TS 38

Tt == Y= SRR RPPRPPR 40
Catastrophic SiCK LEAVE ... e e e 41

Leave of Absence (Medical and Non-Medical).............uuviiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 43
MIlEANY LBAVE oo e e e e e e 43

M Aty LBV ... it e e e e 44

T oLy == Y U 44
Family MediCal LEAVE..........coooi e e e 44

Paid Family LEaVE ... e e et e e 45
Bereavement LEAVE .......cooii e e e e 45
MANAGEMENT LEAVE ... ... i ettt e e e et e e e e ee et e e e e eeees 45

JUINY DY e e e e 46
RULES AND REGULATIONS 47
F N A= o b= T o S 47

HOUMS OF WOk o e e e 47

D[ T =Y T T L PP 47

ST =T T To L PP 47

R g T ] (] To TR 47
Disaster Relief and Emergency Preparedness ............coooviiiiiiiiiicii e 47
Employment of Relatives, Spouses and Co-Habitants ... 48

Drug Free WOr Place ... ... e e 48

IS (o o o= o PP 48

LTI g To ] = AT ] = 49
Expense ReimbUrsement ... e e e e 49
Infernet and E-Mail ... 50

YVWD Personnel Manual Page iii

Date of Adoption: Nevember 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 56 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250

Page 6 of 82

Electronic Communications ...
SO AN .o
Mileage AlIOWANCE.........coi v
eSS OO .t e e
L LT { o7y 1 0= PP PRSP
WOTK BOOTS ... e
Distribution of Literature ...
Use of Bulletin Boards ... e
Qutside EMpPloyment ...
Personal Phone Calls (Regular & Cellular Phones) ........cccccvvvv
Mail and CorrespoOnNUENCEe.......coui i e
Palitical Activities by District Employees ..o
Certification and LICENSES. ..........o.veii i
Seminar & Tuition Assistance EXPenses ..o
Layoff ProCedUre ... ... e
RESIGNATIONS ... . e e e e
Disciplinary ACHON ...
Management EmMpPIOYEES .. .o e e
Causes OF ACHON ...
A Abuse or Misuse of Leave .........ccooooiii i

B. Behavior ... ...

C. WOork Performance ...

D. Substance ADUSE ...,

Notice of Proposed Disciplinary ACHion .........c.coooi i
A Skelly Hearing - Administrative Review...........c.cccccvvevn.

B. Administrative Review...................cccoiiiiiii

GrievanCe ProCeaUIe.........oiii e e e
Grievance Procedure SIEPS. ..o
General ProviSiONS ..o e
Observance of POlCY.........oooo e
Effectiveness of Provisions...........oooi i,

GENERAL EMPLOYEES MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT (MOA)

General Employees Salary Schedule (As of July 1, 2018) ............ccoe

SUPERVISORY EMPLOYEES MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT (MOA)

Supervisory Employees Salary Schedule (As of July 1, 2018) ...

EXEMPT EMPLOYEES MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT (MOA)

Exempt Employees Salary Schedule (As of July 1, 2018)........cc.c

Receipt and Acknowledgement of Personnel Manual.............. coccoovvievieiieiiiiiens cens

YVYWD Perscnnel Manual
Date of Adoption: Neovember 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 57 of 166

Page iv



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 7 of 82

NOTICE

This Personnel Manual has been prepared to inform you of Yucaipa Valley Water District's
employment practices and policies, as well as the benefits provided to you as a valued employee.

+« The District, at its option, may change, delete, suspend or discontinue any part or all parts of
the policies in this Personnel Manual at any time without prior notice as business, employment
legislation, and economic conditions dictate. Copies of such changes shall be posted upon
the District’s regular bulletin boards and provided to employee unions and bargaining units
within five (5) days of such change. Any such action shall apply to existing as well as to future
employees.

+ Employees shall not accrue eligibility for monetary or advanced leave benefits that they have
not become eligible for through actual time worked.

+ Employees shall not accrue eligibility for any benefits, rights, or privileges beyond the last day
worked.

+ No one other than the District’'s Board of Directors or General Manager may alter or modify
any of the policies in this Personnel Manual. Any alteration or modification of the policies in
this Personnel Manual must be in writing.

» No statement or promise by a supervisor, manager, or Board Member, past or present, may
be interpreted as a change in policy nor will it constitute an agreement with an employee.

+ Should any provision in this Personnel Manual be found to be unenforceable and invalid by a
court or tribunal of competent jurisdiction, such finding does neot invalidate the entire Personnel
Manual, but only that particular provision.

+ This Personnel Manual replaces (supersedes) any and all other or previous Personnel
Manuals, or other policies whether written or oral.

s The most recent Memoranda of Understanding (MOU) for each bargaining units is attached
as Appendices.

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 1
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 58 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 8 of 82

INTRODUCTION

This personnel manual summarizes the major employee wages, benefits, procedures, services, and
employment policies of the District. You are responsible for becoming familiar with its contents so
that you will have a basic understanding of the District’s programs and policies. You are responsible
for knowledge of this manual's contents and are encouraged to direct any questions you may have
as 1o the interpretation, implementation or application to your immediate supervisor, utilizing the
chain-of-command.

Some divisions or departments within the District have additicnal policies and procedures that are
necessary for their internal operations. It is also your responsibility to become familiar with those
policies, procedures and practices. Additionally, sometimes a program or benefit applies to only
one division or department and therefore may not be discussed here.

This manual is based on federal and state law, District Board ordinances or resolutions,
administrative policies, or agreements with employee organizations, unions, and bargaining units,
all of which may change. It summarizes those source documents; it does not amend or replace
them. Consequently, the District reserves the right to amend, supplement or rescind any provisions
of this manual. Additional or replacement pages will be provided as they are published and shall
serve to cancel or supersede prior subjects within their scope.

Please feel free to offer suggestions for improving this manual to your supervisor.

Management Rights

The California Water Code provides that the General Manager shall have the full power and
authority to employ and discharge all employees and assistants at pleasure, prescribe duties of
employees and assistants, and fix and alter the compensation of employees and assistants.
(Section 30580.)

In order to ensure that the District is able to efficiently carry out its functions and responsibilities as
prescribed by law, the District has the exclusive right to manage and direct the District services and
the work force performing such services. Therefore, the following matters are not subject to the
meet and confer process:

. Determine the mission of each of its operations;

. Establish the merits, necessity or organization of any service or activity provided by law;

. Direct the work of the District employees;

. Set standards of service;

. Determine the overall responsibilities of employees assigned to carry cut the various
operations of the District;

. Take disciplinary action;

. Take all necessary action to carry out the functions of the District in emergency situations;

. Determine the methods, means and personnel by which operations are to be conducted,;

. Determine the budget and organization of the District;

. Lay off employees because of lack of work or for other legitimate reasons;

. Determine the content of job classifications;

. Expand or diminish services;

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 2

Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 59 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 9 of 82

. Subcontract any work or operations that is not expressively contained in current job

descriptions allocated to employee bargaining units;

Determine the size and composition of the work force and determine work assignments;

Establish and change work schedules and assignments;

Establish the days and hours when employees shall work;

Establish reasonable work and safety rules and regulations in order to maintain efficiency

and economy desirable in the performance of District services;

. To hire, promote, demote, transfer, terminate, classify, and reasonably accommodate
qualified employees within the District; and

. Take appropriate action it deems necessary in an emergency.

The exercise of the foregoing powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities by the District,
the adoption of policies, rules, regulations and practices in furtherance thereof, and the use of
judgment and discretion in connection therewith, shall be limited only by the specific and express
terms of this manual and then only to the extent such specific and express terms are in conformance
with law.

YVWD General Employee Bargaining Unit

The Board of Directors recognizes the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers (IBEW),
hereinafter referred to as the Union, as the exclusive bargaining body representing the general
classification employees. The Union is the recognized group for exclusive rights to meet and confer
on all matters pertaining to wages, benefits and working conditions for all regular employees of the
District, exclusive of supervisory, management and confidential employees. Employees shall have
the right to join or not to joint the Union.

YVWD Supervisory Bargaining Unit

The Board of Directors recognizes the Yucaipa Valley Water District Supervisory Bargaining Unit
as the exclusive bargaining body representing the supervisory employees who are classified as
supervisors.

YVWD Exempt Bargaining Unit

The Board of Directors recognizes the Yucaipa Valley Water District Exempt Bargaining Unit as
the exclusive bargaining body representing the employees who are classified as exempt.

Confidential Employee Bargaining Unit

A "confidential employee" means an employee who is required to develop or present
management positions with respect to meeting and conferring or whose duties normally require
access to confidential information which contributes significantly to the development of such
management position. Confidential employees shall be represented by the Supervisory Bargaining
Unit.

END OF SECTION

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 3
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 60 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 10 of 82

YOU AND YOUR JOB

SELECTION PROCEDURES

The District is confident that as a result of the mutual selection process undertaken, your
employment will prove to be beneficial to the Yucaipa Valley Water District as well as yourself
and we look forward to having you join us.

We carefully select our employees through written applications, job related testing, personal
interviews and reference checks. After all available information was considered and evaluated;
you were selected to become a member of our team!

This selection process helps the District find and employ people who are concemed with their
own personal success and the success of YVWD,; people who want to do a job well; pecple who
can carry on their work with skill and ability; and people who are comfortable with YYWD and who
can work well with our team.

A. Employee Background Check — The District conducts job-related background checks prior
to hiring employees. A comprehensive background check may consist of prior
employment verification, professional reference checks, criminal, education confirmation
and/or driving record history. As appropriate, a credit check, may have also been
obtained.

B. Credit Investigation — Following the requirements imposed by the Federal-Truth-In-
Lending and the Fair Credit Reporting Acts (a federal statute that regulates the activities
of consumer reporting agencies and users of credit reports, and protects consumers from
invasions of privacy by placing certain restrictions on persons who may use or disseminate
credit information about consumers) the District may conduct a pre-employment credit
check, generally for those applicants for positions that involve financial responsibility.
Your employment with the District may be conditional upon our review of the information
in the credit check. The District reserves the right to conduct this credit check at any time
after you have been employed. Employees are entitled to certain legal rights to discover
and to dispute or explain any information prepared by the credit checking company.

C. Criminal Records — As part of the District’'s zero-tolerance Violence in the Workplace
Policy, YVYWD will conduct a pre-employment criminal check on all applicants. The
criminal record is checked to protect the District’s interest and that of its employees and
customers.

D. Driver’s License and Driving Record — Employees whose work requires the operation of a
motor vehicle (and employees who may drive District vehicles) must present and maintain
a valid and appropriate driver's license and a driving record acceptable to our insurer. To
be eligible to drive District vehicles, employees will be required to provide the District with
an annual authorization for the release of driver record information consistent with the
DMV Employee Pull Notice Program. The District will receive regular updates of your
driving record directly from the California Department of Motor Vehicles. Any changes in
your driving record must be reported to your supervisor immediately. Failure to do so may
result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination.

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 4
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 61 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 11 of 82

E. Health Examinations — Upon extension of a conditional offer of employment, the District
reserves the right to require an employee's participation in a health examination to
determine the employee's ability for performing his or her essential job functions. The
District shall pay for all pre-employment health exams.

Physical Examinations and Fitness for Duty

The District retains the right to employ and retain persons who have physical and mental health

consistent with the bana fide requirements of the position to be filled. It is further the policy of the

District not to discriminate against applicants or candidates for employment because of physical or

mental disabilities or medical conditions, when such disabilities can be reasonably accommodated.

. Successful candidates for initial employment, employees promoted, and employees rehired
after a layoff will be required to successfully pass a physical examination prescribed by the
District to ascertain if the physical or mental requirements of the position may be
accomplished with or without reasonable accommodation.

. All physical examinations prescribed by the District shall be performed by a licensed
physician approved and paid for by the District.
. In order to determine if job performance is impaired, the General Manager may require an

employee to undergo a physical or behavioral examination at any time, with the examination
paid for by the District. Upon reasonable suspicion, this examination may include drug and
alcohol testing.

Fair and Equal Employment

It is the District's policy to employ, retain, promote, terminate and otherwise treat any and all
employees and job applicants on the basis of merit, qualification and competence. This policy shall
be applied without regard tc an individual's race, religicus creed, color, national origin, U.S.
veteran's status, ancestry, mental or physical disability, medical condition, age, marital status or sex
(including sexual preference). Consideration for such personnel transactions shall be based upon
a bona fide occupational qualification, business necessity, and applicable security regulations.

Annual Evaluations

All employees (other than new employees serving their probationary period) shall receive annual
evaluations during March of each calendar year completed by the employees’ immediate supervisor
and reviewed by the Department Manager prior to submittal to the General Manager.

New Employees

The first day of employment shall be considered the employee's "Hire Date" for calculations of
employment seniority and benefit calculations. The “Anniversary Date” shall be the later of the
“Hire Date” or the first day following a promotion for purposes of salary administration and benefit
calculations. All new employees shall have their starting salary placed within the range assigned
for their classification and shall be subject to a minimum one-year introductory period beginning
on the first day of employment. If necessary, the District may extend an employee's probation
period for up to three more months (for a total of 15 months) for reasons of performance
deficiency.

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 5
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 62 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 12 of 82

After completing the initial probationary period, an employee shall be promoted to permanent status
and the employee shall be eligible for regular merit increases consistent with the other members of
their bargaining group.

Promotions & Demotions

A promotion is defined as a regular change in an assigned position which encompasses a significant
change in skill level, respensibility, authority and/or accountability. When an employee is promoted,
he/she shall be placed upon the schedule in a new range in such a manner as to reflect a minimum
3% increase, independent of merit considerations. A promotion/demotion to a new range in the
District’s salary schedule shall be at the discretion and approval of the General Manager.

An existing employee being placed in a new classification as a result of a promotion shall be subject
to a six-month (1040 hours of paid status) introductory pericd beginning at the first day of the pay
period in the newly assigned classification. This date shall then be established as the employee's
new Anniversary Date. In the event of an unsuccessful completion of the introductory period, as
the result of a promotion, the employee shall then be returned to the range, salary, and classification
previously occupied, and the “Anniversary Date” shall remain as it was prior to the
promotion/demotion. In the event of an unsuccessful introductory period as a result of a demotion,
additional disciplinary proceedings may be initiated.

Following the successful completion of the introductory period, the promoted/demoted employee
shall receive notice stating the successful completion of the introductory period.

Reclassification of Employees

The General Manager shall make periodic studies of the classification of District staff and
reclassify employees to a more appropriate classification. If an occupied position is reclassified
the incumbent shall be affected as follows:

A To a Lower Classification. When a position is reallocated to a lower classification, the
incumbent is transferred to a vacant position in the lower classification. If the incumbent's
current salary is greater than the range maximum (not bonus maximum) of the lower
classification, the employee will be Y-rated at his/her current salary until the salary of the
lower classification is at or above the incumbent’s current salary.

B. To a Different Classification With the Same Salary Range. When a position is reallocated
to a different classification with the same salary range, the incumbent shall be granted the
same status in the new classification as was held in the other classification and shall be
paid at the same within the range.

C. To a Higher Classification. When a position is reclassified to a classification with a higher
salary range, the incumbent is moved into the higher classification with the position, except
in the circumstances prescribed below.

1. If the reclassification is based on duties and responsibilities that are substantially
different in nature from the position's current classification or are not a natural
progression or expansion of the current classification, then the position must be
filled through a competitive selection process. If the incumbent is not successful

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 6
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 63 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 13 of 82

in this recruitment process, she/he would be assigned to any vacant position in a
comparable or lower class for which the employee meets the minimum
qualifications or would be laid off per the provisions of District policy.

2. In the situation described above, the incumbent may be granted temporary status
in the higher-level classification until the selection process is completed.

D. Introductory Period Following Reclassification. If an employee in the introductory pericd
is reclassified, the employee must serve the remainder of the introductory period to attain
permanent status. Employees of permanent status will not be placed in an introductory
period following reclassification.

Classifications of Employment

A Exempt and Non-Exempt Employees

All employee positions are defined as exempt or non-exempt in accordance with the
provisions of the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA).

Non-exempt employees are covered by the overtime pay and other provisions as described
in this manual and entitled to pay or compensatory time off calculated at the rate of 1-1/2
times for work performed over 40 hours within the defined workweek.

Exempt employees are ineligible for overtime pay and other employment conditions.
Generally, those employees occupy executive, administrative or professional positions, and
serve at the pleasure of the General Manager.

Exempt employees are not compensated on an hourly basis and leave usage is on a half-
day basis. Based on the regulations provided by the Internal Revenue Service, the
members of the Board of Directors shall be considered exempt employees and shall not be
entitled to the overtime provisions contained herein.

B. Introductory Period and Evaluations for New Employees

All new employees shall have their starting salary placed within the range assigned for
their classification and shall be subject to a minimum one-year introductory period
beginning on the first day of employment. If necessary, the District may extend an
employee's introductory period for up to three more months (for a total of 15 months) for
reasons of performance deficiency. An introductory employee may be terminated by the
District without advance notice and without cause. A written evaluation and confirmation
of satisfactory completion of the introductory period must be completed by the supervisor
and approved by the General Manager for the employee to gain regular status.
Employees failing to successfully complete their one-year introductory period will be
relieved of their duties.

Introductory employees shall be subject to a minimum of 4 evaluations during their one-year
introductory period, generally provided on a quarterly basis.

Introductory employees are not eligible to use vacation (but may be eligible to use Family
Leave if all guideline and requirements are achieved). During the introductory period, new

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 7
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 64 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 14 of 82

employees may use regular sick leave or bereavement leave and will be paid for holidays
in accordance with the provisions of this Manual and the laws of the State of California.

After completing their initial probationary period, new employees shall be promoted to
permanent status and the new employees shall be eligible for merit increases.

C. Intreductory Period for Promoted, Reassigned or Reclassified Employees

The assignment or reassignment of ranges and classifications within the applicable Salary
Schedule resulting from appointments, reclassifications, promotions or demotions, will be at
the discretion and approval of the General Manager.

An existing employee being placed in a new classification (promotions or demotions) shall
be subject to a six-month introductory period beginning at the first day in the newly assigned
classification. This date shall then be established as the employee's new Anniversary Date.
In the event of an unsuccessful completion of the introductory period, as the result of a
promotion, the employee shall then be, if feasible, returned to the position, range and salary
previously occupied, and the Anniversary Date shall remain as it was prior to the promotion.
In the event of an unsuccessful introductory period as a result of a demotion, additional
disciplinary proceedings may be initiated.

Following the successful completion of the introductory pericd, the promoted, reclassified,
or reassigned employee shall receive notice stating the successful completion of the
introductory period.

D. Regular Full-Time Employee
A regular full-time employee is defined as an individual who has satisfactorily completed the
introductory period and works a minimum of 40 hours per week on a continuous basis. An
employee in this status is eligible for all employee benefits provided by the District.

E. Regular Part-Time Employee
A regular part-time employee is defined as an individual who regularly works less than 40
hours per week on a continucus basis, or less than 1,000 hours per year. An employee in
this category is ineligible for employee benefits.

F. Tempaorary Employee
A temporary employee is defined as an individual who works on a periodic basis, within a
limited scope or duration. An employee in this category is ineligible for employee benefits.

Safety equipment including work books will be provided as listed in “Rules and
Regulations/\Work Boots.”

Transfer and Promotion Policy

Any employee involved in a promotion, or movement, to another classification or transfer to another
department shall serve a 6-month introductory period during which time a determination will be
made regarding the employee's ability to perform the duties and assume the responsibilities of the
new position. If it is determined at any time during the introductory period that the employee is not

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 8
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 65 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 15 of 82

satisfactorily performing the duties of the new position, the employee may be returned to the position
previously held, in keeping within business necessity.

Policy Against Harassment in the Workplace

The District is committed to a policy of equal employment opportunity for all applicants and
employees and to providing a work environment that is free of unlawful discrimination. In keeping
with this commitment, the District maintains a policy prohibiting unlawful harassment. Harassment
includes, but is not limited to the following:

A, Verbal Harassment

Examples of verbal harassment include, but are not limited to, epithets, derogatory
comments or slurs based upon race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry,
physical condition, mental disability, medical condition, marital status, sex (including sexual
preference), age, political opinion or affiliation.

B. Physical Harassment

Examples of physical harassment include, but are not limited to, assault, touching,
impeding or blocking movement or any physical interference with normal work or movement
when directed at an individual based upon race, religious creed, color, national origin,
ancestry, physical condition, mental disability, medical condition, marital status, sex
(including sexual preference), age, political opinion or affiliation.

C. Visual Forms of Harassment

Examples of visual forms of harassment include, but are not limited to, derogatory posters,
cartoons or drawings (directed at an individual or present in the work area) based upon race,
religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical condition, mental disability, medical
condition, marital status, sex (including sexual preference), age, political opinion or
affiliation.

D. Sexual Harassment

Examples of sexual harassment include, but are not limited to, any unwelcome sexual
advances or requests for sexual favors or conduct of a sexual nature when (1) submission
to such conduct is explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of an individual's employment,
(2) submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for
decisions affecting that individual, or (3) such conduct has the purpose or effect of
unreasonably interfering with an individual's work performance or creating an intimidating,
hostile or offensive working environment.

E. Resolution Procedure

An employee who believes he or she has been harassed by a co-worker, supervisor, Board
member, or an agent of the District, should promptly report the facts of the incident or
incidents to the General Manager or the President of the Board of Directors if the complaint
is against the General Manager. Upon receipt of a harassment complaint, the General
Manager or the President of the Board of Directors, as appropriate, shall take prompt action

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 9
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 66 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 16 of 82

to conduct a confidential investigation to determine whether harassment has taken place
and/or is presently taking place. Where found appropriate, actions shall be taken to
effectively stop such behavior where it does exist. Any person who is found to condone,
participate, or initiate such harassment will be disciplined, in the form of written warning,
demotion, suspension or termination. No employee will be disciplined or otherwise
retaliated against for initiating a harassment complaint.

F. Disciplinary Procedure

The disciplinary action taken with respect to each violation of this policy will be determined

in conjunction with the seriousness of the particular offense.

1. In the event that a thorough investigation of an alleged incident of harassment
reveals that an employee has not engaged in any actions or conduct constituting
harassment, management will inform both the employee and the complaining party
that a thorough investigation has been conducted and that there exist no grounds or
basis to substantiate the alleged harassment.

2. In the event that a thorough investigation of an alleged incident of harassment
reveals that an employee has engaged in actions or conduct constituting
harassment, progressive disciplinary action will be taken up to and including
termination depending upon the seriousness of the violation. Disciplinary actions
may range from written warnings, suspensions, demotion, discharge, etc., or a
combination of actions.

3. In any case where an investigation has revealed that an employee has engaged in
either egregious or repeated acts of harassment, the employee may be subject to
immediate termination.

The General Manager will document all matters related to complaints of alleged harassment,
including contents of meetings, interviews, results of investigations, and all other actions attendant
to the allegation. ALL documentation must be maintained for all charges, substantiated or
unsubstantiated, in CONFIDENTIAL, SEALED FILES, at the District office or in the offices of its
investigative agent.

Following an investigation and the completion of appropriate corrective measures, management will
advise the complaining party that a thorough investigation has been conducted and that appropriate
corrective action has been taken by management.

Discrimination

Equitable access to programs, services and activities of the District shall be provided to qualified
disabled persons, consistent with the concepts of reasonable accommodation and of business
necessity.

There shall be neo discrimination on the part of the District or the Employee's Association because
of the race, creed, color, sex (including sexual preference), age, national origin or political or
religious belief, physical/mental condition, or veteran status of any employee. Sensitivity training is
available for all departments and can be scheduled through Administration.

END OF SECTION

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 10
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 67 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 17 of 82

MONEY MATTERS

Pay Periods

Pay periods in the District are 2 weeks in duration and end each alternate Sunday at 12 midnight.
Payment for each pay period is made on the Friday following the end of each pay period. The
amount payable is determined by multiplying the monthly salary times 12 and dividing by 26.

Hours worked in excess of 40 hours each week are compensated in accordance with the District's
overtime policy for non-exempt employees.

Salaries

The salaries of all regular employees are established and approved by the Board of Directors. A

copy of the most recently adopted salary schedule is included in this manual. Implementation of
the ACWA Salary Survey or an equivalent salary survey shall be conducted as follows:

Does the implementation of the ACWA Survey on Adjust the salary range consistent
July 1st result in an employee's salary N with the ACWA survey results
o . e —No . i \
below the range minimum in a specific job without adjusting the employee's
classification range within a department? salary
|
Yes

Is there more than one employee in the same job Adjust the salary range consistent

e C - with the ACWA survey results &
classification range (the same job title) within the |—No establish the employee at the new
same department?

| range minimum

Yes

v

With more than one employee in the same
job classification range (the same job title)
within the same department, the salaries of
these employees will be adjusted to
maintain the proportional percentage
difference between employees salaries on
June 30th up to the range maximum

Mandatory Deductions from Paycheck

The District is required by law to make certain deductions from your paycheck each time payroll
is prepared. Among these are your federal, state income taxes, California State Disability
Insurance (EDSDI), and your contribution to Social Security (FICA and Medicare) as required by
law. These deductions will be itemized on your check stub. The amount of the deductions will
depend on your earnings and on the information you furnish on your W-4 form regarding the
number of exemptions you claim. If you wish to modify this number, please request a new W-4

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 11
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 68 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 18 of 82

form from the payroll representative immediately. Only you may modify your W-4 form. Verbal
or written instructions are not sufficient to modify withholding allowances. We advise you to check
your pay stub to ensure that it reflects the proper number of withholdings.

The W-2 form you receive annually reflects how much of your earnings were deducted for these
purpcses.

Any other mandatory deductions to be made from your paycheck, such as court-ordered

garnishments, will be itemized on your check stub whenever the District is ordered to make such
deductions.

Automatic Payroll Deposit

All new employees will be enrolled in the District's automatic payrell deposit program. Automatic
Payroll Deposit is the automatic deposit of your pay into the financial institution account(s) of your
choice. Each employee can arrange to have up to three different automatic deposits debited from
their payroll check. Contact the District's payroll representative for details and the necessary
authorization forms.

Error in Pay

Every effort is made to avoid errors in your paycheck. If you believe an error has been made,
notify the payroll representative immediately. Undue delay in notification may impede the making
of an adjustment. The District's payroll representative will take the necessary steps to research
the problem and to assure that any necessary correction is made promptly.

Overtime

All overtime work must be authorized in advance of work by the employee's supervisor. All hours
worked by a non-exempt employee in excess of 40 hours in the designated workweek shall be
classified as overtime hours and will be compensated at cne and one-half times the employee's
regular rate of pay. Paid leave hours, with the exception of sick leave, will be included in the
calculation for determination of a 40-hour workweek. Benefits are based upon a 40-hour work week,
and overtime hours will not change or otherwise modify benefits or benefit accrual rates.

Unless indicated by the employee and approved by the supervisor at the time the overtime hours
are worked, all overtime hours earned will be automatically paid in the next pay period. All overtime
hours earned in excess of the 40 hours will be automatically paid in the next pay period. Hours
physically worked in excess of 8 hours per day (or 10 hours per day) shall be paid at 1-1/2 times
the employee's regular rate of pay.

Non-exempt employees accruing in excess hours of the standard workweek may, at the discretion
of their supervisor, exchange such accrued excess hours in the form of compensatory time -- that
is time off with pay. Employees shall log such excess hours with their supervisor. Such
compensatory time may be used subject to the needs of the District at a 1-1/2 rate per ane hour of
overtime worked, not to exceed an accrual of 40 hours of compensatory time without the permission
of the General Manager.

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 12
Date of Adopticn: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 69 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 19 of 82

Non-exempt employees can accrue up to a maximum of 40 hours of compensatory time per year
after which it shall be automatically paid as specified above. The calculation of the annual period
shall begin on November 1% of each year and end on October 31%. Any unused accrued
compensatory time on October 31% shall be paid on or before November 30" at the employees’
current rate of pay.

An employee can use compensatory time off where: (1) the employee voluntarily requests the time

off in writing; (2) such time is used during regular work hours; and (3) the employee’s supervisor
approves the request for time off;

Salary Review Policy

Job descriptions have been prepared which define typical duties (essential and marginal) that an
employee is expected to perform in each classification. They are not intended to limit the work
which may be performed as other tasks may be assigned that are similar to but not exactly as that
task an employee is normally expected to do. Departmental duty statements may further define
work requirements. Additionally, since the District work force is limited, extenuating circumstances
may dictate an employee's performance on occasion in new endeavors, owing to emergencies, or
efficient use of existing work force.

All positions in the service of the District are evaluated according to their relative worth. Positions
that are similar in type of work, level of difficulty, and level of responsibility are grouped together in
the same class. All positions in the same class are treated alike in such matters as salary and
minimum qualifications.

The General Manager and supervisors will review job duties periodically to determine if a position
has changed substantially. Should such a change occur, the position will be re-evaluated and may
be reclassified accordingly.

Periodically the District may conduct a salary and classification study to assure comparability within
the industry.

Performance Evaluations

All employees’ work performance shall be subject to supervisory review at any time with a formal
evaluation at least once each year, according to a schedule established by the General Manager.
Currently, annual evaluations for all regular employees shall be completed during March of each
year.

Merit Increases

Employees become eligible for merit salary increase consideration until they reach the top of their
respective salary range (Control Point). Each employee is able to receive a merit increase within
their individual classification range, which extends from 83% minimum to 100% (Control Point), with
an additional 5% for exceptional performance.

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 13
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 70 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 20 of 82

The merit salary increases shall be established at 0% to 6%. In accordance with established
negotiated practice, evaluations will be completed in March of each contract year and any merit
increases based thereon shall be effective April 15 of each contract year.

Holiday Pay

For the purpose of this article, holidays are those days designated in the "Time Off* section of this
manual. Any employee required to work on a recognized holiday shall receive payment for hours
actually worked at a rate of 1-1/2 times the employees’ regular rate of pay plus 8 or 10 hours holiday
pay at straight time (as determined by their regular schedule). Employees are not entitled to holiday
pay if they extend a holiday by an unexcused absence on the last regular day before or the next
regular workday after a holiday at your supervisor's discretion.

An employee on a non-paid status the day before and/or after a holiday(s) shall not be entitled to
haoliday compensation.

Employees on an approved medical or temporary military training leave of absence or on leave for
a job-related injury or occupational disease shall be paid holiday pay as provided above.
Employees on jury duty shall be paid holiday pay as provided above for a holiday cbserved during
the period of jury duty service. Employees on other types of leave shall not be eligible for holiday
pay during the duration of their leave of absence.

Standby Duty

A. General Regulations

Standby duty is an assignment of responsibility that includes routine computerized
monitoring and requires individuals to remain available by telephone or District
communications equipment to respond rapidly (in keeping with departmental
standards) to emergency calls after the regular workday, on holidays, and on
wesekends.

The assignment is of 24 hours duration, normally from 12 noon to 12 noon Monday
through Thursday. The weekend assignment is from 12 noon Friday to 12 noon
Monday. The supervisor will establish the work schedule for each employee
assigned the duty and may grant exchanges or waiver of duty for documented
justifiable reason. Employees so assigned are authorized to use the duty truck
provided by the District only for District business.

Field employees subject to be assigned this duty are those who have completed
their introductory period within their department unless otherwise authorized by the
General Manager.

In the event a standby duty truck is not available to be driven home, the personnel
on standby will not be eligible for mileage reimbursement to and from the District.
The costs associated with personal vehicle expenses and telephone expenses, as
well as other related costs, are included in the standby rate of pay.

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 14
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 71 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250

Page 21 of 82

B.

Pay Regulations

The base rate for standby duty shall be equal to the hourly rate of pay of the
employee on call pursuant to the table below.

Description Rate of Pay Information

Water and Sewer Operations
Departments

Three regular hours daily, which includes 1
hour of computer moenitoring and process
adjustments. Additional  computer
monitoring will only be paid with prior
approval from a Supervisor.

Public Works and Environmental
Control Departments

Two hours daily, which includes 1 hour of
computer  monitoring and process
adjustments. Additional monitoring will only
be paid with prior approval from a
Supervisor.

Employee Scheduled Non-Workday

Four hours daily, which includes 1-1/2 hours
of computer monitering and process
adjustments. Additional monitoring will only
be paid with prior approval from a
Supervisor.

Emergency Call Response

Extra compensation in the event assigned
employee responds to a call shall be 1-1/2
times the employee's regular hourly rate for
time worked in response to a call, with a
minimum of 1/2 hour.

10-Hour Workday

The 10-hour workday policy has been designed to allow an alternative schedule for full-time
employees to work a 40-hour week (or 80-hours each pay period). The implementation of this
schedule will necessitate the following:
All operational requirements of the District are met;

Service to the customer must be maintained or improved;

Costs to the District will not be increased;

Each department must be covered during the normal business hours during the five-day

workweek;

The 10-hour workday schedule will not diminish the ability of the District to assign
responsibility and accountability to individual employees for the provision of services and

performance of their duties.

Upon approval by the District Manager and a departmental supervisor, a full-time employee under
the provisions of this policy will have a basic work requirement of eight 10-hour days within an 80-
hour biweekly work period consistent with District payroll cycle. Time off during an employee’s basic

YVWD Perscnnel Manual
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 72 of 166

Page 15



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 22 of 82

work requirement must be charged to the appropriate leave category (such as vacation, sick leave,
compensatory, etc.) according to the work schedule; 10 hours leave for a 10-hour workday.

For holidays, the following policies will be followed:

. A full-time employee who is relieved from working on a day designated as a holiday is
entitled to basic pay for 10 hours.
. If a holiday occurs on the employee’s scheduled day off, that day is still considered to be

a day off, and the employee receives another day off on the next scheduled workday to
observe the holiday.

When an employee is required to work on the employee's fixed day off or beyond the 10-hour
workday, normal compensatory time and overtime provisions shall apply.

In training and/or travel instances, supervisors must ensure that employees complete their 80-
hour workweek requirement. This may require employees to revert to a temporary workday
schedule for that period of time — at your supervisor’s discreticn.

The District provisions related to earning sick, vacation leave, and other types of leaves have as
a frame of reference the 8-hour day with the result that the provisions are stated in terms of “days”.
Such references to day or workday (or to multiples or parts thereaof) shall be considered to be
references to 8 hours. The implementation of a compressed work schedule is not intended to
either decrease or increase any employees existing entitlement to leave or creditable service for
retirement purposes.

Emergency Appointments

Generally, due to unforeseen circumstances, there may be times when employees are required to
substantially fulfill the work responsibilities associated with individuals in higher classifications. The
General Manager will make the determination of when such a condition exists.

When an emergency appointment is necessitated, the employee(s) who are involved will be
appointed to a higher classification and may be compensated as follows:

A Their rate of pay may remain unchanged during the first 80 working days of such an
assignment.
B. After 60 continuous days of such temporary assignment, they shall be paid at the minimum

wage level of the higher classification or at a rate 5 percent greater than their current rate,
whichever is more.

C. In no case shall employees be paid at a rate in excess of the Control Point of the salary
range for the position to which they are temporarily assigned.

D. There is no change in the employee's Anniversary Date as a result of the appointment.

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 16
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 73 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 23 of 82

Director Fees

The members of the Board of Directors shall be compensated at a rate specified by Resolution per
meeting for a maximum of ten meetings per month. Each Director shall be responsible for
submitting a summary of his or her monthly meetings on a District provided form by the fifth day of
the following month. Once received by the District, the meeting form will be processed for payment.
Directors are paid once per month, on the first regular payroll check processed each month.

END OF SECTION

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 17
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 74 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 24 of 82

BENEFITS AND RETIREMENT

Medical, Dental and Vision Insurance

The District contributes a fixed amount per employee per month per bargaining unit MOA. This
amount is to be used toward employee premiums for medical, dental and vision insurance. All
employees shall be required to maintain a minimum level of medical insurance for the employee
through the District’s current medical plan. A spouse and other family members shall be covered
under the District's medical plan at the option of the employee with changes only made during open
enrollment or at other times allowed by the District's medical plan in effect at the time. Any excess
of District fixed contribution shall be applied to individual deferred compensation. Premiums
requiring payment of more than the fixed amount are the responsibility of the employee.

The medical, dental and vision benefits, including but not limited to eligibility, scope of coverage and
limits of reimbursement, are subject to change in keeping with carrier policies, market conditions,
negotiations and business necessity.

A. General Employees: The District shall contribute a monthly amount equal to the average of
the single employee, employee plus spouse, employee plus family plans [DM 18-024].
Below are the premiums for the 2019 calendar year:

2019 Calendar Year Health Benefit
Contribution — General Employees

Single $ 675
Employee +1 $ 1,350
Family $1,755

B. Supervisory Employees: The District shall contribute an equal financial contribution utilizing
a factor of 1.30 applied to the average premium of medical providers except for Health Net
Salud y Mas [DM 18-025]. Below are the premiums for the 2019 calendar year:

2019 Calendar Year Health Benefit
Contribution — Supervisory Employees

Single $ 1,638
Employee +1 $ 1,638
Family $1,638

C. Exempt Employees: The District shall contribute a monthly amount equal to the average of
the single employee, employee plus spouse, employee plus family plans [DM 18-123].
Below are the premiums for the 2019 calendar year:

2019 Calendar Year Health Benefit
Contribution — Exempt Employees

Single $ 675
Employee +1 $1,350
Family $ 1,755
YVWD Perscnnel Manual Page 18

Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 75 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 25 of 82

Group Disability Plan

The District provides all regular full-time employees a fully paid disability insurance plan for
extended iliness or disability. The benefits provided under the group coverage purchased by the
District include a short-term plan provided through the State of California’s S.D.lI. program
(Employees should consult the California State Disability Insurance brochure for details and
conditions of coverage), and a long term private insurance plan providing 66-2/3% of salary
(maximum benefit $3,333/month) beginning after one year of disability and continuing to age 65.
As with all benefits, this is subject to change/modification.

Group Life Insurance

The District maintains in full force and effect term life insurance coverage on all active, regular full-
time employees only; this plan does not cover retirees or inactive employees.

A District paid $65,000 life insurance palicy exists with Nippon Insurance Company for employees,
$10,000 for spouses and $5,000 for dependents. The following rules apply for dependent

coverage:

. A dependent child up to the age of 21;

. A dependent child up to the age of 23 who is a regular full-time student at an accredited
education institution; and

. No coverage is provided if (1) the dependent child/spouse is a full-time member of the armed

forces of any country; (2) the dependent child is married; and (3) the dependent spouse
becomes divarced from you.

Group Vision Plan

The District makes available a vision care plan with the premium for such insurance due payable
by each employee unless there is sufficient unused allowance available from the District's medical,
dental and vision contribution.

Retirement Plan

The District has a Retirement Plan through the Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) to
provide eligible employees (those who have completed sufficient service) with a monthly pension
benefit upon retirement. All regular full-time employees are eligible to participate in the
Retirement Plan. Participation in the Plan begins on your date of hire.

Classic PERS unit members shall be responsible for paying the employee porticn of the PERS
retirement contribution (currently 7%), effective February 26, 2018 [DM 18-024, DM 18-025 and DM
18-026].

Consistent with the Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013, new members entering the
Public Employees’ Retirement System after January 1, 2013, shall contribute 8% of his/her gross
salary to pay for the retirement benefits offered by PERS. A new member includes: (1) a new
hire who is brought into PERS membership for the first time on or after January 1, 2013, and who
has no prior membership in any other California public retirement system; (2) a new hire who is
brought into PERS membership for the first time on or after January 1, 2013, and who is not

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 19
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 76 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 26 of 82

eligible for reciprocity with another California public retirement system; or (3) a member who
established PERS membership prior to January 1, 2013, and who is hired by a different PERS
employer after January 1, 2013, after a break in service of greater than six months.

Upon retirement or death, the District will pay up to 100% of the accrued sick leave to the employee
or the employee’s beneficiary depending on the years of service based on the following schedule:

Number of Years of Amount of Sick Leave Paid to Employee

Continuous Service to the District {or Beneficiary upon death of employee)
Upto Ten (10) Years 50%
Ten (10) to Fifteen {15) Years 60%
Fifteen (15) to Twenty {(20) Years 70%
Twenty (20) to Twenty-Five (25) Years 80%
Twenty-Five (25) to Thirty (30) Years 90%
Thirty Years (30) or Greater 100%

Retirement shall be generally defined as a separation from District service, as governed by the
contracts between the Board of Directors and the Board of Administration of the Public Employees
Retirement System, by virtue of the employee’s/retiree’s actual or pending receipt of a regular
retirement annuity.

Retirement Health Coverage

The District pays retired employee's medical premium until the age of 65 with the requirement that
the employee is vested with 10 years of regular, uninterrupted service and is at least 55 years of
age at retirement. Employees retiring to a location not honoring the District's current plan shall
receive the equivalent dollar amount of the "Employee only" premium for use toward an employee
selected health plan.

This retirement health coverage will not be available for employees hired after July 1, 1999 [DM 99-
008].

Flexible Spending Accounts

The Yucaipa Valley Water District offers Flexible Spending Accounts (FSA) to set up through a
cafeteria plan. An FSA allows an employee to set aside a portion of earnings to pay for qualified
expenses as established in the cafeteria plan, most commeonly for medical expenses but often for
dependent care or other expenses. Money deducted from an employee's pay into an FSA is not
subject to payroll taxes, resulting in payroll tax savings. One significant disadvantage to using an
FSA is that funds not used by the end of the plan year are lost to the employee, known as the "use
it or lose it" rule.

AFLAC Supplemental Plans

The Yucaipa Valley Water District offers AFLAC Supplemental Plans which provide a full range of
worksite services and payroll-deducted insurance policies offered on a voluntary basis. AFLAC
offers policies that are pre-tax eligible and are portable and guaranteed-renewable.

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 20
Date of Adopticn: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 77 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 27 of 82

COBRA Benefits

Under Federal law, known as the Consolidated Omnibus Reconciliation Act of 1985 (COBRA),
most employers spensoring group health plans (“Plan”) are required to offer employees and their
eligible dependents the opportunity for temporary extension of health coverage (called
"continuous coverage") at group rates in certain instances where coverage under the plan would
otherwise end. This portion of the Personnel Manual is intended to inform you in a summary
fashion, of your rights and obligations under the continuation coverage provisions of the law. Both
you and your dependents should take the time to read this portion of the Personnel Manual
carefully.

If you are an employee covered by the District health insurance plan, you have the right to choose
continuation coverage for yourself if you lose group health coverage for any of the following
reasons:

+ The hours of your employment were reduced; or

+ Your employment with the District ends for any reason other than your gross misconduct.

If you are a spouse of an employee covered by the District health insurance plan, you have the
right to choose continuation coverage for yourself if you lose group health coverage for any of the
following reasons:

+ The death of your spouse;

s A termination of your spouse’s employment with the District for any reason other than
gross misconduct;
Spouse’s reduction in hours of employment with the District;
Spouse’s change to a non-benéefits eligible position;
Divorce or legal separation from your spouse; or,
Your spouse becomes entitled to Medicare.

If you are a dependent child of an employee covered by the District's health plan, you have the
right to continuation coverage if group health coverage under the District plan is lost for any of the
following reasons:

+ The death of the parent;

¢ The termination of the parent's employment with the District for any reason other than
gross misconduct;
Parent’s reduction in hours of employment with the District;
Parent's change to a non-benefits eligible position;
Parent’s divorce or legal separation;
The covered parent becomes entitled to Medicare; or
You cease to be a "dependent child" under the Plan, due to age and/or student status
change.

Under the law, the employee or a family member must inform the District of a divorce, legal
separation, or a child losing dependent status under the District’'s medical plan within 6C days of
such event. If the District’s payroll representative does not receive notice within that 60-day
period, the dependent will not be entitled to choose continuation coverage.

When the District's payroll representative is notified that one of these events has happened, you
will in turn be notified of your right to choose continuation coverage. Under the law, you have 60
days from the later of the date you would lose coverage because of one of the events described

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 21
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 78 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 28 of 82

above or the date you receive your COBRA Notice, to inform the District’s payroll representative
that you wish to elect continuation coverage.

If you do not choose continuation coverage, your group health insurance will end as of the date
coverage would cease as a result of the qualifying event.

If you choose continuation coverage, the District is required to give you coverage which, as of the
time coverage is being provided, is identical to the coverage provided under the Plan to similarly
situated employees or family members. If coverage under the Plan is changed for active
employees, the same changes will be provided to individuals purchasing continuation coverage.
You will be provided with notification of any plan changes. In the event that a child is born to you
or placed in your home for adoption during your period of COBRA coverage, the child shall be a
qualified beneficiary and may be covered immediately so long as you have informed the
appropriate carrier(s) within 30 days.

The COBRA law lists specific times when continuation coverage may be terminated. The
terminating events that follow are the only times when an employer may cancel COBRA coverage
and be in compliance with the law. Coverage may be cancelled at the earliest of the following:

+ Eighteen months from the event date for individuals whose coverage ended because of a
termination or reduction of hours.

+ Twenty-Nine months from the event date for individuals whose coverage ended because
of a termination or reduction of hours, and the continuation coverage was extended due
to a Qualified Beneficiary's Social Security disability determination.

s Thirty-Six months (for spouse and dependents only):

o From the event date for individuals whose coverage ended because of the death
of the employee, divorce/legal separation, a dependent child ceasing to be a
dependent or the employee’s Medicare entitlement.

o From the date of the employee’s Medicare entitlement (where insurance coverage
is not lost) that precedes a termination or reduction of hours by 18 months or less.

The law also provides that your continuation coverage may be discontinued for any of the
following reasons:
s The District no longer provides group health coverage to its employees;
s The premium for your continuation coverage is not paid in a timely fashion;
¢ You have been covered under another group health plan which either contains no pre-
existing conditions limitations or contains such a limitation which you have satisfied with
proof of credible coverage;
* You become entitled to Medicare; or,

In the case of the 11-month extended coverage due to disability, that coverage will be terminated
as of the first month that starts at least 30 days after a final determination under the Social Security
Act, that you are no longer disabled.

You do not have to prove evidence of insurability to choose continuation coverage. However,
under the law, you will be required to pay the group rate premium (both employee and employer
portion) plus a 2% administration fee for your continuation coverage. You will have a grace period
of 45 days from the date of your election of COBRA coverage to pay any retroactive premium for
the period from the date continuation coverage starts until the date you choose continuation
coverage; and you will have a grace period of 30 days to pay any subsequent premiums.

YVWD Perscnnel Manual Page 22
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 79 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 29 of 82

Deferred Compensation

The District offers employees the ability to voluntarily participate in one of two 457(b) deferred
compensation programs. The two programs are administered by VOYA Financial Services and
the California Public Employees’ System (CalPERS).

Based on the rules and regulations of the 457(b) programs, employees are eligible to contribute
to deferred compensation in a number of different ways.

A Payroll Deduction — One oppoertunity for confributing to the deferred compensation
program is through a payroll deduction. The District’s payroll representative has additional
information on the amount of contribution that is allowed under this provision.

B. Allocation of Unused Medical, Dental and Vision Contribution — As discussed above, the
District contributes a fixed monthly amount to employees and directors for medical, dental
and vision benefits. An unused portion of this fixed contribution by the District can be
applied to deferred compensation. If the unused portion of the medical, dental and vision
benefit exceeds the maximum allowable contribution to the deferred compensation
program made by the employee, or if the employee is equal to or greater than 65 years
old, the employee may elect to receive the balance of the unused medical benéefit in cash.
In order for the employee to receive the remainder of the unused benefit in cash, the
employee must make, or has attained, the maximum allowable monthly and/or annual
contribution to the District's 457(b) deferred compensation program. The District’'s payroll
representative has additicnal information on the amount of contribution that is allowed
under this provision.

C. Conversion of Accrued Sick Leave to Deferred Compensation — District employees with
an excess of 400 hours of sick leave are also eligible to convert sick leave based on the
maximum contribution amounts allowed by the 457(b) regulations. At no time can an
employee contribute sick leave hours to deferred compensation with a balance of sick
leave below 400 hours. The District's payroll representative has additional information on
the amount of contribution that is allowed under this provision [DM 13-081, DM 13-083
and DM 13-084].

D. Conversion of Accrued Sick Leave to Medical Premiums — District employees with an
excess of 400 hours of sick leave are also eligible to convert sick leave up to 8 hours per
month at the employee’s current hourly rate of pay as a contribution to medical premiums.
The conversion of accrued sick leave shall not exceed the dollar difference between the
total family medical premium and the amount of medical premium contributed by the
District. At no time can an employee contribute sick leave hours for additional medical
premiums with a balance of sick leave below 400 hours. The District's payroll
representative has additional information on the amount of contribution that is allowed
under this provision [DM 13-081, DM 13-083 and DM 13-084].

E. Employer Contributions and Matching Funds to Deferred Compensation — The District
shall contribute per the Bargaining Unit MOA per pay period on behalf of covered
employees. This employee deferred compensation contribution shall be applied to the
employee’s deferred compensation account first, thereby allowing employees to receive
any remaining unused medical, dental or vision benefits in the form of cash as provided in
Paragraph B above [DM 12-G82, DM 12-083 and DM (09-080].

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 23
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 80 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 30 of 82

Employee Group Employer Contribution Match Required
General Employees $125 per pay period Yes
Supervisory Employees See below Yes
Exempt Employees See below No

Supervisory Employees: The District will contribute a matched amount per payroll period
based on the annual Internal Revenue Code 457(b) Contribution Limit multiplied by a
factor of 0.014. The annual Internal Revenue Code 457(b) shall not include catch up
provisions. At no time shall the calculated dollar amount per pay period increase by more
than $15 per employee after January 1, 2013.

Exempt Employees: The District shall adjust the deferred compensation contribution to
non-overtime eligible Exempt Employees as follows: 67% of the maximum contribution
amount for individuals under 49 years not to exceed and annual adjustment of more than
$20.00 per payroll period each year.

The method of deferred compensation contribution in Section B discussed above also applies to
the Board of Directors.

Workers' Compensation

All employees are entitled to Workers' Compensation benefits. This coverage is automatic and
immediate and protects you from an on-the-job injury. An on-the-job injury is defined as an
accidental injury suffered in the course of your work, or an illness which is directly related to
performing your assigned job duties. The District pays for this job-injury insurance. If you cannot
work due to a job-related injury or illness, Workers' Compensation insurance pays your injury
related medical bills and provides a portion of your income until you can return to work.

Consistent with District practice, the difference between the daily amount of salary supplemented
by Workers” Compensation benefits and your regular full salary may be assessed against your
accrued sick leave, at the appropriate hourly rate to make your salary whole. You may elect to
pro-rate other available leaves (i.e. compensatory time, vacation leave, et cetera) in the event
that your personal sick leave has become exhausted.

All injuries or illnesses arising out of the scope of your employment must be reported to your
supervisor immediately. Prompt reporting is the key to prompt benefits. Benefits are automatic,
but nothing can happen until your employer knows about the injury. Insure your right to benefits
by reporting every injury, no matter how slight.

Although the District will pay for the time lost because of a work-related accident during the
remainder of the normal workday in which the accident occurs, Workers' Compensation payments
for lost wages aren't made for the first 3 calendar days. However, if you're hospitalized or off wark
more than 14 calendar days, payments will be made even for the first 3 days.

Employees returning to work after being absent due to a work-related injury must report to their
supervisor prior to beginning work and must bring a doctor's clearance for returning to work.

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 24
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 81 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 31 of 82

Unemployment Compensation

Depending upon the circumstances, employees may be eligible for Unemployment Compensation
upon termination of employment with the District. Eligibility for Unemployment Compensation is
determined by the Division of Unemployment Insurance of the State Department of Labor. The
District pays the entire cost of this insurance program.

Unemployment compensation is designed to provide you with a temporary income when you are
out of work through no fault of your own. For your claim to be valid, you must have a minimum
amount of earnings determined by the State, and you must be willing and able to work. You
should apply for benefits through the local State Unemployment Office as soon as you become
unemployed.

Social Security

The United States Government operates a system of mandated insurance known as Social
Security. As a wage earner, you are required by law to contribute a set amount of your wages to
the trust fund from which benefits are paid. As your employer, the District is required to deduct
this amount from each paycheck you receive. In addition, the District matches your contribution
as mandated, thereby paying approximately half of the cost of your Social Security benefits. Your
Social Security number is used to record your earnings. Employees are encouraged to protect
your Saocial Security record by ensuring your name, address, and Social Security number on your
W-2 Form are correct. You may also want to make sure your earnings statement is accurate
each year by requesting a Personal Earnings and Benefit Estimate Statement from the U.S. Social
Security Administration by calling 1-8C00-772-1213 or you may even access them on-line at
WWW.55a.g0V.

END OF SECTION

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 25
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 82 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 32 of 82

SAFETY ISSUES

General Safety

Employee safety is of utmost concern and each employee is expected to exercise safe work
practices for his/her own benefit and the benefit and welfare of his/her co-workers. Respaonsibility
for each employee’s safety rests with each individual, and where unsafe work practices or work
conditions exist, employees shall notify their supervisor immediately. Each department will hold
safety meetings among employees regularly and records kept of the subject matter discussed and
those in attendance. Employees injured on the job in the course of their duties shall notify their
supervisor immediately or within 24 hours so that proper documentation can be provided.

The District strongly encourages you to communicate with your supervisor regarding safety
issues.

What to Do If You Are Injured at Work

District employees are covered under the Workers' Compensation Laws of the State of California.
These laws are intended to provide employees with medical care and treatment for injuries sustained
in the course of their work. The Workers' Compensation Fund will also provide weekly benefits to
those employees who are unable to work due to job-related illness or injury.

In order to be eligible for and receive benefits, the Workers' Compensation fund requires that certain
steps be taken, and certain documents be filed. In conjunction with their requirements, the District
also has certain requirements that must be met in order for the employee to receive benéefits.

The following steps must be followed in order for injured employees to be covered in a timely and
efficient manner. The establishment of these steps constitutes the written policy of the District, and
failure on the part of an injured employee to follow these steps may be cause for disciplinary action
up to and including termination. Moreover, pursuant to law, an injured employee who fails to properly
notify his/fher employer of a work-related injury may forfeit benefit entitlement.

A. Every work-related injury/illness, no matter how minor must be reported immediately to
your supervisor. If unable to locate your supervisor, report to the payroll representative.

B. If the injury/illness is not an emergency, the supervisor will send the employee to the
payroll representative. The payroll representative will give the employee a U.S.
Healthworks Medical Group — San Bernardino Treatment Authorization Form located at
599 Inland Center Drive, Suite 105, San Bernardino, California. All injured employees,
unless it's an emergency, should report to this facility regardless if it's after hours or
weekends. The clinic is open 24 hours, 7 days a week, including holidays. If the
injuryfillness is an “emergency”, please call 911 immediately or report to the nearest
emergency facility.

C. The payroll representative will also give the employee the following forms for completion:

1. Employee’s Claim for Worker's Compensation Benefits (SCIF 3301/DWC Form)
2. Your Guide to Worker's Compensation (pamphlet #13710)

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 26
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 83 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 33 of 82

3. Incident Notification Form (in-house form to be completed by the injured employee)

D. If the injury occurs after hours or on a weekend, the employee must report the incident
immediately to his/her supervisor and the payroll representative on the first business day
following the injury. Do not hesitate to contact your supervisor at home after normal
business hours.

E. The payroll representative is responsible for the processing of the required documents to
the District's Workers™ Compensation carrier.

Different injury situations will require different actions by the injured employee, and the following
situations are presented separately so that you, as an injured employee, know what to do.

Work Place Violence

Violence in the workplace will not be tolerated. The following definitions are an important part of
this policy:

A Act of Violence - The deliberate exertion of force against the person or property of an
individual or group of individuals so as to cause physical injury or emotional harm to the
targeted individual(s) or to third parties or result in damage to property.

B. Threat of Violence — The threat by speech or overt action, to engage in an act of violence
as defined above. An expression of intent to cause physical harm.

C. Physical Attack — An aggression resulting in physical harm.

D. Harassment — The act of someone creating a hostile environment through unwelcome
words, actions, or physical contact not resulting in physical harm. Examples include, but
are not limited to, physical abuse, sexual assault whether completed or attempted, battery,
vandalism, arson, menacing and stalking.

The District encourages employees to report all incidents of violence in the work place. Incidents

of threats, harassment, and other aggressive behavior should be immediately reported to a
District supervisor.

Reporting Safety Issues

All accidents, injuries, potential safety hazards, safety suggestions and health and safety related
issues must be reported immediately to your supervisor. If you or another employee is injured,
you should contact cutside emergency response agencies, if needed. If an injury does not require
medical attention, a Supervisor and Employee Report of Accident Form must still be completed
in case medical treatment is later needed and to ensure that any existing safety hazards are
corrected. The Employee's Claim for Worker's Compensation Benefits Form must be completed
in all cases in which an injury requiring medical attention has occurred. See the prior section of
this manual on “What to Do If You Are Injured At Worl.

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 27
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 84 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 34 of 82

Entering and Leaving the Premises

At the time you are hired, you will be advised about the proper entrances and exits for employees,
as well as unauthorized areas, if any. Employees should not be in District work areas except for
their regularly scheduled or overtime shifts or attendance at a District authorized meeting. For
insurance purposes, unescorted or unauthorized visitors in our facilities are prohibited. If you are
expecting visitors, such as clients, customers or friends, please notify your supervisor. Certain
employees are authorized to arm and disarm the building alarms. If so, you will be given
instruction on the alarms and codes. You are expected to abide by these rules at all times. Failure
to do so will lead to disciplinary action.

Security Checks — Packages/Parcels

The District may exercise its right to inspect all packages and parcels entering and leaving our
premises.

Parking Lot

You are encouraged to use the parking areas designated for our employees. Please keep in mind
that the parking spaces adjacent to or in front of our building(s) are for customers and visitors
only. Remember to lock your car every day and park within the specified areas.

Courtesy and common sense in the parking lot will help eliminate accidents, personal injuries,
damage to your vehicle and to the vehicles of other employees. Remember that the area around
all buildings, especially the District's administration building, has a great deal of pedestrian
walking activity — please maintain a safe driving speed at all times. If you should damage another
car while parking or leaving, immediately report the incident, along with the license numbers of
both vehicles and any other pertinent information you may have, to your supervisor.

The District cannot be and is not responsible for any loss, theft or damage to your vehicle or any
of its contents.

Safety Rules

Safety is everybody's business. Safety is to be given primary importance in every aspect of
planning and performing all District activities. We want to protect you against industrial injury and
illness, as well as minimize the potential loss of production.

Below are some general safety rules to assist you in making safety a regular part of your work.
Your supervisor may post other safety procedures in your department or work area.

A. Working Safely - Safety is everyone's responsibility. Remind your co-workers about safe
work methods. Start work on any machine only after safety procedures and requirements
have been explained. Immediately report any suspected hazards and all accidents to your
supervisor.

YVWD Perscnnel Manual Page 28
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 85 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 35 of 82

B. Lifting - Ask for assistance when lifting heavy objects or moving heavy furniture. Bend
your knees, get a firm grip on the object, hold it close to your body and space your feet for
good balance. Lift using your stronger leg muscles, not your weaker back muscles.

C. Materials Handling - Do not throw objects. Always carry or pass them. Use flammable
items, such as cleaning fluids, with caution. Also, stack materials only to safe heights.

D. Trash Disposal - Keep sharp objects and dangerous substances out of the trash can.
Items that require special handling should be disposed of in approved containers.

E. Cleaning Up - To prevent slips and tripping, clean up spills and pick up debris immediately.

F. Preventing Falls - Keep aisles, work places and stairways clean, clear and well lighted.
Walk, do not run. Watch your step.

G. Handling Tools - Exercise caution when handling objects and tools. Do not use broken,
defective or greasy tools. Use tools for their intended purpose only. Wear safety glasses
or goggles whenever using a power tool.

H. Falling Objects - Store objects and tools where they won't fall. Do not store heavy cobjects
or glass on high shelves.

. Work Areas - Keep cabinet doors, file cabinets, and desk drawers closed when not in use.
Remove or pad torn, sharp corners and edges. Open only one drawer at a time.

J. Using Ladders - Place ladders securely. Do not stand on boxes, chairs or other devices
not intended to be used as ladders.

K. Machine Guards - Keep guards in place at all times. Do not clean machinery while it is
running. Lock all disconnect switches while making repairs or cleaning.

L. Perscnal Protective Equipment - Always wear or use appropriate safety equipment as
required in your work. Wear appropriate personal protective equipment, like shoes, hats,
gloves, goggles, spats and hearing protectors in designated areas or when working on an
operation which is potentially hazardous. Also, wear gloves whenever handling castings,
scrap, or barrels.

M. Electrical Hazards - Do not stand on a wet floor while using any electrical apparatus. Keep
extension cords in good repair. Don't make unauthorized connections or repairs. Do not
overload outlets.

N. Fire Extinguishers - Know where fire extinguishers are and how to use them.
0. Report Injuries - Immediately report all injuries, no matter how slight, to your supervisor.
P. Ask Questions - If you are ever in doubt regarding the safe way to perform a task, please

do not proceed until you have consulted with a colleague or supervisor. Employees will
not be asked to perform any task which may be dangerous to their health, safety or
security. If you feel a task may be dangerous, inform your supervisor at once.

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 29
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 86 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 36 of 82

Employee Participation in Making Safety a High Priority

We strongly encourage employee participation and your input on health and safety matters.
Employees may report potential hazards and make suggestions about safety without fear of
retaliation. We appreciate, encourage and expect this type of involvement! The success of the
safety program relies on the participation of all employees. Though it is the District's responsibility
to provide for the safety, health and security of its workers during working hours, it is the
responsibility of each employee to abide by the rules, regulations and guidelines set forth.

A. Safety Officer:

+ Implement and maintain administrative procedures and activities necessary for the
operation of a meaningful safety program;

¢ Advise and coordinate with safety representatives on those matters pertaining to
committee meetings, safety inspections, CAL-OSHA inspections, and safety training
and related programs;

s Prepare periodic accident summaries, committee meeting minutes, agendas and
reports as necessary, and summaries of inspections; research and provide information
to safety representations and others concerning safety regulations, publications and
other information as necessary;

+ Maintain required records and make determinations of recordable/non-recordable, as
defined by CAL-OSHA, or avoidable/non-avoidable accidents;

e Assist supervisors and department managers to investigate and report on every
incident of a serious job injury to an employee;

+ Report serious injuries involving hospitalization or death of an employee to the State
Department of Industrial Relations within 24 hours of occurrence.

B. Department Managers

s Prepare or ensure the preparation and maintenance of specific safety rules and
practices to be followed by all employees within the department and its various
divisions and units.

¢ Such rules and practices shall be included in the departmental orientation of all new
employees; they shall be the subject of periodic review (i.e. tailgate meetings) with
affected employees; and they shall be posted on bulletin boards for reference.

s Assist in the implementation and maintenance of the safety program whenever
practical or necessary;

¢ Consider and act upon appropriate recommendations from the safety commitiee
concerning the abatement of unsafe or unhealthy work conditions or practices within
a reasonable period of time.

C. Supervisors:
= Be responsible for the enforcement of safety rules among employees under their
supervision;

+ Be responsible for familiarizing employees with the hazards of the job to which they
are assigned and shall instruct their personnel in the safe methods of performing the
job;

¢ Periodically review the work practices of subordinate employees who work under their
charge to ascertain that they continue to work in a safe manner, and in accordance
with the safe practices covering the specific work;

¢ At the end of each workday/shift, inspect work areas for proper housekeeping and for
fire, or other hazards and see that they are left in a safe condition;

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 30
Date of Adeption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 87 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 37 of 82

= Report all injuries promptly to the safety officer and department manager pursuant to
applicable administrative regulations of the District.

D. Safety Representatives:

» Attend and take an active role in safety committee meetings;

s Pericdically evaluate and forward to the safety officer the department’s safety and
training needs for committee action;

+ With the approval of the respective department manager, submit work orders to
appropriate departments for the immediate correction of safety hazards;

+ Participate as necessary in safety inspections, workshops or other training as may be
necessary;

» Observe and recommend correction as appropriate of any departmental working
conditions or practice which can be deemed unsafe or unhealthy;

+ Periodically inspect and ensure that departmental safety supplies are replenished (first
aid kits, fire extinguishers, etc.) by the department;

+ Consult with the safety officer on departmental safety matters requiring research
and/or technical advice.

E. The Safety Committee:

e Elect a committee chairperson and vice chairperson annually to conduct the business
and tasks related to committee activities;

» Participate as needed in the conducting of safety inspections;
Investigate, develop, and participate in the implementation of safety training programs;

+ Review, evaluate and make recommendations as appropriate on reports submitted by
the safety officer;

+ Make recommendations to department managers and/or the General Manager on the
Committee’s findings concerning safety issues.

F. All Employees:
= Notify their immediate supervisor of the need for correction of unsafe or unhealthy
working conditions or practices, including potential workplace violence;
s Adhere to all rules and regulations pertaining to the District’s and departmental safety
rules and program;
s  Apply a common-sense approach to safe working practices and conditions;
Report all injuries, regardless of severity, to the immediate supervisor.

Failure to adhere to these rules will be considered serious infractions of safety rules and will result
in disciplinary action.

Weapons

The District believes it is important to establish a clear policy that addresses weapons in the
workplace. Specifically, the District prohibits all persons who enter District property from carrying
a handgun, firearm, taser, knife, or other prohibited weapon of any kind regardless of whether the
person is licensed to carry the weapon or not. Any object used in a threatening manner shall be
considered use of a weapon.

The only exception to this policy will be police officers, security guards or other persons who have
been given written consent by the District to carry a weapon on the property.

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 31
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 88 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 38 of 82

Any employee disregarding this policy will be subject to immediate termination.

Fire Prevention

Know the location of the fire extinguisher(s) in your area and make sure they are kept clear at all
times. Notify your supervisor if an extinguisher is used or if the seal is broken. Keep in mind that
extinguishers that are rated ABC can be used for paper, wood, or electrical fires. Make sure all
flammable liquids, such as alcohol, are stored in approved and appropriately labeled safety cans
and are not exposed to any ignition source.

In Case of Fire

If you are aware of a fire, you should:

+« [Dial 911 or the local fire department.

s If possible, immediately contact your supervisor. Evacuate all employees and other
persons from the area.

+ If the fire is small and contained, locate the nearest fire extinguisher. This should only
be attempted by employees who are knowledgeable in the correct use of fire
extinguishers.

s If the fire is out of control, leave the area immediately. No attempt should be made to
fight the fire.

+ When the fire department arrives, direct the crew to the fire. Do not re-enter the
building until directed to do so by the fire department.

Emergency Evacuation

If you are advised to evacuate the building, you should:
+« Stop all work immediately.
Contact outside emergency response agencies, if needed.
Shut off all electrical equipment and machines, if possible.
Walk to the nearest exit, including emergency exit doors.
Exit quickly, but do not run. Do not stop for personal belongings.
Proceed, in an orderly fashion, to a parking lot near the building. Be present and
accounted for during roll call.
¢ Be alert to any person that may need assistance in the evacuation process.

Do not re-enter the building until instructed to do so by the appropriate safety designee.

In the event of a disaster, the Incident Commander and the County Emergency Operations Center
(EOC) Representative are authorized to take such actions as may be necessary to facilitate
recovery operations, including, but not limited to, deploying staff for damage assessment and
emergency repair purposes; procuring materials, labor, and services required for damage control
and emergency repairs; suspending water service pending determination of public health and
safety requirements; and restoring water service when safe and appropriate.

YVWD Perscnnel Manual Page 32
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 89 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 39 of 82

Property and Equipment Care

It is your responsibility to understand the machines needed to perform your duties. Good care of
any machine that you use during the course of your employment, as well as the conservative use
of supplies, will benefit you and the District. If you find that a machine is not working properly or
in any way appears unsafe, please notify your supervisor immediately so that repairs or
adjustments may be made. Under no circumstances should you start or operate a machine you
deem unsafe, nor should you adjust or modify the safeguards provided.

Do not attempt to use any machine or equipment you do not know how to operate, or if you have
not completed training on the proper use of the machine or equipment. Machines/equipment
should only be used for their intended purpose and within their manufacturer's specified
tolerances.

Safety Rules When Operating Machines and Equipment

When operating machines and equipment, please be sure to follow these procedures:
Machines shall be used for their appropriate purposes and tolerances.

Make sure machine guards are in place while machines are in operation.
Remove loose clothing, jewelry or rings before operating machinery.

Wear steel toe shoes and prescription eye protection to start the job, if required.

Required personal protective equipment, except for prescription glasses, will be issued to you by
your supervisor.

We will continue to provide a clean, safe and healthy place to work and we will provide the best
equipment possible. You are expected to work safely, to observe all safety rules and to keep the
premises clean and neat. Remember that carelessly endangering yourself or others may lead to
disciplinary action, including possible termination.

Security

Maintaining the security of YVWD buildings and vehicles is every employee's responsibility.
Develop habits that insure security as a matter of course. For example:
s Always keep cash properly secured. If you are aware that cash is insecurely stored,
immediately inform the person responsible.
+ Know the locaticon of all alarms and fire extinguishers and familiarize yourself with the
proper procedure for using them, should the need arise.
+ When you leave the District's, premises make sure that all entrances are properly
locked and secured.
+ Note and promptly report suspicious circumstances or persons about the premises.

END OF SECTION

YVWD Perscnnel Manual Page 33
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 90 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 40 of 82

MODIFIED DUTY FOR WORK RELATED INJURIES

Modified Duty Policy

This policy is distinguished and separate from the reasonable accommodation policy established
to implement the Americans with Disabilities Act. The Yucaipa Valley Water District's Modified
Duty Program provides the District with temporary working services of employees who have been
injured on the job and have not been released by the District's physician for regular duty. The
purpose of the Modified Duty Program is to emphasize the District's goal of facilitating the healing
process and recovery of the transitional employee who has been injured by a work-related
incident and have the employee return to full work status as quickly as possible.

This policy, applied on a case-by-case basis at Management's sole discretion, only covers
employees who have sustained an accidental injury or occupational illness while performing duties
within the course and scope of their employment or appointment. Modified duty for non-work-
related injuries will be handled on a case-by-case basis.

Definitions
A Modified Duty — Duties or tasks which on an individual basis are intended to encourage
the healing process and meet or accommodate specific medical work restrictions imposed

by treating physicians upon employees temporarily disabled by an injury occurring on the
job.

Procedure for Modified Duty

The following procedure shall be implemented for short-term modified duty.

A The injured worker is referred to the district’'s authorized medical physician for treatment
and evaluation.

B. The District's authorized physician notifies the General Manager, or designee, of any
specific work restrictions placed upon the employee.

C. The General Manager, or designee, contacts the departmental supervisor to assist in the
determination of whether the imposed work restrictions can be accommodated in the
current job description, including job analysis summary and/or duty statement.

D. If the restrictions can be accommodated in the current job, the employee will report daily
to modified duty until released by the designated physician to return to the pre-injury
position.

E. If restrictions cannot be accommodated in the current job, the District management will

determine if the department or other departments have other work that can be conducted
within the employee’s restrictions.

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 34
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 91 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 41 of 82

F. If restrictions cannot be accommodated, the employee will be sent home until fully
recovered.
G. No employee will be assigned to modified duty tasks which exceed medically imposed

work restrictions.

H. It will be the responsibility of the person supervising the injured worker while on modified
duty to assure that the injured worker does not exceed medically imposed work
restrictions, but performs duties required by assignment.

I Work restrictions and modified duty assignments will be evaluated at least every two
weeks to verify that restrictions are still required.

J. The modified duty days will not exceed 90 calendar days unless expressively authorized
by the General Manager on a case by case basis. After 90 days on the modified duty
program, the employee will return to his/her original job, take permanent/partial disability,
or have the opportunity to apply for other open positions.

K. By consensus, the supervisor, District physician, and Worker's Compensation insurer may
approve a second 9C-day Worker's Compensation modified duty period under exceptional
circumstances.

L. No modified duty after the second 90-day period without approval from the Board of
Directors.

M. An evaluative medical exam shall be conducted by the District physician on the employee
who is on modified duty as frequently as indicated by the District physician or District
Management.

N. All allowable employee benefits will continue while the employee is on modified duty.

Procedures for Employees on Modified Duty

A detailed summary of procedures to be used when an employee is injured is found in the “Safety
Issues” section of this manual. The following procedures are to be used by employees on
maodified duty.

A. The modified-duty employee will report daily to the modified position until the District
physician releases the employee to regular work duty.

B. The modified-duty supervisor gives the employee a daily work location and work
assignment.

C. The employee completes his/her daily time card.

D. At the end of the work period, the employee submits the daily time card to his/her
supervisor.

The supervisor submits the time card to the payroll representative for processing.

END OF SECTION

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 35
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 92 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 42 of 82

REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION POLICY

Reasonable Accommodation Policy

The American with Disabilities Act (ADA) requires employers to reasonably accommodate
qualified individuals with disabilities. It is the policy of Yucaipa Valley Water District to comply with
all federal and state laws concerning the employment of persons with disabilities.

It is our District’s policy not to discriminate against qualified individuals with disabilities in regard
to application procedures, hiring, advancement, discharge, compensation, training or other terms,
conditions and privileges of employment. Yucaipa Valley Water District will reasonably
accommodate qualified individuals with a disability so that they can perform the essential
functions of a job. An individual who can be reasonably accommodated for a job without undue
hardship will be given the same consideration for that position as any other applicant.

Definitions

As used in this policy, the following terms have the indicated meaning and will be adhered to in
relation to the ADA policy.

“Disability” means a physical or mental impairment or medical condition that substantially limits
one or more major life activities of the individual; a record of such an impairment; or being
regarded as having such an impairment. Major life activities include the following:

A In general, major life activities include, but are not limited to, caring for oneself, performing
manual tasks, seeing, hearing, eating, sleeping, walking, standing, lifting, bending,
speaking, breathing, learning, reading, concentrating, thinking, communicating and
working.

B. Major bodily functions - A major life activity also includes the operation of a major bodily
function, including, but not limited to, functions of the immune system, normal cell growth,
digestive, bowel, bladder, neurological, brain, respiratory, circulatory, endocrine and
reproductive functions.

“Direct threat” means a significant risk to the health or safety of others that cannot be eliminated
by reasonable accommodation.

“Qualified individual” means an individual who, with or without reasonable accommodation, can
perform the essential functions of the employment position that such individual holds or desires.
“Reasonable accommodation” may include making existing facilities readily accessible to and
usable by individuals with disabilities, job restructuring, part-time or modified work schedules,
reassignment to a vacant position, acquisition or modification of equipment or devices,
appropriate adjustment or modifications of examinations, training materials or policies, the
provision of qualified readers or interpreters, and other similar accommodations for individuals
with disabilities.

“Undue hardship” means an action requiring significant difficulty or expense by the employer.

YVYWD Personnel Manual Page 36
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 93 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 43 of 82

In determining whether an accommadation would impose an undue hardship on a covered entity,
factors to be considered include, but are not limited to:

A. The nature and cost of the accommaodation.
B. The overall financial resources of the facility or facilities involved in the provision of the

reasonable accommodation; the number of persons employed at such facility; the effect
on expenses and resources or the impact of such accommodation upon the operation of

the facility.
C. The overall financial resources of the employer; the number, type and location of facilities.
D. The type of operations of the company, including the composition, structure and functions

of the workforce; relationship of the particular facility to the employer.

“Essential functions of the job” refer to those job activities that are determined by the employer to
be essential or core to performing the job; these functions cannot be modified.

END OF SECTION

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 37
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 94 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 44 of 82

TIME OFF

Recognized Holidays

Approved halidays for which employees shall receive their normal 8 hours or 10 hours of pay are
recognized as follows:

January 18 New Year's Day
3rd Monday in January Martin Luther King’s Birthday
3rd Monday in February President's Day
Last Monday in May Memorial Day
July 4" Independence Day
1% Monday in September Labor Day
November 11" Veteran's Day
4th Thursday in November Thanksgiving Day
Friday following Thanksgiving Thanksgiving Friday
December 25" Christmas Day
Floating Holidays - Three To be taken within the calendar year as a
complete day

Saturday or Sunday Holiday

A holiday falling on a Saturday shall be observed on the preceding Friday, and a holiday falling on
a Sunday shall be observed on the following Monday.

Floating Holidays

New employees hired in the month of January shall receive 3 floating holidays for that calendar
year. New employees hired between February 1st and June 30" shall receive 2 floating holidays
for that calendar year. New employees hired on or after July 1% shall receive 1 floating holiday for
that calendar year. Full time regular employees shall each receive floating holidays for each
calendar year thereafter, as stated above.

Vacation Leave

It is the District's policy to provide reasonable vacation credits to all regular employees of the District
who have completed their introductery period. Regular full-time employees shall accrue vacation
credit at varying rates depending on length of service and vary per Bargaining Unit Memorandum
of Agreement (MOA). General, supervisory and exempt employees shall accrue vacation credit as
outlined below:

Amount of Vacation Leave Provided by District

Period of Continuous Hours Working Days
Employment Per Month Per Year
1 through 5 years 6-2/3 10
6 through 10 years 10 15
11 years & more 13-1/3 20
YVWD Personnel Manual Page 38

Date of Adoption: Noevember 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 95 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 45 of 82

Upon satisfactory completion of the initial one-year introductory period, a new employee will be
credited with 10 days (80 hours) of vacation for the one-year period that the employee was on
introductory status, after which and up to the completion of 5 years of continuous service, an
employee shall accrue vacation time at a rate of 3.08 hours per pay period (10 days per year).

Upon completion of 5 years of continuous service and continuing through completion of 10 years of
service, an employee shall accrue vacation time at a rate of 4.62 hours per pay period (15 days per
year).

Upon completion of 10 years of service, an employee shall receive as a one-time bonus for
longevity, 40 hours of vacation. In addition to this one-time bonus, upon completion of 10 years of
service, an employee shall accrue vacation time at a rate of 6.15 hours per pay period (20 days per
year).

Individual vacation accrual rates in excess of 20 days per year shall be frozen effective April 21,
1994 and shall not increase beyond this amount based on action by the Board of Directors on April
20, 1994, except as may have been subsequently negotiated in a Bargaining Unit MOA.

« Supervisory and confidential employees: On the 15" year of continuous service, and each
year thereafter, employees shall be provided an additional 5 days per year of vacation leave
which will increase the current 6.153 hours per pay period to 7.692 hours per pay pericd
[DM 11-010].

The vacation time shall be used in a manner consistent with the following:

A Vacation time when taken shall not exceed the number of whole days of vacation credit
accrued by the employee as of the day their vacation commences.

B. The scheduling of vacation time is subject to approval by the employee’s supervisor.

C. Vacation time shall be taken by employees in such a fashion to ensure adequate staffing of
both office and field personnel as determined by the supervisor.

D. The minimum charge to an employee’'s vacation time off (with the exception of exempt
employees) shall be one-half hour. Vacation time of more than one-half hour shall be
charged to the nearest one-quarter hour. Exempt employees vacation time off is not to be
for a period of less than ' day (4 hours).

E. Employees may accumulate vacation credits up to a maximum of 240 hours. They shall
receive no further vacation credits when this accumulated total of unused credits reaches
30 full working days and for so long as such credits stand at that figure. Employees shall
not be paid compensation in lieu of vacation time off.

F. A District holiday occurring during an employee's vacation shall not be considered as a day
of vacation.
G. An employee who becomes ill while on vacation may use accumulated sick leave in lieu of

vacation time for the period of such illness, provided, however, that the District is not
obligated to extend the vacation beyond the scheduled expiration date.

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 39
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 96 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 46 of 82

H. An employee who is receiving California Workers' Disability Insurance payments may use
accrued vacation to supplement said payment provided the total amount received shall not
exceed the employee's regular salary.

l. Upon termination from employment of a regular full-time employee, all unused accrued
vacation hours will be paid at the employee’s current rate of pay.

J. No accrual shall occur, or vacation be paid for new employees until the employee
satisfactorily completes the initial one-year introductory pericd and has been classified a
permanent full-time employee.

Sick Leave

Sick leave accrues at the rate of 3.7 hours per pay period, or 1 day (8 hours) per month. If an
employee remains in a non-pay status for more than 50% of the total normal work hours in the pay
period, sick leave credit will not be earned for the entire pay period.

Authorized vacation, paid sick leave, holidays, or other compensated time off shall be considered
as time worked for the purpose of computing accrued sick leave. Employees shall not accrue sick
leave during the period of an authorized leave of absence without pay, or the duration of
compensated disability leave resulting from a work-related injury. The accrual of sick leave will be
unlimited with no maximum allowance.

Sick leave usage means the absence from duty because of illness or injury, exposure to contagious
disease, attendance upon a member of the employee's immediate family who is seriously ill or
medical appointments. Immediate family members in the case of illness or injury shall include an
employee's spouse/partner, parent, child, sibling or grandchild.

During any calendar year, not more than 6 days of sick leave may be granted to an employee for
the purpose of attending ill family members.

Sick leave shall be allowed only in case of actual necessity resulting from personal sickness,
disability, and attendance to an immediate family member or as otherwise provided in this article.

All employees who are compelled to be absent from work due to illness or injury shall be entitled to
receive full compensation for each day of accrued sick leave used. A day, as referred to herein,
shall mean a normal 8-hour work period (or 10-hour workday under certain cases).

In order to receive sick leave compensation, the employee must notify hisfher immediate supervisor
prior to or within 30 minutes after the time set for beginning of a workday and have a valid reason
for use of sick leave accrual. In case of an accident or emergency, the employee or a representative
of the employee should contact the immediate supervisor at the earliest possible time and explain
the circumstances necessitating the absence.

The District may require the employee to submit a doctor's certificate, affidavit, or other
documentation, on forms prescribed by the District, as verification and substantiation of the
absence. A failure to provide the required documentation will result in the deduction of salary for
the days of absence and may result in disciplinary action.

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 40
Date of Adopticn: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 97 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 47 of 82

The minimum charge to an employee's sick leave allowance shall be one-half (%) hour. Absences
of more than one-half (1/2) hour shall be charged to the nearest one-quarter (1) hour. Despite prior
approvals of sick leave, employees whose sick leave use indicates a pattern of abuse may have
their sick leave records reviewed and face possible disciplinary action for such abuse. Exempt
employees sick leave allowance shall not be less than ¥z day (4 hours).

Catastrophic Sick Leave

Catastrophic illness/injury shall be defined as those categories (exclusive of stress) generally
accepted by medical insurance carriers. Employees of the District who suffer a catastrophic
injury/illness in which the employee is expected to be incapacitated for an extended period of time,
the time to be determined on a case by case basis by the Catastrophic Sick Leave Plan Committee
as specified below, shall become eligible to use this Catastrophic Sick Leave Plan (“Plan”) subject
to the restrictions and conditions outlined below:

A. An employee may elect to enroll in the plan at any time. To enroll as a member of the Plan,
the employee must donate a minimum of 24 hours at the time the employee elects to join
the Plan.

B. An employee may elect to join the Plan upon the first day of employment with the District.

At that time, as the employee will not currently have any accrued sick leave, 2.78 hours per
pay period (equal to 75% of the total pay period accrual) will be donated into the Plan and
the employee will accrue the remaining sick leave of ¢.92 hours per pay period (equal to
25% of the total pay period accrual) until 24 hours are contributed to the Plan. This
mechanism is also available to existing employees for all or a portion of the 24 hours
required to contribute to the Plan.

C. The employee must be an active participating member of this Plan in order to receive any
form of benefit as described below.

D. In the event of a catastrophic illness as described above, the following options shall be
utilized in the following order: {(a) employee's accumulated sick leave; and (b) authorized
catastrophic leave.

E. The employee to receive donated sick leave from the Plan must have exhausted all but 10
hours of sick leave and must be in a true catastrophic condition.

F. In order for members to remain as participants, each person must maintain continued
participation as defined below.

The donation of sick leave time to the Plan shall be irrevocable. The member shall file an irrevocable
"Catastrophic Sick Leave Plan Deposit Form" with Payroll. A donation to the Plan shall be a general
donation and from prior years' accumulations, or future accrued sick leave as provided above, and
shall not be donated to a specific employee for his or her exclusive use.

There is no limit to the number of sick leave days a member may donate to the Plan, so long as
after the initial 24 hours of donation: (1) the minimum number of accumulated sick leave days
available in the employee's account does not fall below 80 hours.

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 41
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 98 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 48 of 82

A contribution of 8 hours will be required of all participants if the number of hours in the Plan falls
below 400 hours. This assessment will occur automatically with notification sent to all participating
members that an additional contribution was made from your sick leave. Members who are drawing
from the Plan at the time of the assessment will not be required to contribute to remain eligible to
draw from the Plan. If a participant has 10 or less days (80 hours) of remaining sick leave at the
time of the assessment, they need not contribute the additional day to remain a participant in the
Plan.

In the event, the accrued catastrophic leave fund balance exceeds the amount of $250,000, each
active member in the Plan will receive 8 hours of sick leave returned to their personal sick leave
accruals and the fund balance of catastrophic leave will be reduced proportionately. Employees
will receive written notification of this disbursement from the Plan.

Leave from the Plan may not be used for illness or disability which qualifies the employee for
Worker's Compensation benefits; however, this plan may augment other benefits. When the
employee may reasonably be presumed to be eligible for disability retirement or, if applicable, Social
Security, he/she may be requested to apply for such retirement. Failure of the employee to submit
a complete application, including medical information provided by the applicant's physician, within
20 working days will disqualify the member from further Catastrophic Sick Leave Plan payments.

Cancellation of membership in the Plan occurs automatically whenever a member fails to make his
or her contribution as defined above. The employee shall not be eligible to draw from the Plan as
of the effective date of cancellation. Sick leave previously authorized for contribution to the Plan
shall not be returned if the member elects or causes cancellation.

A member wishing to use this Catastrophic Sick Leave Plan shall submit a "Catastrophic Sick Leave
Plan Request for Withdrawal Form". This form shall be submitted to the General Manager. The
request shall clearly state the details of the catastrophe and the amount of sick leave requested.

Appropriate written verification of the catastrophic illness or injury must be included with the request.
The member should be prepared to provide additional documentation on the nature and severity of
the iliness or injury, if requested.

The Catastrophic Sick Leave Plan Committee (“Committee”) shall consider each disbursement
request by members of the Plan. The committee shall consist of the following:

+ One active employee assigned by a majority of the Exempt Employee Bargaining Group
¢ One active employee assigned by a majority of the Supervisory Employee Bargaining Group
¢+ One active employee assigned by IBEW from the General Employee Bargaining Group

The Committee may grant, reject or partially grant a request based on a number of factors, including
but not limited to the degree of illness, other forms of leave available, and other factors deemed by
the Committee to be relevant to the particular situation. The members of the Committee shall not
disclose the medical conditions of the employee requesting Catastrophic Sick Leave under the Plan.
The action by the Catastrophic Sick Leave Plan Committee is final.

In the event that an employee does not qualify for Catastrophic Sick Leave they may request
approval from the General Manager to obtain individual donations of sick time from District
employees.

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 42
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 99 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 49 of 82

The maximum number of duty days allowed to be utilized by one member for a single catastrophic
injury/iliness shall not exceed thirty days (240 hours) per request. A member may request a specific
number of days on one "Catastrophic Sick Leave Plan Request for Withdrawal Form”. The member
may request additional days after the use of 20 duty days (or 160 hours) by filing an additional
request for consideration to the Committee.

Any days approved that are unused by the member shall be returned to the Catastrophic Sick Leave
Plan for future withdrawals by a Plan participant upon approval.

If an employee receives hours from the Plan, the member will receive those Plan hours at the same

rate of pay currently received by the employee. No distinction shall be made as to the differing pay
rates of the donors or recipients.

Leave of Absence (Medical and Non-Medical)

Under certain conditiocns, an employee may be granted leave of absence without pay. In order to
receive consideration, a written request, stating the specific reasons for the leave of absence and
the proposed duration thereof, must be submitted to the Beard. If the Board determines that the
leave of absence is justified, the employee may remain absent from work in a non-pay status for an
approved pericd of time. The employee may have the option of using accumulated sick leave (if
appropriate) and vacation leave in its entirety prior to a leave of absence without pay. A request for
an extension of leave of absence must be submitted no later than 2 weeks prior to the expiration of
the current leave of absence.

During an authorized leave of absence, vacation, sick leave, seniority, and retirement credits shall
not accrue. Upon the employee's return to service, the accrual of vacation, sick leave and retirement
credits shall resume. It will be the employee's responsibility to assume payment of the premiums
for all applicable health, medical and life insurance policies during the period of the leave of
absence.

Military Leave

Any employee who enters the Armed Forces of the United States during war or national emergency,
as declared by the President or Congress of the United States shall be entitled to a leave of absence
without pay for the duration of such service and for a period of 90 days thereafter. Any employee
returning to the District within the specified time, and who has been discharged, other than
dishonorably, from military service, shall be reinstated to their former classification without loss of
status or seniority, provided they are not physically or mentally impaired to the extent that successful
performance in the position cannot be accomplished with reasonable accommaodation. Any person
selected to fill a position vacated by an employee called to military service will be considered a
temporary appointee only.

All employees who are members of reserve corps of the United States or the State of California
shall be entitled to a leave of absence as provided in Section 395.01 of the Military and Veterans
Code. (See also MVC 142, 143, and 146)

Employees who participate in the active military reserve (e.g. summer or special training) will be
allowed 17 paid days per year to fulfill their obligation in the United States Armed Services as
required by the Veterans Code 39405, upon reasonable advanced submittal of orders.

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 43
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 100 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 50 of 82

Matermity Leave

As determined by medical necessity, supported by valid documentation, female employees may
request leave for matemity purposes for a maximum period of 4 months duration. Female
employees anticipating a maternity leave should notify their supervisor in advance of their intention.
The District may extend maternity leave beyond 4 months, upon request, with medical or other
justification submitted at the earliest time. At the female employee's option, all or part of
accumulated sick, vacation or compensating time off may be used to provide continuing income
and benefits to the female employee and shall be considered to be in paid status during the time
such leave credits are being used. Upon the expiration of accumulated sick leave, compensating
time off, or vacation credits, the female employee shall be placed on non-pay status for the balance
of the 4-month period. If the employee is on a non-pay status during the leave, District fringe
benefits will not accrue. Medical insurance coverage for the employee will continue under the same
conditions as if the employee were continuing to work. Life insurance and dental premiums for the
employee are not continued unless paid by the employee.

Disability Leave

An employee who is compelled to remain off of active work duty while under the care of a licensed
physician for an extended period of time due to work or non-work-related injury or iliness shall be
entitled to disability leave.

If an employee is eligible to receive California Worker's Compensation benefits as a result of a work
related injury or illness, he/she may request of the General Manager's autharization to have his/her
benefits supplemented with sick leave or vacation credits to provide full salary during the period of
absence, and be considered to be on paid status for the purposes of accruing fringe benefits
provided by the District. Workers' Compensation benefits paid to the District will be paid to the
employee without tax deduction. However, deductions will be made from any applied vacation or
sick leave credits used. An employee may not use unearned sick leave or vacation credits, except
with the approval of the General Manager.

Family Medical Leave

In accordance with the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993, all employees who have been
employed at the District for at least one year and have worked at least 1,250 hours in the 12-month
period immediately preceding the commencement of a requested leave under this Family Leave
provision are eligible for up to 12 weeks of unpaid leave each year! in order to care for a newborn,
adopted or foster child, a seriously ill child, parent or spouse, or because of the employee's own
serious illness. Under such conditions, the District will continue to provide health insurance
premiums for employees on such leave under the same conditions as if the employee were
continuing to work.

Under circumstances where the provisions of the California Family Rights Act of 1991 differ from
the provisions of the Federal Laws, the State or Federal provision which provides the greater benefit
to the employee shall govern.

! The pericd of one year for the time of leave has been established by the District as bsing a consecutive twelve-month period that is
distinct for each employee on Family Leave. An employee is eligible for leave under this provision based cn a twelve month period
that begins when an employee takes the first day of District approved eligible Family Leave under the policies set forth in the section
and by the Board of Directors.

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 44
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 101 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 51 of 82

Paid Family Leave

California is the first state in the country to extend disability compensation to employees who take
time off work to care for a seriously ill child, spouse, parent, domestic partner, or to bond with a new
minor child. Starting on July 1, 2004, an employee may file a claim with the State Employment
Development Department's (EDD) Disability Insurance Branch to care for a seriously ill child,
spouse, parent or domestic partner, to bond with a new child, or to bond with a minor child in
connection with the adoption or foster care placement of that child.

This Paid Family Leave policy does not create reinstatement rights of the employee.

No more than 6 weeks of Paid Family Leave benefits may be paid within any 12-month period. The
District requires written notice to be provided to the General Manager and ten days of vacation time
to be applied to the time off immediately following the day the written notice for Paid Family Leave
is received by the General Manager. This time is in addition to the 6 days of sick leave that may be
applied to the illness of a family member as discussed in the preceding sections.

Paid Family Leave does not extend the amount of time the employee is eligible to take leave under
the Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA) and the California Family Rights Act (CFRA). Paid Family
Leave is a benefit payment, not a leave. If the employer is covered and the employee is eligible,
he or she could take FMLA/CFRA to care for a parent, spouse or dependent child up to 12 weeks
in a 12-month period. The employee may be eligible for Paid Family Leave benefits for up to 6
weeks in the 12-month period.

For leave and benefits relating to a pregnant employee, Paid Family Leave and FMLA will run
concurrently for the length of the disability due to pregnancy. After giving birth, an employee may
receive Paid Family Leave benefits for the time period permitted to bond with the child. For paid
family leave relating to bonding with a child, Paid Family Leave is limited to the first year after birth,
adoption or foster care placement and a separate certification is required when the leave is required
for baby bonding.

An employee cannot receive Paid Family Leave while receiving State Disability Insurance,
unemployment insurance or worker's compensation benefits. However, an individual who is entitled
to leave under FMLA and CFRA must take paid family leave concurrent with leave taken under
those Acts.

Bereavement Leave

Employees are eligible to receive up to 5 days of paid leave for the death of a spouse/partner,
parent, child, sibling, grandparent, grandchild, or spouse/partner's parent to attend services or
assist in arrangements relative to the event in accordance with the applicable rules and regulations
pertaining hereto.

Management Leave

In recognition of the additicnal time required (evening meetings, cccasional weekends, etc.) to do
their jobs properly, exempt employees will receive 5 days of paid time off each calendar year in
the form of Management Leave. The employee will be credited with 5 days on January 1% of each
year, all of which must be approved and utilized by December 31% of the same year. Management

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 45
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 102 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 52 of 82

leave shall be taken in 4 or 8 hour increments only. Management Leave not used in a given
calendar year will not be accrued to future years.

The District allows exempt employees to convert their annual management leave to deferred
compensation at their regular daily rate of pay. Please see the District payroll representative for
details.

Jury Duty

Every employee of the District who is officially called to serve as a court trial juror shall be entitled
to be absent from his or her duties for the period of such jury duty as provided below. If an employee
serves on jury duty during a time when the employee is not expected to be at work, such as for a
swing shift employee or an employee on a 10-hour workday with a normal day off during the time
of jury duty, the District will not be responsible for compensating the employee. This shall be
considered the civic responsibility of the employee to serve on jury duty.

If an employee who is assigned to a regular daytime work period is called to serve jury duty, and
such jury duty does not exceed 4 hours duration, it shall be the responsibility of the employee to
report to work within a reasonable time after being released from jury duty on that day. Should jury
duty exceed 4 hours duration on any regularly scheduled work day, the employee shall contact
his/her supervisor at the end of their jury duty day to determine if it is necessary to report for work
on that same day following the release from jury duty.

When called for jury duty, the employee shall promptly notify his/her immediate supervisor of any
intended absence from work resulting from such duty. If an employee fails to promptly report
notification of jury duty, or is absent without proper notification, the employee shall be considered
absent without leave on a non-pay status.

While serving on official jury duty, an employee shall be compensated at the regular rate of pay for
a maximum of 160 hours per calendar vyear, provided that all fees paid to the employee for jury duty
are surrendered to the District. In the event jury duty extends beyond the 160 hours in a calendar
year, the employee may utilize sick leave or vacation leave for the additional time away from work.
It is the responsibility of the employee to submit to the employee’s immediate supervisor a time card
furnished from the County every day the employee serves jury duty. This time card must indicate
the day(s) jury duty was served, and the hours of service performed each day.

Automobile related expenses for jury duty shall not be reimbursed by the District.

END OF SECTION

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 46
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 103 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 53 of 82

RULES AND REGULATIONS

Attendance

Punctuality and regular attendance are expected. In case of absence, the immediate supervisor
should be notified prior to or at the latest, within the first 30 minutes of the employee's starting time.
If an employee must leave early during work hours, the supervisor should be notified as far in
advance as possible. Tardiness, unexcused absence or failure to report, which renders an
employee insufficiently available for work, will be evaluated and disciplinary measures or
termination may result.

Hours of Work

The standard workweek consists of 5 eight-hour work periods, totaling 40 hours. Varying work
schedules may be established in order to meet the business needs of the department, section, or
District. Daily starting and ending times shall be as set by the General Manager in the best interest
of the District's operation.

Lunch Periods

Lunch periods will be as scheduled by the supervisors in the interests of the District and may vary
from time to time as emergencies direct. Lunch periods are not counted as time worked and should
beqin within 5 hours of the start of the work shift and shall be no longer than 30 minutes in duration.

Rest Periods

Under normal circumstances, a rest period not to exceed 15 minutes is provided employees working
4 consecutive hours. Rest periods are directed by the departmental supervisor in the interest of
District operaticns and are considered time worked.

Smoking

The District prohibits the use of any tobacco, vaping and the use of e-cigareties while on duty or in
facilities, buildings, vehicles or other enclosed areas. This would include smoking as well as vaping
or any other form of electronic cigarette or vapor inhalant. Smcking and vaping is permitted only
beyond 30 feet from all entranceways, passageways, operable windows or ventilation systems of
buildings, facilities vehicles or other enclosed areas.

Disaster Relief and Emergency Preparedness

As a District employee, you are registered as an emergency service worker. If a disaster occurs in
the District, you may be assigned to any emergency duty for disaster relief. If such an emergency
occurs during non-working hours, it is your responsibility to see if you are needed. Normally, you
would respond to your regular supervisor or District administrator; however, there may be additional

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 47
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 104 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 54 of 82

District or Regional sites where your assistance will be required. Your family may be sheltered in
designated District facilities during emergencies.

In certain circumstances, employees may request the General Manger to consider emergency pay
status consideration to allow employees to receive full regular time pay for responding to
emergencies in the region instead of alternative forms of leave. This policy allows an employee to
retain leave, such as vacation leave, for assisting other communities in responding to disasters.

Employment of Relatives, Spouses and Co-Habitants

It is the policy of the District not to discriminate in its employment practices. Notwithstanding these
provisions, the District retains the right to refuse to place a relative, spouse or living partner under
the direct supervision of another employee or to place them in the same department, division or
facility where such has the potential for creating a conflict of interest or an adverse effect on
supervision, safety, security or morale.

Drug Free Workplace

Under the guidelines of the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1988, the District is committed to providing
for a drug free workplace, including all places where District business is conducted, whether at the
main offices of the District or any other site.

All employees are absolutely prohibited from manufacturing, distributing, dispensing, possessing or
using any controlled substance, marijuana, or alcohol in the workplace without indication that the
use was under medical supervision.

Any employee violating the above policy is subject to disciplinary action, up to and including
termination, for the first offense.

As an employer resolving to maintain a drug free workplace, employees will be provided educational
information on the dangers of drug abuse and drugs in the workplace. Supervisors will receive
training in identifying and addressing drug use by employees. The District will work cooperatively
with employees afflicted with drug or alcohol abuse in seeking a rehabilitation program to help the
employee overcome dependency on drugs or alcohol. Any employee failing to pursue rehabilitative
measures by satisfactory participation in an accepted counseling program will be subject to
termination. Certain classifications are designated as DOT employees and must meet DOT drug
free requirements.

District Property

All employees in possession of keys/access codes to District premises shall not permit them to be
used by unauthorized persons.

Every job in the District requires the use of District supplies, materials and equipment. It is the
employees' responsibility to maintain District property in the best possible condition, make the most
economical use of supplies, and to see that all tools, equipment and unused materials are returned
to the District after use. It shall be unacceptable conduct for any employee to engage in the use of
District equipment for personal benefit or gain.

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 48
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 105 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 55 of 82

All work areas, including but not limited to desks, lockers, computers, tool boxes and vehicles used
for District work on District property/worksites should not be considered as "private" by any
employee. The District reserves the right to enter any and all areas for legitimate business purposes
at any time.

Gifts and Gratuities

Employees are not to accept any gift or gratuity from an individual, company or organization doing
business with the District because gifts can be viewed as unethical attempts to influence District
operations. Although some offers are made in good faith and intent, all employees are expected to
remain free from any potential conflict of interest. Any gift offered by an outside party should be
politely, but firmly, declined. Persistent attempts by individuals to provide gifts and/or gratuities to
employees should be reported to the General Manager.

Exceptions to this policy include perishable treats during the holiday season and nominal
merchandise provided by vendors with corporate logos such as mugs, hats, pens and calendars.

Expense Reimbursement

District staff shall be reimbursed for expenses incurred in the performance of their duties required
based on the requirements and limitations below. All expense reimbursement forms (outlining
anticipated expenses and work attendance issues) must be completed and approved by your
supervisor prior to incurring any District related expenses. This pre-approval ensures that the
employee is fully aware of all expenses anticipated to be reimbursed by the District.

When traveling to District approved seminars and meetings, there may be the need to use a District
vehicle. When a District vehicle is approved for use as transportation, the employee shall not
transport non-business-related guests such as family members or friends at any time. If the
employee uses a personal vehicle as transportation to a District approved function, then the District
will reimburse the employee in the form of a mileage allowance based on Federal standards
adopted by the Internal Revenue Service.

When an employee is required to travel to attend District approved functions, the District will
reimburse the employee for meals based on the following maximum amounts:

Breakfast $10.00
Lunch $15.00
Dinner $20.00

Prior to providing a reimbursement, the employee must submit receipts for each meal attached to
a request for reimbursement.

Any other miscellanecus expense submitted for reimbursement must have a clearly legible and
legitimate receipt in order to be approved for reimbursement.

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 49
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 106 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 56 of 82

Internet and E-Mail

All employees are responsible for the material read, sent, received or delivered via the Internst or
e-mail services. Access to the Internet and e-mail services from District computers and phone lines
are for business purposes only. The District does not allow employees to use personal Internet or
e-mail access accounts on District computers, phone lines, or equipment without the prior written
approval of the General Manager.

The e-mail and Internet access from District computers may not be used for transmitting, retrieving
or storage of any communications of a derogatory, defamatory, discriminatory or harassing nature
or materials that are obscene or X-rated. Harassment of any kind is prohibited. No messages with
derogatory of inflammatory remarks about an individual's race, age, disability, religion, national
origin, physical attributes or sexual preference shall be transmitted. No abusive, profane or
offensive language is to be transmitted through the District’s e-mail or Internet system. Electronic
media may also not be used for any other purpose which is illegal or against District policy or
contrary to the District’s best interest or is otherwise inappropriate or unrelated to District business.
Solicitation of non-District business or any use of the District's e-mail or Internet for personal use or
gain is prohibited.

Any employee who viclates this policy will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including

termination. If necessary, the District reserves the right to advise appropriate legal officials of any
violations.

Electronic Communications

Each employee is responsible for the content of all text, audio or images that he or she places or
sends over the District’s e-mail or Internet system. No e-mail or other electronic communications
may be sent which hides the identity of the sender or represents the sender as someone else or
someaone from another agency, district or company. All messages communicated on the District’s
e-mail and Internet system shall contain the sending employee’s name.

All employees are hereby warned that deletion of a message or file may not fully eliminate the
message from the system. No such deletion should be made without the express permission of the
employee’s supervisor.

All messages or information sent by an employee to another individual outside of the District via an
electronic network (e.g. bulletin board, online service or Internet) are statements that reflect on the
District. While some users include personal “disclaimers” in electronic messages, there is still a
connection to the District, and the statements may be tied to the District.

All communications sent by employees via the District's e-mail or Internet system must comply with
this and other District policies.

The District reserves the right to monitor, audit and disclose usage patterns for its e-mail and
Internet communications for any reason, including cost analysis/allocation and the management of
the District's gateway to the Internet. All messages created, sent, or retrieved using District
resources are the property of the District and although proprietary should be considered accessible
by the public during transmission. The District reserves the right to access and monitor all
messages and files on the District's wireless, e-mail and Internet systems. Employees must be

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 50
Date of Adeoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 107 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 57 of 82

aware that electronic communications are not private. Under some circumstances communications
may be subject to disclosure under the Public Records Act of litigation.

Any employee who violates this policy will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including
termination. If necessary, the District reserves the right to advise appropriate legal officials of any
violations.

Software

To prevent computer viruses from being transmitted through the District’s computer system, there
will be no unauthorized downloading or installation of any unautheorized software. All software
downloaded must be registered to the District and obtained through District approved sources.
Supervisors will be responsible for providing written authorization prior to downloading or installing
any software, upgrades, drivers, browsers, and other business-related software.

Any employee who violates this policy will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including
termination. If necessary, the District reserves the right to advise appropriate legal officials of any
violations.

Mileage Allowance

Employees who are required to drive their personal vehicle in the performance of work duties will
receive a mileage allowance. The district will base the mileage allowance on federal standards
adopted by the Internal Revenue Service.

Dress Code

Although there is no official District-wide dress code, most departments have standardized uniforms
that must be worn during the regular workday. All employees are expected to wear clothing
appropriate to your job and work site, even during afterhours (over time) work-related activities.
Your clothing and appearance should be neat, clean, in good business taste, and not constitute a
safety hazard or otherwise reflect adversely upon the District.

Uniforms

You may be required toc wear uniforms in the performance of your duties. The District furnishes
uniforms to most employees in the water and wastewater divisions. All employees who are provided
with uniforms or are provided with partial District uniforms are required to wear them on the job at
all times. These uniforms are to be worn during regular working hours and may include wear to and
from work, but they are not to be worn at other venues/times. The uniform identifies you as a District
employee. Proper care of the uniform, both on and off the job will reflect favorably upon you and
the District.

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 51
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 108 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 58 of 82

Work Boots

It is the responsibility of each employee (administrative and non-administrative) to purchase and
have available at work steel toe work boots (“Work Boots”). Work boots are worn on a regular
basis by all non-administrative employees including but not limited to employees in the water,
sewer and recycled divisions. All other employees may be required to wear Work Boots in the
event of emergency or hazardous conditions.

All Work Boots shall meet the following minimum criteria:
A. made of leather construction;

B. required to have steel toe protection with an American National Standard Institute (ANSI)
rating of no less than C-75;

C. have a height of no less than six (8) inches in order to cover the ankle and provide support;
and
D. may be a style which is either a slip-on or have laces depending on the job requirement.

The District will provide an allowance of $300.00 per employee for safety steel toe work boots in
July of each fiscal year (July 1 to June 30). Any purchase or series of purchases, within a one-
year period that exceeds this amount will be the responsibility of the employee [DM 18-024, DM
18-025, DM 18-0286].

Distribution of Literature

No employee shall participate in the distribution of any literature, printed or electrenic, during work
hours, or on District property which may be construed as being political, religious, obscene or
otherwise offensive or invasive to an individual's privacy.

Use of Bulletin Boards

The use of bulletin boards supplied by the District are for the benefit of all employees for the purpose
of displaying information related to employee notices and other related business matters. All
postings are subject to the approval of the General Manager.

The Union may utilize the existing bulletin boards to post infermation to effectively communicate the
business of the District with all employees.

QOutside Employment

The work of the Yucaipa Valley Water District shall take precedence over any other occupational
interests of its employees. All outside employment for salary, wages or commission services and
all self-employment must be reported in writing to the appropriate departmental supervisor and
approved in advance. Each change in outside employment shall require separate approval.

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 52
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 109 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 59 of 82

No outside employment shall (1) involve the use for private gain or advantage of District time,
facilities, equipment and supplies; or the uniform, prestige, or influence of the District office or
employment; or (2) receive or accept any money or other consideration from anyone for the
performance of an act which the officer or employee would be required or expected to render in the
course of employment with the District; (3) occur if the act which may later be subject directly or
indirectly to the control, inspection, review, audit, or enforcement by the District; (4) involve such
time demands as would render performance of his or her duties as to the District less efficiently; or
(5) lower the efficiency of the employee.

Personal Phone Calls (Regular & Cellular Phones)

While it is understood that the use of District telephones is for District related business, it is
understood that on occasion personal calls are necessary. Employees may use phones for
personal calls when necessary, understanding that the use of telephones for such use is a privilege
and is not to be abused. Personal outgoing as well as incoming personal calls should be keptto a
minimum. Personal toll calls are not to be charged to the District.

The District has an Optional Cellular Device Usage Program in which employees may complete
a reimbursement form annually in January for approval by the General Manager. This allows
employees to receive reimbursement in the amount of $40 per month at the first payroll cycle of
each month for the use of their personal cellular device for District and work-related tasks [DM
17-023].

Mail and Correspondence

Due to the size of the District and the wide range of services provided, it is commeon for the District
to receive large volumes of mail on a regular basis. The intent of the District is to provide an efficient
method of performing routine tasks such as opening and sorting the incoming mail. In order for the
District to conduct business in a professional manner, there will be times when mail addressed to
an individual employee is opened and sorted with the rest of the mail. When mail is directed to a
specific individual and the words "PERSONAL AND CONFIDENTIAL" are clearly legible on the
outside envelope, then the mail will be held for the employee or forwarded to the employee's most
recent home address. ltems marked "CONFIDENTIAL" may be opened by the General Manager
(or designee). To allow the District to operate effectively, all employees are required to receive non-
business-related mail at their home address and are not to give or use the District address for
personal use.

Political Activities by District Employees

Although District employees are encouraged to support the governments in our political system
in an appropriate fashion, there are limits on employee political activity. District employees may
join civic, partisan or political organizations, may attend political meetings and advocate the
principles or policies of civic or political organizations in accordance with the Constitution and
laws of the state and nation. However, as public employees we are obligated to keep the
workplace politically neutral.

YVWD Persennel Manual Page 53
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 110 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 60 of 82

Therefore, political activities should be limited tc an employee’s off duty hours, should not unduly

reflect upon the District, and an employees’ political activities must be clearly separated from

activities related to their employment.

A No District employee shall be required to contribute any money or anything of value to any
candidate for nomination or election to any office, or to any campaign or political
committee, or take part in any political campaign.

B. Prohibited activities by District employees include:
1. Engaging in any type of political activities as set forth herein, during normal working

hours or while pursuing regular duties in the course of employment. District
employees may not take part in any political activity while in uniform.

2. Receiving expenses, gifts, remuneration of any type or monetary reward in
exchange for political activities.
3. Using one's public or official position or knowingly allowing it to be used to further

a political party, political candidacy, political issue or position, or influence a
political outcome.

4, Use of District facilities, equipment or resources (including email and Internet
resources) for political campaigns or campaign related activities.
5. Improper use of the District name or District logo indicating support/opposition for

political candidates, forums or related political activities.

C. Any District employee violating this section shall be guilty of improper conduct and shall
be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination.

Certification and Licensing

Upon submittal of evidence of obtaining bona fide certification in Water Treatment, Backflow Device
Tester, Water Distribution, Wastewater Treatment, CWPCA Industrial Waste, Laboratory
Technologist, Mechanical Assistant and/or Collection System Maintenance or other required
certifications or operating licenses, employees shall be reimbursed by the District for classes of
mandatory applicable testing and renewal fees, provided said certifications are appropriate to their
day-to-day employment responsibilities and the employees have obtained prior approval for
reimbursement on forms provided by the District.

Seminar & Tuition Assistance Expenses

For employees to receive financial assistance in continuing education they must;

A. Have been continuously employed at least 6 months;
B. Have prior approval of their supervisor and/or the General Manager; and
C. Have selected credit or non-credit courses given by an accredited or approved college or

school which:

1. Relate directly to their present or future job assignments;
2. Do not conflict with their assigned hours of work.
YVWD Perscnnel Manual Page 54

Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 111 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 61 of 82

NOTE: Upon approval of the General Manager, employees may attend seminars or special education as
may be beneficial to the District during working hours. The District may provide transportation and
will pay for all registration fees and materials needed. The employee is responsible for receiving
prior approval for District related reimbursable expenses prior to incurring any expenses related
to seminars andfor tuition and coordinating their time away from work with their immediate
supervisor,

Employees who qualify and continue in the District as an employee and achieve a final grade of
"C" or better will be reimbursed in full cn a semester or course basis, whichever is applicable for
the cost of their tuition, registration fees, and required text books. If the books are reimbursed,
they become the property of the District.

Layoff Procedure

The District may initiate layoffs for lack of work, lack of funds, reorganization or other legitimate
business reasons:

A. Non-Discrimination in Workforce Reduction — Demotions which result from a reduction in
force shall be made without regard to an employee’s race, color, creed, national origin,
religion, sex, age, physical/mental disability, medical condition, or U.S. Veterans’ status.

B. Layoff Plan — In the interest of Employees who may be adversely affected by a general
layoff arising from the need to reduce the work force, the District may first solicit volunteers
for alternative measures, such as early retirement, demotion, job sharing, reduced work
hours, and the like, in order to reduce the impact upon employees, so long as the District
determines that is in its best interest to take such measures.

C. Abalition of Position — Consistent with its Reserved Rights, the Board of Directors may
abolish any position in District service when, in the Board's judgment, such action becomes
necessary. Employees transferred, demoted, or laid off because of abolition of positions
shall receive written notice of such fact but shall not have the right of appeal in such cases.
When a position is abolished, every effort will be made to transfer the affected employee to
a comparable class and to follow the layoff procedures.

D. Layoff Area and Priority — The General Manager in consultation with the Board of Directors,
shall determine the area(s) and positions in which layoffs may occur, including the identity
of the department, division, work unit, class, and specific position. When a list of the affected
areas and/or positions has been prepared, a copy shall be submitted to all affected and
recognized employee organizations, and these rules shall prevail as to the method and
manner for implementing such layoffs:

. Generally, employees holding temporary, seasonal, part-time, probationary, or
provisional appecintments shall be laid off first. Employees serving in permanent
modified schedule (part-time) positions shall be laid off second. Employees in
classified service who have completed probations should be laid off last.

. For purposes of layoff and displacement, seniority for classified employees shall be
determined first by service credit within an identified classification and by higher
classification in the affected department. Seniority shall be determined thereafter on
a District-wide basis. A seniority list will be developed and posted.

. Service credit shall be weighed against the incumbents’ efficiency and effectiveness:

YVWD Personnel Manual FPage 55
Date of Adoptiocn: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 112 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 62 of 82

0 Ability to perform work, as determined by assessment of qualifications and
past work experience;
0 An assessment of the last 3 performance appraisals; and,
0 Discipline received during the last 12 months.
E. Service Credit — A service credit shall be determined and defined as follows:
. Continuous service in the classification, including successful completion of the

probationary period, shall be the basis for receiving one peint for each year of service

in the current classification, or fraction thereof for each full month of service in the

current classification.

. Continuous District service, including successfully completed probationary periods,

shall be the basis for receiving additional service credits as follows:

0 One point for each year of service, or fractions thereof, for each full month of
service, in lower classes of work within the same department; or

o One-half point for each year of service, or fractions thereof, for each full
month of service, in another classes of work within the different department
than the one in which currently employed;

. Performance evaluation based upon the employee’s last 3 annual ratings shall be
the basis of receiving additional service credits; each rating shall be valued as
follows:

Superior 2 points
Satisfactory 1 point

Below Satisfactory 0 points

¢ Disciplinary record evaluation for previous 12 months:
Two (2) or more conference memorandums -1 points
Reprimand -2 points
Suspension or other -3 points
F. Layoff Notifications — The General Manager, or designee, shall send written notice to the

last known address of each employee affected by a layoff at least 15 calendar days prior to
the effective date of such action. The notice shall include:

. The reason(s) for layoff;

. Classes or positions to which the employee may transfer or demote within the
department, or other departments, if any;

. Effective date of the action;

. Service credit of the employee based on the formula rating specified herein;

. Rules regarding waver of reinstatement and voluntary withdrawal from the
reinstatement list; and

. Limited appeal right of the employee, excluding layoff resulting from abolition of
position.

G. Bumping — An employee designated to be laid off may bump into any vacant position in the

same class elsewhere in the District, or into any position of the same class held by an
employee with lesser service credit elsewhere in the District. If no such position exists, the
employee may bump into the next lower classification within the same department, provided
that the employee has previously held permanent status in such classification with the
District and possesses greater service credit than another employee in the lower class.
Thereafter, an employee may bump into any previously held permanent position in the
District, provided that the occupant of such position has lesser credit than the employee

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 56
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 113 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 63 of 82

being laid off. Except as otherwise provided herein, an employee who is bumped shall be
laid off in the same manner as an employee whose position is abolished.

H. Layoff of Bumped Employee — A bumped employee, or an employee laid off as a result of
a displaced employee’s reversion to a lower classification, shall receive written notice of
layoff not less than 10 calendar days prior to the effective date of the layoff.

l. Reinstatement Lists — The names of permanent employees who have been laid off due to
reduction in force shall be placed on an appropriate reinstatement list according to the date
of separation on the following basis — the last employee laid off is the first employee on the
list with other employees eligible in sequential order thereafter. This list shall be used by
the appointing authority when a vacancy for that class is to be filled.

The eligibility of individuals on reinstatement lists shall extend for a pericd 1 year from the
date of layoff. Persons who do not respond to written notification of an opening within 10
working days shall have their names removed from the reinstatement list.

J. Notice of Recall from Layoff — Notice of recall from layoff shall be given by return receipt
requested mail. The notice shall specify the date for reporting to work, which shall be not
less than 5 calendar days nor more than 2 weeks from the date the notice is received. Notice
shall be deemed to have been received when sent to the last known address on file with the
District, and attempted delivery or actual delivery is certified by the Postal Service.

Upon receiving notice, the person on layoff shall have 3 calendar days to accept or decline
the recall opportunity. An employee who fails to respond affirmatively in writing within 3
calendar days, refuses recall, or fails to report on the prescribed date waives all further right
to recall and reinstatement as an employee.

When recall is declined or waived, the District will proceed to the next person on the
reinstatement list and follow the same notice and response procedure. This process will
continue through the list until recall needs are met or until the list is exhausted.

Reinstated persons shall receive the following upon return to service:

1. Retention of permanent full-time service credit accrued as the date of layoff.

2. The salary for the classification in effect as of the date of return, at the same step
level as the date of layoff, not to exceed the top step;

3. The accrual rate of vacation and sick leave in effect for the employee’s service credit

length and class at the time of rehire, but insurance contributions and qualifying
period shall be at the level of a new employee serving the obligatory probation period
of at least 6 months if on layoff for more than 1 year;

4. All other benefits or programs in effect at the time of layoff shall be forfeited unless
they are still applied to the classification or salary range at the time of rehire or
provided to new hires as of that date.

Resignations

An employee who fails to report to scheduled work hours or does not have a valid leave for 3
consecutive business days shall have been deemed to have constructively resigned. The
resignation of an employee is considered a voluntary termination and is initiated by the employee.
Generally, a 2-week notification is requested as a matter of courtesy to the District as the emplayer.

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 57
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 114 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 64 of 82

The District shall retain the option of dismissing the employee upon receipt of notice with full
payment of remaining wages and due benefits as provided for in District benefit package.

Disciplinary Action

The following disciplinary action may be taken against any employee either by the General Manager
or his/her designee.

A Oral or Written Warnings - Oral or written warnings may be filed in the employee's personnel
record file following personal consultation between the employee and his/her supervisor.

B. Suspension - Absence without pay directed as a disciplinary action.

C. Demotion - Reduction from a position in one class to a position in another class having a
lower salary range affected for disciplinary purposes. A demotion for disciplinary reasons
places the employee on probation in accordance with the Wage and Benefit Manual.
(Demctions resulting from employee inability to perform required duties, organizational
changes, and layoff, are not disciplinary.)

D. Dismissal - Discharge from the Water District service.

E. The District is not precluded from taking other corrective measures intended to modify
and/or sustain its norms.

In order to establish standards of conduct and work performance for Employees that are consistent
with the efficient and effective delivery of public services, and to maintain the integrity of employment
where public interest is vital, the District hereby sets forth those circumstances under which
disciplinary action may be required and the procedures under which such actions may occur, which
will afford employees fair treatment and due process.

To ensure equitable processing of disciplinary actions, the General Manager, or designee, shall be
responsible for the proper handling of such matters, including the assurance that Employee rights
are protected, and that appropriate action is taken when circumstances warrant. Officials of the
District who are responsible for recommending or implementing disciplinary action shall do so based
on the procedures prescribed herein and /or as dictated by external law.

Management Employees

No discipline will be proposed or implemented upon an exempt employee which would violate FLSA
Regulations, i.e., there will be no disciplinary suspensions for increments of less than 1 week, except
for major safety violations. (29 CFR Sections 541, 118(2) (5).)

Causes of Action

Itis intended that discipline be imposed primarily for corrective purposes and to address deficiencies
in work performance and events of misconduct. The following is a non-exclusive list of the more
common causes for disciplinary action:

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 58
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 115 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 65 of 82

A. Abuse or misuse of leave.

1. Improper or unauthorized use of abuse of sick leave;

2. Excessive or patterned absenteeism regardless of reason;

3 Being absent without authorized leave, repeated tardiness to assigned workstation,
or leaving assigned workstation without authorization.

4, Leaving work before the end of a workday or not being ready to work at the start
of a workday without approval of your supervisor; stopping work before time
specified for such purposes.

5. Failure to report an absence or late arrival; falsely recording timesheet.
B. Behavior.

1. Excessive use of District telephone for personal calls.
Violation of any District rule; or any action that is detrimental to the operation of the
District.

3. Immoral conduct or indecency on District property.

4, Conducting a lottery or gambling on District premises.

5. Violation of security or safety rules or failure to observe safety rules or safety

practices; failure to wear required safety equipment; tampering with YVWD
equipment or safety equipment.

6. Spreading malicious gossip and/or rumors; engaging in behavior which creates
discord and lack of harmony; interfering with another employee on the job; restricting
work output or encouraging others to do the same.

7. Negligence or any careless action that endangers the life or safety of one’s self or
another person.
8. Engaging in criminal conduct or acts of violence or making threats of violence toward

anyone on District premises or when representing YVWD; fighting, or provoking a
fight on District property, or negligent damage of property.

9. Any act of unlawful harassment, sexual, racial or other; telling sexist or racist jokes;
making racial or ethnic slurs.

10. Smoking in restricted areas as specified by department rules. (All YVYWD facilities
are designated as non-smoking facilities. Smoking is allowed on YVWD property,
outside of the buildings in accordance with State law.)

11. Willful or negligent violation of the personnel rules and regulations, resolutions, and
other related ordinances including departmental rules, regulations, manual and other
policies.

12. Unauthorized possession of dangerous or illegal firearms, weapons or explosives
on District property or while on duty.

13. Use of District vehicles or equipment for personal gain. The purchase of equipment,
supplies, or other items intended for personal use using District funds.

14. Failure to follow safe working practices or failure to report promptly an injury.

15. Insubordination or refusing to obey instructions properly issued by your supervisor
pertaining to your work for the District.

16. Responding defiantly to a supervisor's directive. Engaging in an act of sabotage;

negligently causing the destruction or damage of District property, or the property of
fellow employees, customers, suppliers, or visitors in any manner.

17. Participation in an unsanctioned strike, work stoppage, work slowdown, or other
detrimental concerted activity.
18. Sleeping or loitering during working hours.
YVWD Personnel Manual Page 59

Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 116 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 66 of 82

19. Acceptance or solicitation of gifts or gratuities in connection with or relating to the
Employee’s duties.

20. Conduct that is unbecoming a District Official or Employee which tends to discredit
the District or District service, including off-duty misconduct or willful
misrepresentation of the District.

21. Conviction of a crime, the nature of which reflects adversely upon the District or
serves as an indication of possible serious consequences related to the continued
assignment or employment of the Employee.

22. Dishonesty; falsification or misrepresentation on your application for employment or
other work-related records or reports; lying about sick or personal leave; falsifying
reasons for a leave of absence or other data requested by YVWD; alteration of
District records or cther District documents.

23. Discourteous treatment or harassment of the public or District employees.
Threatening, intimidating or coercing fellow employees, or the public, an or off the
premises at any time, for any purpose.

24. Conduct interfering with the reasonable management and discipline of the District or
any of its departments or divisions.
25. Engaging in political activities while on duty.

26. Any act or conduct that is discriminator or harassing in nature towards another
person’s race, creed, color, national origin, sex (including sexual harassment),
sexual preference, physical/mental disability, medical condition, age, religious,
beliefs, U.S. Veterans status or political affiliations.

27. Obscene or abusive language toward any manager, employee or customer;
indifference or rudeness towards a customer or fellow employee; any
disorderly/antagonistic conduct on District premises.

28. Unauthorized release of confidential information or official record; failure to treat
pending business matters as confidential.

29, Creating or contributing to unsanitary conditions.

30. Theft or unauthorized possession of District property or the property of fellow

employees; unauthorized possession or removal of any District property, including
documents, from the premises without prior permission from management;
unauthorized use of District equipment or property for personal reasons; using
District equipment for profit.

31. Speeding or careless driving of District vehicles.

32. Neglect of duty.

C. Work Performance

1. Unsatisfactory or careless work; failure to meet production or quality standards as
explained to you by your supervisor.

2. Inefficiency, incompetence, or negligence in the performance of duties, or failure to
discharge duties in a prompt, competent, and reasonable manner.

3. Refusal or inability to improve job performance in accordance with written or verbal
direction after reasonable trial pericd.

4. Refusal to accept reasonable and proper assignment from an authorized supervisor.

D. Substance Abuse

1. Being intoxicated or under the influence of a controlled substance while at work;
use, possession or sale of a controlled substance in any quantity while on District

YVWD Perscnnel Manual Page 60
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 117 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 67 of 82

premises, except medications prescribed by a physician which do not impair work

performance.

2. Inappropriate use of prescription drugs, possession of drug paraphernalia or open
container of alcoholic beverage while on duty.

3. Driving under the influence of alcohal or drugs, including prescription drugs which

are unauthorized/misused while on duty; or Suspension of driver's license where
job duties require driving.

4. Selling or providing another party, either directly or through an intermediary, drugs
or alcohol to any person, including, but not limited to another employee, while
either party is on duty or subject to call.

5. Other reasons subject to a test of just cause.

Notice of Proposed Disciplinary Action (Suspension or other action equivalent to more than 5 days)

An affected employee shall be given prior notification of a proposed disciplinary action. Notification
shall include a statement of proposed action and reasons therefore. A copy of the notice shall be
sent to the General Manager.

A Skelly Hearing - Administrative Review

Any regular employee, excepting introductory or part-time employees, shall have the right
to an Administrative Review of a disciplinary action, demotion, or dismissal. Such review
will be conducted by the General Manager or his/her designee prior to the effective date of
the disciplinary action unless unusual circumstances justify an effective date which makes
prior review unfeasible. In this event the review will be conducted within a reasonable period
of time after the effective date of the disciplinary action. The employee shall be provided
with written notice of materials supportive of the disciplinary action and permitted to appeal
personally before the reviewing officer. An Administrative Review shall not affect any rights
the employee may have to a hearing under provisions of the Grievance Procedure.

B. Administrative Review

The General Manager must approve recommendations for disciplinary action against an
employee. Disciplinary action is taken primarily for corrective purposes to address
deficiencies in work performance, misconduct or deviation from established policies. Types
of disciplinary action may include verbal or written warnings, suspension without pay,
demotion to a lower pay range or dismissal (termination). All proposed disciplinary actions
shall be subject to administrative review prior to the effective date of the proposed
disciplinary action, where such actions include suspension, demoticn or dismissal.

Grievance Procedure

A grievance procedure has been established for the following purposes:

A. Promoting improved employer/femployee relations by establishing an appropriate means for
determining the validity of grievances; that is, claims by an employee that the District has
violated, misrepresented or misapplied an obligation to the employee as such obligation is
expressed and written in the Personnel Policies of the District.

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 61
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 118 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 68 of 82

B. Providing a method of resolving such claims as closely as possible to the point of origin and
as informally as possible.

C. Encouraging free communications between supervisors and employees.

D. Providing due process for actions taken against regular employees.

Grievance Procedure Steps

A Step One: Supervisor - An employee who has a grievance shall first take it up informally
with their immediate supervisor within 10 business days after they know or reasonably
should have known of the occurrence of the cause for grievance.

B. Step Two: Department Head - If the grievance is not resolved within 5 business days after
its submission in Step One, an employee may submit their grievance in writing to their
department head within 7 business days after the grievance was discussed with their
Supervisor in Step One. No formal format is required for the written grievance claim. The
Department Head shall meet with the employee within 5 business days after receiving the
grievance and shall deliver his/her answer in writing to the employee within 5 business days
after such meeting. At this, and all subsequent steps in the grievance procedure, the
employee has the right to present their grievance with or without a representative, at their
option. This grievance procedure does not waive the right to meet and confer on issues
within the scope of bargaining in accordance with and to the extent permitted by a
Memorandum of Understanding.

C. Step Three: General Manager - If the grievance is not resolved in the Second Step, the
employee may submit it in writing to the General Manager within 5 business days after the
Department Head's answer is received in writing. The General Manager shall meet with the
employee within 5 business days after having received the grievance and shall deliver
his/her response to them in writing within 7 business days after such meeting.

D. Step Four: Board of Director's Hearing - If the grievance is not resclved in Step Three, the
employee may submit a request in writing to the Board of Directors through the General
Manager asking for a hearing. The request for a hearing will be forwarded to the Board of
Directors and a hearing officer will be appointed by the District to conduct a hearing and
report findings and recommendations to the Board of Directors. Upon receipt of the hearing
officer’s report, the Board may (1) adopt the report in its entirety; (2) adopt the findings of
fact but modify the recommended action; (3) find all or part of the report insufficient and elect
to make further findings through an investigation or hearing. The decision of the Board as
to the sufficiency of the cause for disciplinary action shall be conclusive administratively.

Whether the hearing or review of hearing findings is conducted in public or executive
session, the Board may deliberate its decision in executive session as permitted by law.
The Board of Directors shall respond to the grievance in a timely fashion at their next regular
Board Meeting following the meeting at which the grievance was heard or as soon as
mutually convenient.

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 62
Date of Adopticn: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 119 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 69 of 82

General Provisions

Upon receiving an employee request, the General Manager may approve the use of regular working
hours which the employee may meet with his/her representative to prepare and present the
grievance; otherwise such meeting must be held outside of working hours.

If appeal is not made within the time limits indicated, the grievance will be considered to have been
settled on the basis of the last decision rendered. Any grievance not responded to within the
prescribed time limits as described in this section will be automatically advanced to the next higher
step unless the time limit is extended by mutual agreement.

Employees are assured freedom from reprisal for using the grievance procedure.

Observance of Policy

All employees are expected to observe the policies contained herein. Any questions or
misunderstandings of the above shall be directed to the General Manager. Failure to observe the
Personnel Palicies of the District may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination.

Effectiveness of Provisions

If any term, covenant, condition, or provision of this Document is found by a court of competent
jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions hereof shall remain
in full force and effect, and shall in no way be affected, impaired, or invalidated thereby.

END OF SECTION

YVYWD Personnel Manual Page 63
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 120 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 70 of 82

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT FOR GENERAL EMPLOYEES
OF THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

The following are the terms and conditions of employment for General Employees of the
Yucaipa Valley Water District (“District” or “YVYWD") contract period July 1, 2016 through
June 30, 2019. Each may be referred to herein as a “Party” and jointly as the “Parties”.

1.0 Application. These Terms and Conditions of Employment (“Terms and
Conditions”) apply to the IBEW Local Union 1436 — YYWD Unit (“General Employees”) of
the District pursuant to Resolution No. 04-2007, adopted on January 17, 2007.

20 Term. This Memorandum of Agreement (“Agreement”) shall have a three-year
term and continue in effect until June 30, 2019. This Agreement is entered inta between
the YVWD and the General Employees pursuant to the provisions of the Myer-Milias-
Brown Act, and thereafter shall continue in effect fiscal year by fiscal year unless either
one af the Parties appropriately notifies the other Party, in writing, of its request to modify,
amend or terminate the Agreement. Requests to modify the Agreement shall be
submitted to the other Party during the forty-five (45) calendar day period commencing
January 1, 2019.

3.0 Salary Increase. All unit members shall receive a seven percent (7%) base
salary increase, effective the first feasible pay period following full ratification of the
tentative agreement (presently estimated to be February 26, 2018).

4.0 Salary Schedule.

4.1 The salary schedule shall be increased by seven percent (7%) for all ranges
effective the first feasible pay period following full ratification of the tentative
agreement (presently estimated to be February 26, 2018).

4.2 Effective July 1, 2018, all General Employee salary schedules shall be
increased by three percent (3%) for all ranges.

50 PERS Retirement Contribution. Classic PERS unit members shall be
responsible for paying the employee portion of the PERS retirement contribution
(currently seven percent (7%)), effective the first feasible pay period following full
ratification of the tentative agreement {presently estimated to be February 26, 2018).

6.0 Merit Salary System. The merit salary increases shall be established at zero
percent (0%) to six percent (6%) for this contract pericd. In accordance with established
negotiated practice, evaluations will be completed in March of each contract year and
any merit increases based thereon shall be effective April 1 of each contract year.

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 64
Date of Adeption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 121 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 71 of 82

7.0 Medical Insurance Provisions. The District shall contribute a monthly amount
equal to the average of the single employee, employee plus spouse, employee plus family
plans. Employees in the General Employee bargaining unit shall be responsible for any
cost above the fixed monthly contribution by the District through regular payroll deduction.

Below are the current premiums for the 2018 calendar year:

2018 Calendar Year Health
Benefit Contribution

Single $843
Employee +1 51,294
Family $1,682

8.0 Personnel Manual Changes. The following sections of the Yucaipa Valley Water
District’s Personnel Manual shall be modified:

A. Rules and Requlations - Work Boots.

It is the responsibility of each employee (administrative and non-administrative) to
purchase and have available at work steel toe work boots (“Work Boots™). Work
boots are womn on a regular basis by all non-administrative employees including
but not limited to employees in the water, sewer, and recycled water divisions. All
other employees may be required to wear Work Boots in the event of emergency
or hazardous conditions.

All Work boots shall meet the following minimum criteria:

made of leather construction;
required to have steel toe protection with an American National Standard
Institute (ANSI) rating of no less than C-75;

+ have a height of no less than six (6) inches in order to cover the ankle and
provide support; and

¢ may be a style which is either a slip-on or have laces depending on the job
reguirement.

The District will provide an allowance of $300.00 per employee for safety steel toe
work boots in July of each fiscal year (July 1 to June 30). Any purchase or series
of purchases, within a one-year period that exceeds this amount will be the
responsibility of the employee.

B. Time Off - Bereavement Leave.

Employees are eligible to receive up to five days of paid leave for the death of a
spouse/partner, parent, child, sibling, grandparent, grandchild, or
spouse/partner’'s parent to attend services or assist in arrangements relative to
the event in accordance with the applicable rules and regulations pertaining
hereto.

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 65
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 122 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 72 of 82

C. Time Off - Catastrophic Leave.

Catastrophic illness/injury shall be defined as those categories (exclusive of
stress) generally accepted by medical insurance carriers. Employees of the
District who suffer a catastraphic injuryfillness in which the employee is expected
to be incapacitated for an extended period of time, the time to be determined on a
case by case basis by the Catastrophic Sick Leave Plan Committee as specified
below, shall become eligible to use this Catastrophic Sick Leave Plan ("Plan™)
subject to the restrictions and conditions outlined below:

a. An employse may elect to enroll in the plan at any time. To enroll as a
member of the Plan, the employee must donate a minimum of 24 hours at
the time the employee elects to join the Plan.

b. An employee may elect to join the Plan upon the first day of employment
with the District. At that time, as the employee will not currently have any
accrued sick leave, 2.78 hours per pay period (equal to seventy-five
percent (75%) of the total pay period accrual) will be donated into the Plan
and the employee will accrue the remaining sick leave of 0.92 hours per
pay period (equal to twenty-five percent (25%) of the total pay period
accrual) until 24 hours are contributed to the Plan. This mechanism is also
available to existing employee’s for all ar a portion of the 24 hours required
to contribute to the Plan.

¢. The employee must be an active participating member of this Plan in order
to receive any form of benefit as described below.

d. In the event of a catastrophic illness as described above, the following
options shall be utilized in the following order: (a) employee's accumulated
sick leave; and (b) authorized catastrophic leave.

e. The employee to receive donated sick leave from the Plan must have
exhausted all but 10 hours of sick leave and must be in a true catastrophic
condition.

f. In order for members to remain as participants, each person must maintain
continued participation as defined below.

The donation of sick leave time to the Plan shall be irrevocable. The member shall
file an irrevocable "Catastrophic Sick Leave Plan Deposit Form" with Payroll. A
donation to the Plan shall be a general donation and from prior years'
accumulations, or future accrued sick leave as provided above, and shall not be
donated to a specific employee for his or her exclusive use.

There is no limit to the number of sick leave days a member may donate to the
Plan, so long as after the initial 24 hours of donation: (1) the minimum number of
accumulated sick leave days available in the employee’'s account does not fall
below eighty (80) hours.

A contribution of 8 hours will be required of all participants if the number of hours
in the Plan falls below 400 hours. This assessment will occur automatically with
notification sent to all participating members that an additional contribution was
made from your sick leave. Members who are drawing from the Plan at the time
of the assessment will not be required to contribute to remain eligible to draw from
the Plan. If a participant has ten {10) or less days (80 hours) of remaining sick

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 66
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 123 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 73 of 82

leave at the time of the assessment, they need not contribute the additional day
to remain a participant in the Plan.

In the event, the accrued catastrophic leave fund balance exceeds the amount of
$250,000, each active member in the Plan will receive eight (8) hours of sick leave
returned to their personal sick leave accruals and the fund balance of the
catastrophic leave will be reduced proportionately. Employees will receive written
notification of this disbursement from the Plan.

Leave from the Plan may not be used for illness or disability which qualifies the
employee for Worker's Compensation benefits; however, this plan may augment
other benefits. When the employee may reasonably be presumed to be eligible
for disability retirement or, if applicable, Social Security, he / she may be requested
to apply for such retirement. Failure of the employee to submit a complete
application, including medical information provided by the applicant's physician,
within twenty (20) working days will disqualify the member from further
Catastrophic Sick Leave Plan payments.

Cancellation of membership in the Plan occurs automatically whenever a member
fails to make his or her contribution as defined above. The employee shall not be
eligible to draw from the Plan as of the effective date of cancellation. Sick leave
previously authorized for contribution to the Plan shall not be returned if the
member elecis or causes cancellation.

A member wishing to use this Catastrophic Sick Leave Plan shall submit a
"Catastrophic Sick Leave Plan Request for Withdrawal Form™. This form shall be
submitted to the General Manager. The request shall clearly state the details of
the catastrophe and the amount of sick leave requested.

Appropriate written verification of the catastrophic illness or injury must be
included with the request. The member should be prepared to provide additional
documentation on the nature and severity of the illness or injury, if requested.

The Catastrophic Sick Leave Plan Commitiee (“Committee”) shall consider each
disbursement request by members of the Plan. The committee shall consist of
the following:

» One active employee assigned by a majority of the Exempt Employee
Bargaining Group:
+  One active employee assigned by a majority of the Supervisory Employee
Bargaining Group:
* One active employee assigned by IBEW from the General Employee
Bargaining Group.

The Committee may grant, reject or partially grant a request based on a number
of factors, including but not limited to the degree of iliness, other forms of leave
available, and other factors deemed by the Committee to be relevant to the
particular situation. The members of the Committee shall not disclose the
medical conditions of the employee requesting Catastrophic Sick Leave under
the Plan. The action by the Committee is final.

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 67
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 124 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 74 of 82

In the event that an employee does not qualify for Catastrophic Sick Leave they
may request approval from the General Manager to obtain individual donations of
sick time from District employees.

The maximum number of duty days allowed to be utilized by one member for a
single catastrophic injury/iliness shall not exceed thirty days (240 hours) per
request. A member may request a specific number of days on one "Catastrophic
Sick Leave Plan Reguest for Withdrawal Form". The member may request
additional days after the use of twenty (20) duty days (or 160 hours) by filing an
additional request for consideration to the Committee.

Any days approved that are unused by the member shall be returned to the
Catastrophic Sick Leave Plan for future withdrawals by a Plan participant upon
approval.

If a Plan member receives hours from the Plan, the member will receive those

Plan hours at the same rate of pay currently received by the employee. No
distinction shall be made as to the differing pay rates of the donors or recipients.

IBEW Local Union 1436 - YWVWD Unit:

/S/ Sean Trost
Authorized Representative — Sean Trost Date

/S/Kyle Westerlin
Authorized Representative — Kyle Westerlin Date

Yucaipa Valley Water District:

1S/ Allison M. Edmisten
Allison M. Edmisten, Chief Financial Officer Date

YVWD Perscnnel Manual Page 68
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 125 of 166



Page 75 of 82

Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250

ore'cs 9aL'es BYCZS 0z
005 [ 999°28 (¥4
¥6U'cY ugr'es ¥0LZS zz
SUBIO MO0IS /| B[O SALBASIUILPY 80R°CH 29'cs L0625 £z
Z95'cH £41°c$ 610'€S Ve
9LL'b$ 0ze'cs 9cl'es Ge
0/2'F$ 290°t$ £5¢°€S 9¢
11 448D Y001S/I1 SHBID SANEJISIUILIPY ver' v Lz vs 14£°CS L2
RO | SoUBUSJUIB JuB|d 8/5'F$ 09€°t$ 88+'ES 3¢
ZEL'YS 106 7% 909'es 6z
008'+$ FEO'¥S £22'C8 0c
Il >H8|3 dAlEsIuILpY L7D'G$ L08'r$ [ e
Buiuied L Ul Jojededo peledbeu | ASIOM B2IABS AN G6L'GS 166'7S QG6'CS z¢
|| UepiUYD] adueusIIRN 1UB|] | vepluyos | Bulwsuibulg BYE'GH ¥60'GS G40'%S £e
€064 LvZ'6% 6178 Pe
uePIuYe | Ajleny Jojepp Al MBID SARRASIVILPY 250'6% eielogh 01E'YS SC
| Jopessd o parelfau| || d2sopp SoIBS AN LLR'GH PEG'GS s s ag
1| ueduyos ] Buusaubug GO5'GH 189'G$ SPG'pS 1>
|1l UBRIUYOD ] SoUBUSIUIE JuB|d 611°9$ 828'5% 299'%S 8¢
A B[O SARASIUIUPY £LZ'0% CI6'6S 08178 6¢
1siwBLD AlentD J8jepm 1] 4800 8oIMBS AN A gt 12198 LB8'%S o
1 uepuyza] Buussubiug [Beiegely 892°'9% ¥10'6S L
|| JojesadQ pajesfiap) uaby Buiseyaing 9cL'0$ Sir'o% ZEL'SS zF
06R's$ z9G'9% 6YZ'SS £
Il Jojetsdo Al XM 3ones Aunn w02 BUL'9% 9E°68 [ad
15/[epeds [04U0D AJllenD Jele i Al Uepiuyoe L funsesuibug 861.°L§ £6R'9% ¥2t'GS St
25E'1% 20028 109'GS EL
90529 6¥L'L% 612'6S it
099'2% g62 L% 9£8'68 8t
1l s0ji8dQ pajesbaju| 44OAR SOIMBS AH|IHN JOIUSS iR chris ¥G6'GS 6%
Al J0leRdo 898'/% 68G'.$ 120'98 i
2zL'e$ 9el'l% 281'9s LS
9.2'e$ 2ee'ls 90£'98 26
0Er'8$ 620°'8% £21'98 £6
G85'8% LS 9 ¥S
Aldoriedo pelesbaiul BEL'8% 869'95 GG
Z6R'8$ G/2'95 96
170’64 £68'98 15
LOZ'BS 0L0'48 85
PEE'BY YRS 656
B0G'6$ G LS 09
sjuaWpedaq 19Mag pue 1JBAR sjuaWpHedaq SO Jllqnd Juauwgiedag uojenS|uILIpY sfuog WNUIXEW | Wiy abuey
! ! e abuey abuey abuey

8L0¢/L/ L aAl8yg

S9)1 qor pue sabuey Alejeg - JoL13SIq J19)ep AdjjeA edieoh

Page 69

YVWD Personnel Manual

Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 126 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 76 of 82

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT - AMENDMENT NO. 1

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT FOR
MANAGEMENT - SUPERVISORY EMPLOYEES OF THE
YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

The following are the terms and conditions of employment for Management - Supervisory
Employees of the Yucaipa Valley Water District (“District” or “YVWD”) contract period ending on
June 30, 2020. Each may be referred to herein as a "Party" and jointly as the "Parties”.

RECITALS

On July 15, 2015, the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley Water District approved a
Memeorandum of Agreement with the Management - Supervisory Employees of the Yucaipa Valley
Water District as Director Memorandum No. 15-071. Section 8.0 of the Memorandum of
Agreement with the Management - Supervisory Employees of the Yucaipa Valley Water District
states, “If the other bargaining groups (General Employee or Management — Exempt Employee)
bargaining unit(s) receive an increase in compensation higher than the terms and conditions set
forth in this Agreement with the Management — Supervisory Employees, such increase(s) will also
be granted to the Management — Supervisory Employees up to June 30, 2020.”

On February 6, 2018, the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley Water District will consider a
Memorandum of Agreement with the General Employees of the Yucaipa Valley Water District as
Director Memorandum No. 18-024. If approved, the implementation of the Memorandum of
Agreement for the General Employees requires an amendment to the Memorandum of
Agreement with the Management - Supervisory Employees of the Yucaipa Valley Water District
as follows:

AMENDMENT NO. 1

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Memorandum of Agreement with the Management -
Supervisory Employees of the Yucaipa Valley Water District, the following sections of the
Memorandum of Agreement with the General Employees of the Yucaipa Valley Water District
(attached) shall apply to the members of the Management - Supervisory Employees:

Section 1.0 Application Not applicable
Section 2.0 Term Not applicable
Section 3.0  Salary Increase This section of the Memorandum of Agreement

with the General Employees shall be applicable
to the Management - Supervisory Employees.

Secticn 4.0  Salary Schedule This section of the Memorandum of Agreement
with the General Employees shall be applicable
to the Management - Supervisory Employees.

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 70
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 127 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 77 of 82

Section 5.0  PERS Retirement Contribution  This section of the Memorandum of Agreement
with the General Employees shall be applicable
to the Management - Supervisory Employees.

Section 6.0 Merit Salary System This section of the Memorandum of Agreement
with the General Employees shall be applicable
to the Management - Supervisory Employees.

Section 7.0  Medical Insurance Provisions  On January 24, 2018, the Management -
Supervisory Employees voted to implement a
methodology for calculating the District's
contribution of medical insurance whereby all
members of the bargaining group will receive an
equal financial contribution utilizing a factor of
1.30 applied to the average premium of medical
providers except for Health Net Salud y Mas.

Section 8.0  Personnel Manual Changes This section of the Memorandum of Agreement

with the General Employees shall be applicable
to the Management - Supervisory Employees.

Management — Supervisory Employees:

1S/ Joe DeSalliers

Authorized Representative — Joe DeSalliers Date
IS/ Peggy Little
Authorized Representative — Peggy Little Date

Yucaipa Valley Water District:

S/ Jay Bogh
Jay Bogh, President Date

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 71
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 128 of 166



Page 78 of 82

Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250

O 2% Z50 1% L9 6§ 0L
LIG /% L1Z'/% B80.L'CY SolL
geL LS 0LE°L% 052'GE S0t
906°L3 625 L3 £20'9% 201
£/0'8% 88543 151'9% 801
ore'8s 818 LS 8/7'9% 801
weriyoe | Budesulbuz jones 0¥'8% 100 8% SOr 9% oLl
v/G8% 00l 2% CEC'0% LLL
ZrL et GZE'2% 009'0% ZLL
Jasiuedns syio, olIdnd . %t,m ”Wﬁﬁnww%“mﬂw_sg B06'8$ er'es 882°9% ehh
J0jetedo Je|d/pereabe) Joes 9/0'6% 779 8% SL6'9% 1412
EVZ 6% £08 2% Zr0L$ Sl
DL¥'68 2o8'2% 04128 all
LIG'6% L2L 6% 1RZ 1% A"
S+L'6% 182 63 LA PR gLl
{A epriD) Joeiedo peesfe| woueg zL6'6% Ot 6% 755'1% 6L
50018 B85 6% 5/9°/% 0cl
snuog WINWIXEL | WNWiugy
spawMedaq 12Mag PUR JDLEAA swawpedag SH0AL 2110Nd uawuedag UOREGSIU[WPY aBuEy oBUEY oBliey abuey

8L0Z/LIL @Alj0RlST

s9|)1 ] qor pue sabuey Alejeg - JoL13s1Qq 193eM A9jjeA edieon )

Page 72

YVWD Personnel Manual

Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 129 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 79 of 82

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT - AMENDMENT NO. 1

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT FOR
MANAGEMENT - EXEMPT EMPLOYEES OF THE
YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

The following are the terms and conditions of employment for Management - Exempt Employees
of the Yucaipa Valley Water District (“District” or “YVWD”) contract period ending on
June 30, 2020. Each may be referred to herein as a "Party" and jointly as the "Parties”.

RECITALS

On July 15, 2015, the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley Water District approved a
Memorandum of Agreement with the Management - Exempt Employees of the Yucaipa Valley
Water District as Director Memorandum No. 15-072. Section 7.0 of the Memorandum of
Agreement with the Management - Exempt Employees of the Yucaipa Valley Water District states,
“If the other bargaining groups (General Employee or Management — Supervisory Employee)
bargaining unit(s) receive an increase in compensation higher than the terms and conditions set
forth in this Agreement with the Management — Exempt Employees, such increase(s) will also be
granted to the Management — Exempt Employees up to June 30, 2020.”

On February 6, 2018, the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley Water District will consider a
Memorandum of Agreement with the General Employees of the Yucaipa Valley Water District as
Director Memorandum No. 18-024. If approved, the implementation of the Memorandum of
Agreement for the General Employees will require an amendment to the Memorandum of
Agreement with the Management - Exempt Employees of the Yucaipa Valley Water District as
follows:

AMENDMENT NO. 1

Pursuant to the terms and cenditions of the Memorandum of Agreement with the Management -
Exempt Employees of the Yucaipa Valley Water District, the following sections of the
Memorandum of Agreement with the General Employees of the Yucaipa Valley Water District
(attached) shall apply to the members of the Management - Exempt Employees:

Section 1.0 Application Not applicable
Section2.0 Term Not applicable
Section 3.0  Salary Increase This section of the Memorandum of Agreement

with the General Employees shall be applicable
to the Management - Exempt Employees.

Section 4.0  Salary Schedule This section of the Memorandum of Agreement
with the General Employees shall be applicable
to the Management - Exempt Employees.

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 73
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 130 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 80 of 82

Section 5.0 PERS Retirement Contribution  This section of the Memorandum of Agreement
with the General Employees shall be applicable
to the Management - Exempt Employees.

Section 6.0  Merit Salary System This section of the Memorandum of Agreement
with the General Employees shall be applicable
to the Management - Exempt Employees.

Section 7.0  Medical Insurance Provisions  OnJanuary 24, 2018, the Management - Exempt
Employees voted to implement a methodology
for calculating the District's contribution of
medical insurance whereby the employee
receiving medical benefits as “employee plus
one” and “family” receive the average for these
classifications from quoted medical providers
(with the exception of the Health Net Salud y
Mas plan), and the single beneficiaries receive a
calculated remaining amount.

Section 8.0 Personnel Manual Changes This section of the Memorandum of Agreement

with the General Employees shall be applicable
to the Management - Exempt Employees.

Management — Exempt Employees:

/8/ Kathryn Hallberg

Authorized Representative — Kathryn Hallberg Date
1S/ Mike Kostelecky
Authorized Representative — Mike Kostelecky Date

Yucaipa Valley Water District:

1S/ Jay Bogh
Jay Bogh, President Date

YVWD Perscnnel Manual Page 74
Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 131 of 166



Page 81 of 82

Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250

[ZVALS £0r /5 £Zh 55§ oL
Z¥6 /8§ vO6/S 1C0'0% 11z
LLL'Bs $2L'L% 08108 [T
68/2'85 S8R°/5 0C°05 the
av+ 8% 910°8% 1E¥'0% Y4
2198 90¢'8% S95'9% Sz
Gg/'8% 19285 16905 gLz
o6 8% 825'8% 228'9% i1e
I £21'8% 289'2% 1S6'08 a1z
162'88 61805 6.0°L8 6Lz
09+'65 60065 204 [ ot
829'66 0£1°6% 9ee' LS 122
262'6% LEE'BS v LS [4£4
0066 LEF 5% CRG /% £22
PELOLS 26968 12418 22
COC01% Z186% 068/§ (44
ZIF015 /665 8L6'LS 9ee
0¥9'0} £E1'0 1 201'88 2C
JeBeuep suonessdo 50801 62 0 H SET'8% aze
11801 GG 019 +9E 8% [+
arL'L1L% L9015 Z61'8% [
SIE'LLE 0,018 120'88 1€2
1sBeLEY 80IN0SaY JBJE A cer'LLg 8C6'01% 6v.'88% %4
Z50'L 1% 60°}115 2.8'8d £Le
JeBeuep syiop o11GNd 0z8'L1§ 852' 113 900'6% VET
6586'LLE g LIS SE1'68 GET
EEES 6.6 115 £9Z'65 95z
9ze21% 604118 16£'6% 82
S6¥Z1% 006°) 1% 025 6% qez
#0021 1907218 o¥0'6 [
ZERZ) 222l LG8 ore
LOO'EL 28E'C 1S S06'6% L¥Z
89L'ELS rs'cis YEO'0LS [ 74
8EEELS 04718 zZaL'oLg £¥z
L0GE1S £0R'Z1S LBZ UL e
5/0c1g ¥Z0CIHS 8LF 01% Stz
¥¥2'c1% LTRSS 8¥5'0L% oFz
ZH'FIS SYE'CIS 949'01% ¥e
49010 [EIOUBUL JAIYD L8L'¥1E 905°€1$ 508'01% are
NSE'vLE 999'E 15 £eR'0LE 61z
BLG Y1 /Z8ELS ZO0' L% 052
sluawpedaqg 19mag pue Ja)ep sjuawpedag syI0p Olgnd awpedag uolensIuwupEy snuog WRWIXEN | WL abuey
' ’ o abBuey abuey abuey

81L0Z/1fL @AI344

sajIL qor pue sabuey Alejes - Jouysiq J9jepp Aajjep edieon)

Page 75

YVWD Personnel Manual

Date of Adoption: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 132 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-250 Page 82 of 82

Receipt and Acknowledgment of
Yucaipa Valley Water District Personnel Manual

Please read, sign and return to your supervisor.

Understanding and Acknowledging Receipt of Yucaipa Valley Water District Personnel Manual.

| have received and read a copy of the District's Personnel Manual. | understand that the policies
and benefits described in it are subject to change at the sole discretion of Yucaipa Valley Water
District at any time.

Employee’s Printed Name Employee’s Sighature Date

YVWD Personnel Manual Page 76
Date of Adopticn: November 20, 2018

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 133 of 166



P 2
' Yucaipa Valley Water District Workshop Memorandum 18-251
W

Date: November 13, 2018
From: John Wrobel, Public Works Manager
Subject: Ratification of the Issuance of a Class Il Non-Significant Industrial User Discharge

Permit to Skat-Trak Performance Products - Permit No. CP-003-03

Publicly owned treatment works (POTWSs) collect waste from homes, commercial buildings, and
industrial facilities and transport the water carrying waste via a series of pipes, known as a sewer
collection system to a sewer treatment plant. Here, the POTW is responsible for separating the
waste from the water.

Generally, POTWs are designed to treat waste in water from typical domestic uses. However,
POTWSs also receive waste from industrial (non-domestic) users. Industrial wastewater often
includes by-product chemicals from production and manufacturing processes that can contain
chemicals such as copper, lead, nickel, and other heavy metals. Because certain wastes can
interfere with the biological or filtration treatment processes, these wastes must be removed before
they are discharged into a sewer collection system.

The removal process is known as "pretreatment" and is enforced by the General Pretreatment
Regulations at 40 CFR 403.1 et seq. which establish the responsibilities of government agencies
and industries to implement practices to control industrial wastes that may pass through or interfere
with publicly owned treatment works (POTWSs) or contaminate sewage sludge.

In 1978, U.S. EPA promulgated extensive regulations requiring many POTWs to develop and
implement local pretreatment programs. U.S. EPA delegated the responsibility to oversee these
pretreatment programs to the State Water Board and Regional Water Boards in 1989. As a result,
the State and Regional Water Quality Control Boards are responsible for the review and approval of
POTW pretreatment programs. The discharge permits for POTWs spell out the pretreatment
program monitoring and reporting requirements.

The Regional Water Board's pretreatment program includes pretreatment compliance audits,
inspections, annual and semiannual report reviews, program modifications, and enforcement
activities. Pretreatment compliance inspections verify the compliance status of POTWs, focusing on
the POTW's own compliance monitoring and enforcement activities. Pretreatment compliance audits
involve a comprehensive review of all elements of a POTW's pretreatment program. Audits take
place every five years. Inspections usually occur every year, except when an audit is scheduled.

The attached pretreatment permit outlines the pollutant limitations for the industrial wastewater to be
discharged from the Skat-Trak Performance Products facility located at 654 Avenue. “K”.

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 134 of 166


http://www.access.gpo.gov/nara/cfr/waisidx_06/40cfr403_06.html

Workshop Memorandum No. 18-251 Page 2 of 22

PN RECEIVED
’ Yucaipa Valley Water District

e YUCAIPA VALLEY
W WATER DISTRICT
CLASS Il NON-SIGNIFICANT INDUSTRIAL USER
DISCHARGE PERMIT
Date: October 4, 2018
Name: Skat-Trak Performance Products
654 Ave. “K”

Calimesa, CA 92320
Attention:  Ms. Diane Stuart, Secretary-Treasurer

Reference: Class Il Non-Significant Categorical Industrial User Discharge
Permit Issued to Skat-Trak Performance Products

Permit No: CP-003-03

SIC No: 3365
NAICS: 331524

Issued By: Yucaipa Valley Water District
12770 Second Street
Yucaipa, CA 92399

Dear Ms. Stuart:

The enclosed permit outlines the pollutant limitations for the industrial wastewater to be
discharged from Skat-Trak Performance Products, facility located at 654 Ave. “K" into the
Yucaipa Valley Water District ("District”) wastewater collection system. All discharges of
wastewater generated at this facility, actions, and reports thereto, shall be in accordance with
the terms and conditions of this permit and the District's Sewer Use Ordinance. The annual
permit fee is $500 per year plus sampling costs.

If you wish to appeal or challenge any of the discharge limitations, pretreatment requirements,
or conditions imposed in this permit, a petition must be filed for modification or reissuance of this
permit within ten (10) working days of issuance.

It is hereby certified that this permit was prepared based on information provided by a
combination of one or more of the following sources: the user’s permit application, facts
obtained during a field inspection of the user’'s wastewater generating activities, and/or
additional information obtained from the user.

, \
Soder: (4 Aol
( John Wrobel,

Public Works| Manager

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 135 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-251 Page 3 of 22

290 Skat-Trak Performance Products
# VYucaipa Valley Water Distiict Wastewater Discharge Permit
Q¥ Number CP-003-03

Page 1

Class Il Non-Significant Categorical Industrial User Discharge Permit
Number CP-003-03

IU Name and Address: Skat-Trak Performance Products
654 Ave. “K”
Calimesa, CA 92320

Responsible Party: Diane Stuart, Secretary-Treasurer

Contact: Al Miersma, Safety Trainer (909)
795-2505

Mailing Address: Skat-Trak Performance Products
P.O. Box 518
Calimesa, CA 92320

In accordance with the provisions of the Yucaipa Valley Water District's Sewer Use Ordinance,
the above listed company (“permittee”) is hereby authorized to discharge industrial wastewater
from 654 Ave. "K” Calimesa, CA 92320 to the District's wastewater collection system, in
accordance with the discharge limitations, monitoring requirements, and other conditions set
forth in this permit. Compliance with this permit does not relieve the permittee of its obligation to
comply with all pretreatment regulations, standards or requirements under local, State and
Federal laws, including any such laws, regulations, standards, or requirements that may
become effective during the term of this permit.

Noncompliance with the terms and conditions of this permit shall constitute a violation of the
requirements of the District's Sewer Use Ordinance, and shall subject the permittee to
applicable enforcement actions.

This permit shall become effective on: October 17, 2018
This permit shall expire at midnight on: October 16, 2020

The permittee shall not discharge any industrial wastewater after the date of expiration. If the
permittee wishes to continue discharging wastewater to the District's wastewater collection
system after the expiration date, an application must be filed for reissuance of this permit in
accordance with the requirements of District's Sewer Use Ordinance. This application is due a
minimum of 90-days prior to the expiration of this permit.

Issued By: N Accepted By:
7 p 1 {
Tt (A Modst o
Johyi Wrobel,Public Works Manager Diane Stuart, Secretary-Treasurer
ucaipa Valley Water District Skat-Trak Performance Products
12770 Second Street 654 Ave. “K”
Yucaipa, CA 92399 Calimesa, CA 92320

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 136 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-251 Page 4 of 22

29D Skat-Trak Performance Products
@ Yucaipa Valley Water District Wastewater Discharge Permit
V¥ Number CP-003-03

Page 2

PART 1 - DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS

A. Discharge Locaticn: During the period of October 18, 2018 to midnight of October 17,
2020, the pemittee is authorized to discharge the industrial wastewater specified in Part 1-
C, through the sample location(s), and outfall(s) listed below to the District's wastewater
collection system.

1. Discharge Location 001 - The floor sink located in the boiler and autoclave area, which
is located on the south side of the main building (See diagram on Page 8). This discharge is
subject to the District’s local limits.

Skat-Trak Performance Product’s only non-domestic discharge is generated from boiler and
autoclave batch discharges. Skat-Trak is not permitted to discharge any other process tanks
or containers.

B. Permit Duration and Designated Discharge Limits: During the period of October 17,
2018 to midnight of October 16, 2020 the industrial wastewater discharged from Sample
Location 001, shall not exceed the Local Discharge Limitations specified in the Discharge
Limitation Table on page 6.

C. Pemit Classification: Skat-Trak Performance Products is classified as a Non-Significant
Categorical Industrial User (NSCIU) as outlined in 40CFR464.15 Subpart “A” PSES
Aluminum Casting and 40 CFR464.35 Subpart “C” PSES Ferrous Casting. Skat-Trak has
chosen to haul and/or evaporate all process wastewater. Industrial User (Permittee) is not
authorized to discharge any federally (Categorical) regulated process wastewater into
the sanitary sewer. The only industrial wastewater permitted to be discharged is the batch
discharges from the boiler (less than 140 degrees °F (Fahrenheit) prior to discharge) and
autoclave.

D. Total Toxic Organic (TTO) Meonitoring: TTO monitoring is required under 40CFR464 for
wastewater discharges from the investment casting/cleaning operation. As an alternative to
TTO monitoring the permittee may choose to monitor for oil and grease (40CFR464.03 (a)).
Since there is no discharge of process wastewater allowed under this permit, the TTO
monitoring requirement is waived. However, a TTO Management Plan (TOMP), that
specifies to the satisfaction of the District the toxic organic compounds stored and used, the
method of disposal such as recycling, incineration, or contract hauling; and the procedures
for ensuring that toxic organics do not routinely spill or leak into the wastewater is required.

A TOMP was previously submitted to the District. Skat-Trak shall continue to be required to
complete a cerification statement in the self monitoring reports that the TOMP is being
followed. (See Part 1 Section E below) shall be submitted with the annual report as
indicated in Part 3 Section A of this Permit.

E. Certification Statement in Lieu of Requiring Monitoring for TTO: The District may allow
Skat-Trak Performance Products to make the following cerification statement. "Based on
my inguiry of the person or persons directly responsible for managing compliance with the
permit limitation [or pretreatment standard] for total toxic organics (TTO), | certify that, to the
best of my knowledge and belief, no dumping of concenfrated foxic organics into the
wastewaters has occurred since filing of the last discharge monitoring report. | further certify
that this facility is implementing the Toxic Organic Management Plan (TCMP) submitted to
the District. This statement is to be included as a comment with each Self Monitoring Report
required by this permit. If monitoring is necessary to measure compliance with the TTO
standard, the industrial discharger shall analyze for only those pollutants which would
reasonably be expected to be present above 0.01 mg/L.

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 137 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-251 Page 5 of 22

Py d ) Skat-Trak Performance Products
@ Yucaipa Valley Water District Wastewater Discharge Permit
LW” Number CP-003-03

Page 3

F. Certification Statement: certifying that the prefreatment standards are being met in the self
monitoring data. This statement will be included on the Self monitoring Report Forms
provided by the District.

G. The il and grease limitations are listed on pages 4 & 5 of the pemit. The section applies
only to categorical discharges and therefore is not required under this discharge
permit.

H. Notification of Process Changes: Skat-Trak Performance Products is required to notify
the District, in writing, at least 30 days in advance, of any new connections or changes to
existing discharges or other modifications which will alter the amount of or pollutant strength
of any wastewater, which is discharged to the District's wastewater collection system.

. Discharge Limitations: The Discharge Limitation Tables on pages 4,5 & 6 contain limits for
both federal and local limitations. The federal (Categorical) limits are for reference only, as
this pemmit does not allow any categorical process to be discharged to the District's
wastewater collection system without prior approval. Certain constituents may also contain
daily and monthly average limitations.

J. Categorical Discharges: No categorical process discharges are allowed under this
permit. If an accidental or unauthorized discharge occurs it must be reported immediately to
the District. A sample of the accidental or unauthorized discharge shall be collected and
evaluated against the most stringent values listed in the Tables on pages 4-5. Additionally, if
more than 1 sample is collected during a calendar month, each sample must comply with
the daily maximum and the arithmetic mean of all collected samples will be compared
against the monthly average. Please note, that if only one sample is collected in a calendar
month, the single sample also represents the “monthly average” and will be evaluated
against that limitation as well.

K. Skat-Trak has been classified as a Non-Significant Categorical Industrial User and is
allowed to self-monitor on an annual bases for meeting the following requirements:

o Never discharges any categorical wastewater.

e Consistently complied with all applicable Pretreatment Standards.

e Annually submit a certification statement and never discharge any untreated
cohcentrated wastewater.

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 138 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-251 Page 6 of 22

29D Skat-Trak Performance Products
@ Yucaipa Valley Water District Wastewater Discharge Permit
W Number CP-003-03

Page 4

DISCHARGE LIMITATION TABLE (Categorical — Aluminum Casting)
Limits are informational only; there shall be no discharge from this area.

Categorical Limit Categorical Limit
SAMPLE POINT (N/A) 40CFR464.15(a) (PSES) 40CFR464.15(f) (PSES)
MAXIMUM ASSIGNED FLOW Casting Cleaning Investment Casting
No Discharge (Lbs/10° Ibs of metal (Lbs/10f Ibs of metal
poured) poured)
Pollutant Daluly Monthly Da_uly Monthly
Maximum Average Maximum Average
Copper (Cu) 0.0771 0.0421 8.48 4.63
Lead (Pb) 0.0791 0.039 87 4.3
Zinc (Zn) 0.114 0.0431 12.6 4.74
Total Toxic Organics (TTOs) - - 18.1 5.91
Oil/Grease (Alternate Monitoring) - - 330 110

Total toxic organics (TTO). TTO is a regulated parameter under PSES (§464.15) and PSNS
(§464.16) for the aluminum subcategory and is comprised of a discrete list of toxic organic
pollutants for each process segment where it is regulated, as follows:

Investment Casting (§464.15(a) and §464. 15(f):

1,1,1-trichloroethane, chloroform (trichloromethane), methylene chloride (dichloromethane)
bis (2-ethylhexyl) phthalate, pyrene, tetrachloroethylene, trichloroethylene

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 139 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-251

Page 7 of 22

F 2t )
’ Yucaipa Valley Water District
L T\ 4

DISCHARGE LIMITATION TABLE (Categorical — Ferrous Casting)

Skat-Trak Performance Products
Wastewater Discharge Permit

Number CP-003-03

Page 5

Limits are informational only; there shall be no discharge from this area.

Categorical Limit Categorical Limit
SAMPLE POINT (N/A) 40CFR464.35(a) (2)(PSES) | 40CFR464.35(e) (2) (PSES)
MAXIMUM ASSIGNED FLOW Casting Cleaning Investment Casting
No Discharge {Lbs/10f Ibs of metal (Lbs/10f Ibs of metal
poured) poured)

Daily Monthly Daily Monthly

Pollutant Maximum Average Maximum Average
Copper (Cu) 0.0129 0.0071 3.19 1.76
Lead (Pb) 0.0353 0.0174 87 4.3
Zinc (Zn) 0.0656 0.025 16.2 6.17
Total Toxic Organics (TTOs) - - 13.2 4.3
Qil/Grease (Alternate Monitoring) - - 330 110

Total Toxic Organics (TTO). TTO is a regulated parameter under PSES {§464.35) and PSNS
(§464.36) for the ferrous subcategory and is comprised of a discrete list of toxic organic
pollutants for each process segment where it is regulated, as follows:

Investment Casting (§464.35(e).

chloroform (trichloromethane), methylene chloride (dichloromethane)

his (2-ethylhexyl) phthalate, acenaphthylene pyrene

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 140 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-251

Page 8 of 22

3]
' Yucaipa Valley Water District
Q¥

Skat-Trak Performance Products
Wastewater Discharge Permit
Number CP-003-03

Page 6

DISCHARGE LIMITATION TABLE

LOCAL LIMITATIONS
SAMPLE POINT (001)

Pollutant Daily Maximum {mg/L)

Ammonia-Nitrogen 50
Arsenic (As) 1.9

Bis (2-Ethylhexyl) Phthalate 0.013
Biochemical Oxygen Demand -5 Day (BOD) 2500

Boron (B) Water Supply + 1.0
Cadmium (Cd) 0.1
Chromium (Cr) (Total) 1.7

Copper (Cu) Total 0.7
Cyanide (CN), Total 0.3

Lead (Pb)— Total 0.2
Mercury (Hg) 0.01
Molybdenum (Mo) 0.7

Nickel (Ni) 23
Qil/Grease (Total) 500
Oil/Grease (Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons - TPH) 100

pH'

5.0-11.0 pH units

Selenium (Se) Total 0.1
Silver (Ag) Total 0.1
Sulfides Dissolved (SOz7) 01
: . Water Supply
2
Total Dissolved Solids (TDS) + 400
Total Suspended Solids (TSS) 2500
Total Toxic Organics 0.58
Zinc 7.2

1: pH equals the negative log of the hydrogen ion concentration (-log [H)

2: TDS limit is a "floating” or variable limit based upon an incremental amount over the potable water supply. The increment
allowed over the potable concentration is 400 mg/L. Therefore, a potable sample must be taken at the same time as the

wiastewater sample for comparison purposes

BOD and TS$S limits shown is the maximum concentration allowed. The District reserves the right to place a

surcharge fee on any concentration over 300 mgJL.

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 141 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-251

Page 9 of 22

P )

’ Yucaipa Valley Water District
W

Skat-Trak Performance Products
Wastewater Discharge Permit
Number CP-003-03

Page 7

PART 2 - MONITORING REQUIREMENTS

A. General Monitoring Reguirements: From the period beginning on the effective date of the
permit until midnight on October 16, 2020, the permittee shall monitor the wastewater to be
discharged to the District's wastewater collection system at the indicated frequency, for the following
pollutants at Sample Location' 001. All annual monitoring shall be completed during the FIRST
MONTH of the FOURTH QUARTER of the calendar year (October), to ensure meeting the
reporting requirements. The District may at its discretion collect samples of the domestic
discharges from Skat-Trak to verify compliance with all permit limitations and conditions set forth in

this permit.
POLLUTANT [ FREQUENCY [ SAMPLE TYPE
CATEGORICAL BATCH DISCHARGE (If Required)
Copper (Cu) Urlsscneecelzlezd B Grab
Lead (Pb) U’f:’,]feiﬂ':j' - Grab
Zine (Zn) Unscheduled - Grab
Total Toxic Organics (TTOs) Unscheduted - Grab
OilfGrease (Alternate Monitoring) UT:Eee::L:d h Grab
SAMPLE LOCATION 001 MONITORING

Flow (Batch 500 Gallons Approx.)

Ammonia-Mitrogen Annually Grab
Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD) Annually Grab
Boron (B) Annually Grab
Cadmium (Cd) Annually Grab
Chromium (Total) Annually Grab
Copper (Cu) Annually Grab
Cyanide, Total (CH) Annually Grab
Lead (Pb) Annually Grab
Mercury (Hagh Annually Grab
Mickel (NI} Annually Grab
Total Petroleun Hydrocarbons (TPH) Annually Grab
pH Annually Grab
Selenium (Se) Annually Grab
Sikver (4g) Annually Grab
Sulfide Dissalved (S0s) Annually Grab
Total Dissolved Solids (TDS) Annually Grab
Total Suspended Solids (TSS) Annually Grab
Total Toxic Organics? - -
Zinc (Zn) Annually Grab

1.

See Part 2-C, Sample Location (Page 8) 2.Sampling may be waived in accordance with Part 1 — Discharge
Requirements Section D and E of this Permit

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 142 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-251 Page 10 of 22

29D Skat-Trak Performance Products
@ Yucaipa Valley Water Disfrict Wastewater Discharge Permit
Q¥ Number CP-003-03

Page 8

B. Additional Monitoring Requirements: All handling and preservation of collected samples
and laboratory analyses of samples shall be performed in accordance with 40 CFR, Part
136, and amendments thereto unless specified otherwise in the monitoring conditions of this
permit. Annual self monitoring results shall be submitted prior to the last day of the
SECOND MONTH of the FOURTH QUARTER (November). A Self Monitoring Report Form
shall accompany each submittal of sample Results. See Part 3 — Reporting for more details
on the Self-Monitoring Report (SMR) form.

C. Monitoring Location: Self-Monitoring of industrial wastewater shall be conducted at the
Sample Locations 001 (shown below). Compliance with all and Local limits in this permit will
be determined at Sample Location 001 only.

SKAT-TRAK PERFORMANCE PRODUCTS
SAMPLE LOCATION

Sample Point =‘- L e
001 T

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 143 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-251 Page 11 of 22

29D Skat-Trak Performance Products
@ VYucaipa Valley Water District Wastewater Discharge Permit
L4 Number CP-003-03
Page 9

PART 3 - REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

A. Pemmnittee’s Self-Monitoring Reports: All required monitoring results shall be summarized
and reported on the District's Dischargers Self Monitoring Report Form provided by the
District. This report form shall indicate the compliance status and concentration andfor mass
value of all pollutants in the wastewater for which sampling and analysis were performed.
The Self Monitoring Report Form includes the following:

1. Certified Laboratory Report
2. Signed Certified Statement Form

All applications, reports, or information submitted to the District must include a Signed
Certified Statement.

All required Annual monitoring reports shall be submitted to the District no later than the last
day of the Second Month of the Fourth Quarter of the Calendar Year (November).
Failure to submit the required Reporting Forms shall result in the permittee being in violation
of their Industrial User Discharge Pemit. Any incomplete monitoring result shall be returned
to the permittee for completion. If the monitoring results are not submitted within 45 days of
the due date, the permittee shall be considered in Significant Noncompliance (SNC) and a
MNotice of Violation (NOV) will be issued.

B. Automatic Re-sampling: If the results of the wastewater analysis indicate that a violation of
this permit has occurred, the pemmittee must:

1. Inform the District of the violation by telephone within 24 hours of receiving the results of
the analysis indicating a violation has occurred.

2. Repeat the sampling and constituent analysis and submit, in writing, the results of this
repeat analysis within 30 days of the first violation.

C. Accidental Discharge Report: The pemmittee shall notify the District immediately upon the
occurrence of any accidental discharge of substances prohibited by the District's Sewer Use
Ordinance or any upsets, bypass, slug loads or spills that occur at the facility identified in
this permit and may enter the public sewer. During normal business hours the Yucaipa
Valley Water District's Wochholz Regiohal Water Recycling Facility should be notified by
telephone at (909) 795-2491. The notification shall include the location of the discharge,
date and time of the discharge, and the type of waste, including concentration, volume and
corrective actions taken. The permittee’s notification of accidental discharges in accordance
with this section does not relieve the permittee of other reporting requirements that arise
under local, State, or Federal laws.

Within five days following an accidental discharge, the pemittee shall submit to the District,
a detailed written report. The report shall specify:

1. Description and cause of the accidental discharge and the impact of the incident on the
permittee’s compliance status. The description should also include location of
discharge, type, concentration and volume of waste.

2. Duration of nhoncompliance, including exact dates and times of noncompliance and the
time when compliance is expected to be achieved.

3. All steps taken or to be taken to reduce, eliminate, and/or prevent recurrence of such
conditions of slug load, accidental discharge or other noncompliance events.

D. Material Safety Data Sheets: The pemittee shall maintain copies of Material Safety Data
Sheets (MSDS) for all chemicals used in association with the manufacturing process. If

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 144 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-251 Page 12 of 22

290 Skat-Trak Performance Products
@ Yucaipa Valley Water District Wastewater Discharge Permit
Q¥ Number CP-003-03

Page 10

hazardous materials are used in the manufacturing process, secure storage with secondary
containment must be provided for those materials. If the pemittee generates substances
listed as toxic under the permittee must follow Federal regulatory guidelines for the disposal
of those substances. Secure storage with secondary containment must be provided with no
possible access to the sewer. Storage of the wastes shall hot exceed 90 days and
transportation of the wastes shall be by a licensed carrier to a licensed disposal facility.
Copies of all shipping manifests and disposal receipts for hazardous materials shipped
offsite shall be available for the District to review.

E. Slug Discharge Control Plan {(SDCP): Each permitted Industrial user who stores
significant quantities of liquids in the vicinity of floor drains or other openings to the District’s
sewer system such that spillage of stored liquids could result in Slug Loading or in any
violation of the provisions of the District's Sewer Use Ordinance shall file a Slug Discharge
Control Plan with the District. All Significant Industrial Users shall be evaluated for the need
to develop a Slug Discharge Control Flan. The Flan shall contain at a minimum, the
following elements:

1. Description of discharge practices, including non-outine batch discharges;

2. Description of stored chemical,

3. Procedures for immediately notifying YVYWD of any accidental or slug discharge. Such
hotification must also be given for any discharge which would violate any of the
standards set forth in the District’'s Sewer Use Ordinance and any local, state or federal
regulations; and within five days following an accidental discharge, the permittee shall
submit to the District, a detailed written report.

4. Procedures to prevent adverse impact from any accidental or slug discharge. Such
procedures include, but are not limited to inspection and maintenance of storage areas,
handling and transfer of materials, loading and unloading operations, control of plant site
runoff, worker training, building of containment structures or equipment, measures for
cohtaining toxic organic chemicals {(including solvents), andfor measures and equipment
for emergency response.

The Slug Discharge Control Plan shall be updated whenever changes occur in any of the
addressed areas; chemicals are added or replaced; processes or plumbing are rerouted or
changed; pretreatment facilities are modified or replaced; operations andfor maintenance
procedures are modified; or personnel listed in the plan are replaced, changed, or removed.

During routine inspections, the Slug Discharge Control Plan shall be reviewed by the
responsible party and either,

1. Updated and resubmitted, or

2. Awritten certification submitted stating that no change in the Slug Discharge
Control Plan has occurred.

F. Repcrt Submittal: All reports required by this permit shall be submitted to: Yucaipa Valley
Water District, P.O. Box 730, Yucaipa, CA 92399-0730, Attention: Environmental
Control Department.

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 145 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-251 Page 13 of 22

Py ) Skat-Trak Performance Products
P Yucaipa Valley Water District Wastewater Discharge Permit
¥ Nurnber CP-003-03

Page 11

PART 4 - SPECIAL CONDITIONS

A. Reopener Clause

1. This permit may be reopened and modified to incorporate any new or revised
requirement contained in a national categorical pretreatment standard promulgated for
the industrial category covered by this permit.

2. This permit may be reopened and modified to incorporate any new or revised
requirements resulting from the District’s reevaluation of its local limits.

3. This permit may be reopened and maodified to incorporate any new or revised
requirements developed by the District as are necessary to ensure POTW compliance
with applicable biomass management requirements promulgated by Federal Regulations
in 40 CFR Part 503.

PART 5 - STANDARD CONDITIONS

A. General Conditions and Definitions

1. Severability: The provisions of this permit are severable, and if any provision of this
permit, or the application of any provision of this pemit to any circumstance, is held
invalid, the application of such provision to other circumstances, and the remainder of
this permit, shall not be affected thereby.

2. Duty to comply: The permittee must comply with all conditions of this permit. Failure to
comply with the requirements of this permit may be grounds for administrative action or
enforcement proceedings, including civil or criminal penalties, injunctive relief, and
summary abatements.

3. Duty to Mitigate: The pemittee shall take all reasonable steps to minimize or correct
any adverse impact to the public freatment plant or the environment resulting from
hohcompliance with this permit.

4. Permit Modification: This permit may be modified for good cause including, but not
limited to the following:

a. Toincorporate any new or revised Federal, State or local pretreatment standards or
requirements.

b. Material or substantial alterations or additions to the discharger's operation
processes, or discharge volume or character which were not considered in drafting
the effective permit.

¢. A change in any condition in either the permittee or the POTVV that requires either a
temporary or permanent reduction or elimination of the authorized discharge.

d. Information indicating that the pemittee’s discharge poses a threat to the District's
collection and treatment systems, POTW personnel or the receiving waters.

e. To comrect typographical or other errors in the permit.

f. Upon request of the permittee, provided such request does not create a violation of
any applicable requirements, standards, laws or rules and regulations.

The filing of a request by the permittee for a permit modification, revocation, and
reissuance or temmination, or a ndctification of planned changes or anticipated
noncompliance, does not stay any permit condition.

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 146 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-251 Page 14 of 22

290 Skat-Trak Performance Products
@ VYucaipa Valley Water District Wastewater Discharge Permit
¥ Number CP-003-03

Page 12

5. Permit Termination: This permit may be terminated for the following reasons:
a. Falsifying self-monitoring reports.

Tampering with monitoring equipment.

Refusing to allow timely access to the facility premises and records.

Failure to meet discharge limitations.

Violation of any terms or conditions of this permit.

Failure to pay fines or pemit fees.

@ ™o oo T

Failure to pay sewer charges.

6. Permit Appeals: The permittee may petition to appeal the terms of this permit within
ten (10) days of issue date.

The petition must be in writing, sent certified mail, return receipt requested. Failure to
submit a petition for review shall be deemed to be a waiver of that appeal. If an appeal
is submitted, the permittee must indicate in the appeal, the pemit provisions objected to,
the reasons for the objection(s), and the alternative condition(s), if any, the permittee
seeks to be placed in the permit.

If the Board of Directors of the District consents to consider an appeal by the pemittee,
the effectiveness of this permit shall not be stayed during the appeal process. If after
considering the petition and any arguments put forth by the General Manager, the Board
determines that reconsideration of this pemmit is proper; the Board shall remand the
permit back to the General Manager for reissuance. Those permit provisions being
reconsidered by the General Manager at the direction of the Board shall be stayed
pending reissuance of the permit.

A decision by the District's Board of Directors that refuses to reconsider an issued permit
shall be considered final administrative action for purposes of judicial review. The
permittee seeking judicial review of a final action by the Board must do so by filing a
complaint in the Superior Court of the Counties of Riverside or San Bemardino within
thirty (30) days.

7. Property Rights: The issuance of this permit does not convey any property rights of any
sort, or any exclusive privileges, nor does it authorize any injury to private property or
any invasion of personal rights, nor any violation of Federal, State, or local laws or
regulations.

8. Permit Transfers: Pemits may not be reassigned or transferred to a new owner or
operator. Upon transfer of ownership, written notice to the District must be provided,
and a new permit application submitted by the new owner to the District at least 60 days
prior to transfer of ownership.

9. Continuation of Expired Permits: An expired permit will continue to be effective and
enforceable until a new permit is issued if:

a. The permittee has submitted a complete permit application at least ninety (90) days
prior to the expiration date of the existing permit.

b. The failure to reissue the permit, prior to the expiration of the previous pemit, is not
due to any act or failure to act on the part of the permittee.

10. Dilution: The permittee shall not increase the use of potable or process water or, in any
way, attempt to dilute an effluent as a partial or complete substitute for adequate

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 147 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-251 Page 15 of 22

29D Skat-Trak Performance Products
@ Yucaipa Valley Water District Wastewater Discharge Permit
V¥ MNumber CP-003-03
Page 13
treatment to achieve compliance with the limitations contained in this permit.
11. Definitions:

a. Daily Maximum - The maximum allowable discharge of a constituent during a
calendar day where daily limits are expressed in units of mass, the daily discharge is
the total mass discharged over the course of the day. Where daily maximum
limitations are expressed in terms of a concentration, the daily discharge is the
arithmetic average measurement of the constituent concentration derived from all
measurements taken during that day.

b. Composite Sample - A sample that is collected over time formed by either
continuous sampling or by mixing discreet samples. The samples can either be a
time composite or a flow proportional composite sample.

c. Grab Sample - An individual sample collected in less than 15 minutes, without
regard for flow or time.

d. Instantanecus Maximum Concentration - The maximum concentration allowed in
any single grab sample.

e. Cooling Water - (1) Uncontaminated: Water used for cocling purposes only which
has no direct contact with any raw material, intermediate, or final product and which
does not contain a level of contaminants detectably higher than that of the intake
water. (2) Contaminated: Water used for cooling purposes only which may become
contaminated either through the addition of water treatment chemicals used for
corrosion inhibitors or biocides, or by direct contact with process materials and/or
wastewater.

f. Monthly Average - The arithmetic mean of the values for effluent samples collected
during a calendar month or specified 30-day period (as opposed to a rolling 30 day
Window).

g. Weekly Average - The arithmetic mean of the values for effluent samples collected
over a period of seven consecutive days.

h. Bi-Weekly - Once every other week

i. Bi-Monthly - Once every other month

j.  Bi-annually - Once every other year

k. Semi-annually - Once every six months

. Bypass - Means the intentional diversion of waste streams from any portion of a
treatment facility:

m. Upset - Means an exceptional incident in which there is unintentional and temporary
noncompliance with categorical Pretreatment standards because of factors beyond
the reasonable control of the Industrial User.

12. General Prohibitive Standards: The pemmittee shall comply with all the general

prohibitive discharge standards in Federal regulations namely the permittee shall not
discharge wastewater to the District's wastewater collection system:

a. Having a temperature higher than 140 degrees F. (60 degrees C.);

b. Containing more than 500 PPM by weight of fats, oils, and grease;

c. Containing any gasoline, benzene, naphtha, fuel oil or other flammable or
explosive liquids, solids, or gases; and in no case substances with a closed

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 148 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-251 Page 16 of 22

Pyd Skat-Trak Performance Products
@ Yucaipa Valley Water District Wastewater Discharge Permit
V¥ MNumber CP-003-03
Page 14

cup flashpoint of less than 140° F. (60" C.);

d. Containing any garbage that has not been ground by household type or other
suitable garbage grinders,
e. Containing any ashes, cinders, sand, mud, straw, shavings, metal, glass,

feathers, tar, plastics, wood, paunch manure, or any other solids or viscous
substances capable of causing obstructions or cther interference with proper
operation of the wastewater collection system;

f. Having a pH lower than 5.0 (to protect the sewer system) or higher than
125, (pH used to define a hazardous material) or having any other
corrosive property capable of causing damage or hazards to structures,
equipment or personnel of the Districts wastewater treatment plant and
collection system;

g. Containing toxic or poisohous substances in sufficient quantity to injure or to
interfere with any wastewater treatment process, to constitute hazards to
humans or animals, or to create any hazard in receiving waters for the
effluent from the treatment plant. Toxic wastes shall include, but are not
limited to wastes containing cyanide, chromium, cadmium, mercury, Copper,
and nickel ions;

h. Containing noxious or malodorous gases or substances capable of creating a
public nuisance; including pollutants which result in the presence of toxic
gases, vapors, or fumes;

i. Containing solids of such character and quantity that special and unusual
attention is required for their handling;

j. Containing any substance which may affect the treatment plant's effluent and
cause violation of NPDES Permit requirements;
k. Containing any substance which would cause the treatment plant to be in

noncompliance with sludge use, recycle or disposal criteda pursuant to
guidelines or regulations developed under the Clean Water Act, the Solid
Waste Disposal Act, the Clean Air Act, the Toxic Substance Control Act or
other regulations or criteria for sludge management and disposal as required
by the State.

Containing color which is hot removed in the treatment process;

Containing any medical or infectious wastes;

Containing any radioactive wastes or isotopes; or

Containing any pollutant including BOD pollutants released at a flow rate
and/or concentration that would cause interference with the treatment plant
operation.

eIs T

B. Operation and Maintenance of Pollution Controls

1. Proper Operation and Maintenance: The permittee shall at all times properly
operate and maintain all facilities and systems of treatment and control {(and related

appurtenances) which are installed or used by the permittee to achieve compliance
with the conditions of this permit. Proper operation and maintenance includes but is
hot limited to: effective performance, adequate funding, adequate operator staffing
and fraining, and adequate laboratory and process controls, including appropriate
QA procedures.

2. Duty to halt or Reduce Activity: Upon reduction of efficiency of operation, or loss
or failure of all or part of the treatment facility, the permittee shall, to the extent
necessary to maintain compliance with this pemit, control its production or
discharges (or both) until operation of the treatment facility is restored or an
alternative method of treatment is provided. It shall not be a defense for a pemittee

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 149 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-251 Page 17 of 22

Pyd Skat-Trak Performance Products
@ Yucaipa Valley Water District Wastewater Discharge Permit
¥ Number CP-003-03
Page 15

in an enforcement action that it would have been necessary to halt or reduce the
permitted activity, in order to maintain compliance with the conditions of this pemit.

3. Removed Substances: Solids, sludge's, filter backwash, or other substances
removed in the course of freatment or control of wastewaters shall not be disposed
of in the sewer. They shall be disposed of in accordance with Section 405 of the
Clean Water Act, Subtitles C and D of the Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act.

C. Monitoring and Records

1. Representative Sampling: Samples and measurements taken as required herein
shall be representative of the volume and nature of the monitored discharge. All
samples shall be taken at the monitoring points specified in this permit and, unless
otherwise specified before the effluent joins or is diluted by any other waste stream,
body of water or substance. All equipment used for sampling and analysis must be
routinely calibrated, inspected and maintained to ensure the accuracy of that
equipment. Monitoring points shall not be changed without notification to and the
approval of the District.

2. Flow Measurements: Flow measurement is required by this permit.  The
appropriate flow measurement devices and methods consistent with approved
scientific practices shall be selected and used to ensure the accuracy and reliability
of measurements of volume of monitored discharges. The devices shall be installed,
calibrated and maintained to insure that the accuracy of the measurements is
consistent with the accepted capability of that type of device. Devices selected shall
be capable of measuring flows with a maximum deviation of less than 10 per cent
from true discharge rates throughout the range of expected discharge volumes.

3. Analytical Methods: All sampling and analysis required by this permit shall be
performed in accordance with 40CFR Part 136 and amendments thereto, unless
otherwise approved by EPA, or as specified in this pemit

4. Additional Monitoring: If the permittee monitors any constituent more frequently
than required by this permit, using test procedures identified above in section C 3,
the results of this monitoring shall be included in the pemittee’s self monitoring
reports.

5. Inspection and Entry: The permittee shall allow the District, or an authorized
representative, upon request, reasonable access to:

a. Enter upon the pemittee’s premises where a regulated facility or activity is
located or conducted or where records must be kept under the conditions of
this permit.

b. Have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any records that must be kept
under the conditions of this permit.

c. Inspect, at reasonable times any facilities, equipment (including monitoring
and control equipment), practices or operations regulated or required by this
permit.

d. Sample or monitor, for the purpose of assuring permit compliance, any
substances or parameters at any location.

6. Retention of Records:
a. The permittee shall retain records of all monitoring information, including

copies of all reports required by this permit. Records of all data including strip

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 150 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-251 Page 18 of 22

290 Skat-Trak Performance Products
@ Yucaipa Valley Water District Wastewater Discharge Permit
V¥ Number CP-003-03

Page 16

chart recordings and all information used to complete the application for this
pemit, for a pericd of at |least three years from the date of the sample,
measurement, report or application. This period may be extended by request
of the District at anytime.

b. All records that pertain to matters that are the subject of special orders or any
other enforcement, or litigation activites brought by the District, shall be
retained and preserved by the permitiee until all enforcement aclivities have
concluded, and all periods of limitation with respect to any and all appeals
have expired.

7. Record Contents: Records of sampling and analysis shall include:
a. The date, exact place, time, and methods of sampling or measurements, and
sample preservation technigues or procedures;
b. The name of person or persons who performed the sampling or
measurements;

The date(s) analyses were performed,;

The name of the analytical laboratory and person who performed the

analyses;
e. The analytical methods used; and
f. Copies of the results (lab reports) of the analyses.
8. Falsifying Information: Knowingly making any false statement on any report or

other document required by this permit or knowingly rendering any monitoring device
or method inaccurate, is a crime and may result in the imposition of criminal
sanctions and/or civil penalties.

D. Additional Reporting Requirements

1. Anticipated Noncompliance: The permittee shall give advance notice to the District
of any planned changes in the permitted facility or activity, which may result in
noncompliance with permit requirements.

2. Automatic Re-sampling: If the results of the permitted wastewater analysis indicate
a violation has occurred, the pemittee must notify the District within 24 hours of
becoming aware of the violation and repeat the sampling and analysis and submit, in
writing, the results of this repeat analysis within 30 days after becoming aware of the
original violation.

3. Duty to provide Information: The permittee shall furnish to the District, within
three (3) working days any information which the District may request to detemine
whether cause exists for modifying, revoking and reissuing, or terminating, or
determining compliance with this permit. The permittee shall also, upon request,
fumish to the District within three (3) working days copies of any records required to
be kept by this permit.

4. Signatory Requirements: All applications, reports, or information submitted to the
District must contain the following certification statement, and be signed as required
in Sections (a), (b), or (c) below:

“| certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments
were prepared under my direction or supervision in accordance with a
system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 151 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-251 Page 19 of 22

29D Skat-Trak Performance Products
@ Yucaipa Valley Water District Wastewater Discharge Permit
L L4 Number CP-003-03

Page 17

and evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inguiry of the
person or persohs who manage the system, or those persons directly
responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is,
to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete.
| am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false
information, including the possibility of fines and imprisonment for
knowing viclations”.

a. By a responsible corporate officer, if the permittee submitting the report is a
corporation. For the purpose of this paragraph, a responsible corporate
officer means:

i. A president, secretary, treasurer, or vice-president of the corporation
in charge of a principal business function, or any person who
performs similar policy or decision making functions for the
corporation, or

i The manager if authority to sign documents has been assighed or
delegated to the manager in accordance with corporate procedures.

h. By a general partner or proprietor if the permittee submitting the reports is a
partnership or sole proprietorship respectively.

c. By a duly authorized representative if;

i. The authorization is made in writing by the individual described in
paragraph (a) or (b).

i The authorization specifies either an individual or a position having
responsibility for the overall operation of the facility from which the
discharge originates, or having overall responsibility for environmental
matters for the discharger.

iii. The written authorization is submitted to the District.

d. If an authorization under paragraph (a), (b), or (c) of this section is no longer
accurate because a different individual or position has responsibility for the
overall operation of the facility, or overall responsibility for environmental
matters for the permittee, a new authorization satisfying the requirements of
paragraph (c) of this section must be submitted to the District prior to or
together with any reports to be signed by an authorized representative.

5. Annual Publication: The names of all Industrial Users which are found to be in
significant noncompliance with the District's Sewer Use Ordinance shall be
published at least annually in the largest daily circulating newspaper within the
jurisdiction of the District in which the Industrial User is located.

6. Civil and Criminal Liability: Nothing in this permit shall be construed to relieve the
permittee from civil and/or criminal penalties for noncompliance under or State or
Federal laws or regulations.

7. Penalties for Violations of Permit Conditicns: The Districts Sewer Use
Ordinance provides that any person who violates a permit condition may be subject
to a civil penalty of up to $25,000.00 per day for each violation.

8. Recovery of Costs Incurred: In addition to civil and criminal liability, the permittee
who violates any provision of this pemit resulting in damage to or otherwise
inhibiting the District’s wastewater collection system, shall be liable to the District for

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 152 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-251 Page 20 of 22

Py ) Skat-Trak Performance Products
@ Yucaipa Valley Water District Wastewater Discharge Permit
V¥ Number CP-003-03
Page 18

any expense, loss, or damage caused by the violation or discharge. The District shall
bill the permittee for the costs incurred by the District for any cleaning, repair, or
replacement work caused by the non-compliance. The reimbursement shall also
include any fines or penallties levied against the District resulting from the violation or
discharge. Refusal to pay the assessed costs shall constitute a separate violation of
the District’'s Sewer Use Ordinance.

E. Enforcement

1. Notice of Violation: Any permittee found to be in violation of any permit condition,
discharge requirement, reporting requirement, or any provision of the District's
Sewer Use Ordinance may be issued a written Notice of Violation. The Notice shall
state the nature of the violation and the penalties for continued non-compliance. If
required by the notice, the violator shall submit to the District, within a prescribed
period specified in the notice, a plan of return to full compliance pursuant to the
District’'s Sewer Use Ordinance.

2. Administrative Complaint: The Manager may issue an Administrative Complaint to
any user who violates any permit condition or requirement, a Notice of Violation or
any section of the District’'s Sewer Use Ordinance.

a. The Administrative Complaint shall allege the act or failure to act that
constitutes the violation, the provisions of law authorizing the imposition of
Civil Liability, and the Civil Penalty proposed.

b. The Administrative Complaint shall be served by personal delivery or certified
mail and shall give notice to the recipient of a hearing to be conducted within
sixty (60} days from the date of service.

3. Administrative Hearing: The Hearing shall be before a hearing officer designated
by the Board of Directors of the District.

a. The defendant of an Administrative Complaint may waive the right to a
hearing, in which case no hearing shall be held.

h. A defendant in an Administrative Hearing wishing to appeal a decision of the
Hearing Officer may do so to the Board of Directors of the District within thirty
(30) days of notice of the Hearing Officer's decision.

c. If after a hearing or appeal, if any, it is found in fact there has been a violation
of reporting requirements, discharge requirements, the Hearing Officer or the
Board of Directors may assess a Civil Penalty against the defendant.

d. In determining the amount of a Civil Penalty, the Hearing Officer or Board of
Directors may consider all relevant circumstances including, but not limited to,
the extent of harm caused by the violation, the economic benefit derived
through any non-compliance, the nature and persistence of the violation, and
the comective actions, if any, attempted or taken by the discharger.

4. Civil Penalties:

a. Fines not to exceed $2,000.00 for each day of failure or refusal to fumnish
technical or self-monitoring reports, [Government Code, Section
54740.5(d)(1)];

b. Fines not exceeding $3,000.00 for each day for failure or refusal to timely

comply with any compliance schedule established by the District,
[Government Code, Section 54740.5(d)(2)];

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 153 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-251 Page 21 of 22

Py ) Skat-Trak Performance Products
@ Yucaipa Valiey Water Disfrict Wastewater Discharge Permit
V¥ Number CP-003-03
Page 19

c. Fines not to exceed $5,000.00 per violation for each day for discharges in

violation of any discharge limitation, pemit condition, or reguirement issued,
reissued or adopted by the District, [Government Code, Section
54740.5(d )(3)];

d. Fines not exceeding $10.00 per gallon for discharges in violation of any
suspension, cease and desist order, other orders or prohibitions issued,
reissued or adopted by the Manager of the District, [Government Code,
Section 54740.5(d)(4)].

e. Unless appealed, orders setting administrative Civil Penalties shall become
effective and final upon issuance thereof, and payment shall be made within
thirty (30) days. Copies of the orders shall be served by personal service or
by registered mail upon the parties served with the Administrative Complaint
and to other persons who appeared at the hearing and requested a copy.

f. All monies collected under these penalties shall be deposited in a special
account of the District and shall be made available for the monitoring,
treatment and control of harmful discharges into the POTW or for other
mitigation measures.

g. The amount of any Civil Fines imposed as a result of the Administrative
Hearing process, which remain delinquent for a period of sixty (60) force,
effect and priority of a judgment lien and continue for ten (10) years from the
time of recording unless sooner released, and shall be renewable in
accordance with the provisions of Sections 683.110 to 683.220, inclusive, of
the Code of Civil Procedure

Judicial Review: the District's Sewer Use Ordinance.

Civil Liability for Violation: The District's Sewer Use Ordinance

Emergency Termination of Service: The District's Sewer Use Ordinance

O N o O

Annual Public Notice of SNC: Annually, the District shall publish in the newspaper
with the largest daily circulation in the District’'s service area, a list of all industrial
users that been in SNC with applicable pretreatment standards or requirements
during the previous year.

9. Supplemental Enforcement Actions: The District's Sewer Use Ordinance

10. Remedies Non-exclusive: The remedies provided for in this section are not
exclusive. The District may take any, all, or any combination of these actions against
the non-compliant user. Enforcement of industrial waste discharge limit violations,
other permit conditions, sampling requirements or self-monitoring reporting, will
generally be in accordance with the Districts Enforcement Response Plan.
However, the Manager may take other action against any user when the
circumstances warrant. Further, the Manager is empowered to take more than one
enforcement action against any non-compliant user.

11. Criminal Penalties:

a. A user who willfully or negligently violates any provision of a discharge permit,
or any other pretreatment standard or requirement shall, upon conviction, be
guilty of a misdemeanor, punishable by a fine of at least One Thousand

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 154 of 166



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-251 Page 22 of 22

29D Skat-Trak Performance Products
@ ‘Yucaipa Valley Water Disfrict Wastewater Discharge Permit
W” Nurmber CP-003-03

Page 20

Dollars ($1,000.00) per violation, per day or imprisonment for not more than
six months, or both for each violation per day.

b. Any user who knowingly makes any false statements, representations or
certifications in any application, record, report, plan or other documentation
filed or required to be maintained pursuant to a discharge pemit, or falsifies,
tampers with, or knowingly renders inaccurate any monitoring device or
method required under that pemit shall, upon conviction, be guilty of a
misdemeanor, punishable by a fine of at least One Thousand Dollars
($1,000.00) per violation, per day or imprisonment for not more than six
months, or both for each violation per day.

c. Payment of any penalty required in this section shall not relieve a user from
responsibility for correcting the violation and reimbursing the District for all
costs and expenses associated with all comrections including any fines and/or
penalties incurred by the District as a result of the violation.

PART 6 - COMPLIANCE TIME SCHEDULES

A. Compliance Time Schedule Progress Reports. When required, Compliance Time
Schedule progress reports shall be submitted at a minimum frequency of every 30 days until
compliance with discharge requirements or the District's Sewer Use Ordinance are obtained.
These reports shall contain dates for pretreatment equipment desigh completion, building
permit submittal date, construction starting date, consfruction updates, construction
completion date, employee training completion date, date of achieving final compliance,
and/or any other required information. Samples may be required to be collected to
demonstrate compliance. The samples shall be collected in accordance with the
requirements of this pemit.

B. Compliance Schedule Reporting. No later than on the respective compliance schedule
dates, the pemittee shall submit to the District a report including, at a minimum, whether or
not it complied with the increment of progress to be met on such date and, if not, the date on
which it expects to comply with the increment of progress, the reasons for delay, and the
steps being taken to return the project to the schedule established. In no case shall any
milestone in the compliance schedule exceed nine months.

C. Reports of Progress.

1. Skat-Trak Performance Products shall submit to the District later than the 15" of
each month if required, a written Report of Progress. The Report of Progress shall
state the probability of Skat-Trak Performance Products completing the work
required for the upcoming compliance date.

2 If a Compliance Time Schedule milestone date cannot be met, Skat-Trak
Performance Products shall notify the District in Writing and Prior to the expiration
of the Compliance Time Schedule date to request an extension. The extension
request shall describe the reason(s) for Skat-Trak Performance Product’s failure to
comply and the additional amount of time required to complete the remaining work.
Compliance Time Schedule date extensions will be granted at the reasonable
discretion of the District.

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 155 of 166



P 2
' Yucaipa Valley Water District Workshop Memorandum 18-252
W

Date: November 13, 2018
From: Joseph B. Zoba, General Manager
Subject: Overview of Required Documents for a State Revolving Fund Loan for the Calimesa

Recycled Water Pipeline Project

In 2015, the Yucaipa Valley Water District approved Resolution No. 2015-18 regarding the dedication
of funds for the construction of recycled water pipelines in Calimesa.

The District staff was informed that the loan/grant application material is being reviewed by the State
Water Resources Control Board and that documents previously submitted will need to be updated.

The purpose of this agenda item is to provide an overview of the proposed project and discuss the

documents that will need to be reviewed and processed at the next board meeting related to the
Calimesa Recycled Water Pipeline Project

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 156 of 166



Director Comments

%)
’ Yucaipa Valley Water District

L T\ 4

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 157 of 166



Adjournment

%)
’ Yucaipa Valley Water District

L T\ 4

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 158 of 166



October 2018

o%9)
' Yucaipa Valley Water District

W ”
FACTS ABOUT THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

Service Area Size: 40 square miles (sphere of influence is 68 square miles)
Elevation Change: 3,140 foot elevation change (from 2,044 to 5,184 feet)

Number of Employees: 5 elected board members
71 full time employees

FY 2018-19 Operating Budget: Water Division - $14,150,445
Sewer Division - $12,337,754
Recycled Water Division - $1,293,270
Total Annual Budget - $25,754,750

Number of Services: 12,693 water connections serving 17,362 units
13,980 sewer connections serving 21,806 units
92 recycled water connections

Water System: 215 miles of drinking water pipelines
27 reservoirs - 34 million gallons of storage capacity
18 pressure zones
12,000 ac-ft annual water demand (3.9 billion gallons)
Two water filtration facilities:
- 1 mgd at Oak Glen Surface Water Filtration Facility
- 12 mgd at Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility

Sewer System: 8.0 million gallon treatment capacity - current flow at 4.0 mgd
205 miles of sewer mainlines
5 sewer lift stations
4,500 ac-ft annual recycled water prod. (1.46 billion gallons)

Recycled Water: 22 miles of recycled water pipelines
5 reservoirs - 12 million gallons of storage
1,200 ac-ft annual recycled demand (0.4 billion gallons)

Brine Disposal: 2.2 million gallon desalination facility at sewer treatment plant
1.756 million gallons of Inland Empire Brine Line capacity
0.595 million gallons of treatment capacity in Orange County

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 159 of 166



October 2018

Typical Rates, Fees and Charges:

e Drinking Water Commodity Charge:
1,000 gallons to 15,000 gallons $1.429 per each 1,000 gallons
16,000 gallons to 60,000 gallons $1.919 per each 1,000 gallons
61,000 gallons to 100,000 gallons  $2.099 per each 1,000 gallons

101,000 gallons or more $2.429 per each 1,000 gallons
e Recycled Water Commodity Charge:

1,000 gallons or more $1.425 per each 1,000 gallons
e Water Meter Service Charge (Drinking Water or Recycled Water):

5/8” x 3/4” Water Meter $14.00 per month

1” Water Meter $23.38 per month

1-1/2” Water Meter $46.62 per month

Sewer Collection and Treatment Charge:
Typical Residential Charge $42.43 per month

Imported Water Charges (Pass-through State Water Project Charge):
San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District $0.27 per each 1,000 gallons
San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency $0.66 per each 1,000 gallons

State Water Contractors: San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District
San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency

Ao - 3 ==

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 160 of 166



October 2018

Sustainability Plan: A Strategic Plan for a Sustainable Future: The Integration and
Preservation of Resources, adopted on August 20, 2008.

Yucaipa Valley Regional
Water Filtration Facility

Wochholz Regional
Water Recycling
Facility

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 161 of 166



October 2018

o%9)
' Yucaipa Valley Water District

W ”
GLOSSARY OF COMMONLY USED TERMS

Every profession has specialized terms which generally evolve to facilitate communication between individuals.
The routine use of these terms tends to exclude those who are unfamiliar with the particular specialized language
of the group. Sometimes jargon can create communication cause difficulties where professionals in related fields
use different terms for the same phenomena.

Below are commonly used water terms and abbreviations with commonly used definitions. If there is any
discrepancy in definitions, the District's Regulations Governing Water Service is the final and binding definition.

Acre Foot of Water - The volume of water (325,850 gallons, or 43,560 cubic feet) that would cover an area of
one acre to a depth of 1 foot.

Activated-Sludge Process - A secondary biological wastewater treatment process where bacteria reproduce
at a high rate with the introduction of excess air or oxygen and consume dissolved nutrients in the wastewater.

Annual Water Quality Report - The document is prepared annually and provides information on water quality,
constituents in the water, compliance with drinking water standards and educational material on tap water. It is
also referred to as a Consumer Confidence Report (CCR).

Aquifer - The natural underground area with layers of porous, water-bearing materials (sand, gravel) capable of
yielding a supply of water; see Groundwater basin.

Backflow - The reversal of water's normal direction of flow. When water passes through a water meter into a
home or business it should not reverse flow back into the water mainline.

Best Management Practices (BMPs) - Methods or techniques found to be the most effective and practical
means in achieving an objective. Often used in the context of water conservation.

Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD) - The amount of oxygen used when organic matter undergoes
decomposition by microorganisms. Testing for BOD is done to assess the amount of organic matter in water.

Biosolids - Biosolids are nutrient rich organic and highly treated solid materials produced by the wastewater
treatment process. This high-quality product can be recycled as a soil amendment on farm land or further
processed as an earth-like product for commercial and home gardens to improve and maintain fertile soil and
stimulate plant growth.

Capital Improvement Program (CIP) - Projects for repair, rehabilitation, and replacement of assets. Also
includes treatment improvements, additional capacity, and projects for the support facilities.

Certificate of Participation (COP) — A type of financing where an investor purchases a share of the lease
revenues of a program rather than the bond being secured by those revenues.

Coliform Bacteria - A group of bacteria found in the intestines of humans and other animals, but also
occasionally found elsewhere used as indicators of sewage pollution. E. coli are the most common bacteria in
wastewater.

Collections System - In wastewater, it is the system of typically underground pipes that receive and convey
sanitary wastewater or storm water.

Conjunctive Use - The coordinated management of surface water and groundwater supplies to maximize the
yield of the overall water resource. Active conjunctive use uses artificial recharge, where surface water is
intentionally percolated or injected into aquifers for later use. Passive conjunctive use is to simply rely on surface
water in wet years and use groundwater in dry years.

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 162 of 166



October 2018

Consumer Confidence Report (CCR) - see Annual Water Quality Report.

Contaminants of Potential Concern (CPC) - Pharmaceuticals, hormones, and other organic wastewater
contaminants.

Cross-Connection - The actual or potential connection between a potable water supply and a non-potable
source, where it is possible for a contaminant to enter the drinking water supply.

Disinfection by-Products (DBPs) - The category of compounds formed when disinfectants in water systems
react with natural organic matter present in the source water supplies. Different disinfectants produce different
types or amounts of disinfection byproducts. Disinfection byproducts for which regulations have been established
have been identified in drinking water, including trihalomethanes, haloacetic acids, bromate, and chlorite

Drought - a period of below average rainfall causing water supply shortages.

Fire Flow - The ability to have a sufficient quantity of water available to the distribution system to be delivered
through fire hydrants or private fire sprinkler systems.

Gallons per Capita per Day (GPCD) - A measurement of the average number of gallons of water use by the
number of people served each day in a water system. The calculation is made by dividing the total gallons of
water used each day by the total number of people using the water system.

Groundwater Basin - An underground body of water or aquifer defined by physical boundaries.

Groundwater Recharge - The process of placing water in an aquifer. Can be a naturally occurring process or
artificially enhanced.

Hard Water - Water having a high concentration of minerals, typically calcium and magnesium ions.

Hydrologic Cycle - The process of evaporation of water into the air and its return to earth in the form of
precipitation (rain or snow). This process also includes transpiration from plants, percolation into the ground,
groundwater movement, and runoff into rivers, streams, and the ocean; see Water cycle.

Levels of Service (LOS) - Goals to support environmental and public expectations for performance.

Mains, Distribution - A network of pipelines that delivers water (drinking water or recycled water) from
transmission mains to residential and commercial properties, usually pipe diameters of 4" to 16".

Mains, Transmission - A system of pipelines that deliver water (drinking water or recycled water) from a source
of supply the distribution mains, usually pipe diameters of greater than 16".

Meter - A device capable of measuring, in either gallons or cubic feet, a quantity of water delivered by the District
to a service connection.

Overdraft - The pumping of water from a groundwater basin or aquifer in excess of the supply flowing into the
basin. This pumping results in a depletion of the groundwater in the basin which has a net effect of lowering the
levels of water in the aquifer.

Pipeline - Connected piping that carries water, oil, or other liquids. See Mains, Distribution and Mains,
Transmission.

Point of Responsibility, Metered Service - The connection point at the outlet side of a water meter where a
landowner's responsibility for all conditions, maintenance, repairs, use and replacement of water service facilities
begins, and the District's responsibility ends.

Potable Water - Water that is used for human consumption and regulated by the California Department of Public
Health.

Pressure Reducing Valve - A device used to reduce the pressure in a domestic water system when the water
pressure exceeds desirable levels.

Pump Station - A drinking water or recycled water facility where pumps are used to push water up to a higher
elevation or different location.

Reservoir - A water storage facility where water is stored to be used at a later time for peak demands or
emergencies such as fire suppression. Drinking water and recycled water systems will typically use concrete or

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 163 of 166



October 2018

steel reservoirs. The State Water Project system considers lakes, such as Shasta Lake and Folsom Lake to be
water storage reservoirs.

Runoff - Water that travels downward over the earth's surface due to the force of gravity. It includes water
running in streams as well as over land.

Santa Ana River Interceptor (SARI) Line - A regional brine line designed to convey 30 million gallons per day
(MGD) of non-reclaimable wastewater from the upper Santa Ana River basin to Orange County Sanitation District
for treatment, use and/or disposal.

Secondary treatment - Biological wastewater treatment, particularly the activated-sludge process, where
bacteria and other microorganisms consume dissolved nutrients in wastewater.

Service Connection - The water piping system connecting a customer's system with a District water main
beginning at the outlet side of the point of responsibility, including all plumbing and equipment located on a parcel
required for the District's provision of water service to that parcel.

Sludge - Untreated solid material created by the treatment of wastewater.

Smart Irrigation Controller - A device that automatically adjusts the time and frequency which water is applied
to landscaping based on real-time weather such as rainfall, wind, temperature, and humidity.

South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) - Regional regulatory agency that develops plans
and regulations designed to achieve public health standards by reducing emissions from business and industry.

Special district - A form of local government created by a local community to meet a specific need. Yucaipa
Valley Water District is a County Water District formed pursuant to Section 30000 of the California Water Code

Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) - A computerized system which provides the ability to
remotely monitor and control water system facilities such as reservoirs, pumps, and other elements of water
delivery.

Surface Water - Water found in lakes, streams, rivers, oceans, or reservoirs behind dams. In addition to using
groundwater, Yucaipa Valley Water District receives surface water from the Oak Glen area.

Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) - Pursuant to legislation signed by Governor Jerry Brown
in 2014, the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act requires water agencies to manage groundwater
extractions to not cause undesirable results from over production.

Transpiration - The process by which water vapor is released into the atmosphere by living plants.

Trickling filter - A biological secondary treatment process in which bacteria and other microorganisms, growing
as slime on the surface of rocks or plastic media, consume nutrients in wastewater as it trickles over them.

Underground Service Alert (USA) - A free service (https://www.digalert.org) that notifies utilities such as water,
telephone, cable and sewer companies of pending excavations within the area (dial 8-1-1 at least 2 working days
before you dig).

Urban runoff - Water from city streets and domestic properties that carry pollutants into the storm drains, rivers,
lakes, and oceans.

Valve - A device that regulates, directs, or controls the flow of water by opening, closing or partially obstructing
various passageways.

Wastewater - Any water that enters the sanitary sewer.

Water Banking - The practice of actively storing or exchanging in-lieu surface water supplies in available
groundwater basin storage space for later extraction and use by the storing party or for sale or exchange to a
third party. Water may be banked as an independent operation or as part of a conjunctive use program.

Water Cycle - The continuous movement water from the earth's surface to the atmosphere and back again.

Water Pressure - Water pressure is created by the weight and elevation of water and/or generated by pumps
that deliver water to customers.

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 164 of 166


https://www.digalert.org/

October 2018

Water Service Line - A water service line is used to deliver water from the Yucaipa Valley Water District’s
mainline distribution system.

Water table - the upper surface of the zone of saturation of groundwater in an unconfined aquifer.

Water transfer - a transaction, in which a holder of a water right or entitlement voluntarily sells/exchanges to a
willing buyer the right to use all or a portion of the water under that water right or entitlement.

Watershed - A watershed is the region or land area that contributes to the drainage or catchment area above a
specific point on a stream or river.

Water-Wise House Call - a service which provides a custom evaluation of a customer's indoor and outdoor
water use and landscape watering requirements.

Well - a hole drilled into the ground to tap an underground aquifer.

Wetlands - lands which are fully saturated or under water at least part of the year, like seasonal vernal pools or
swamps.

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 165 of 166



October 2018

P\
' Yucaipa Valley Water District

W ”
COMMONLY USED ABBREVIATIONS

AQMD Air Quality Management District

BOD Biochemical Oxygen Demand

CARB California Air Resources Board

CCTV Closed Circuit Television

CWA Clean Water Act

EIR Environmental Impact Report

EPA U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

FOG Fats, Oils, and Grease

GPD Gallons per day

MGD Million gallons per day

O&M Operations and Maintenance

OSHA Occupational Safety and Health Administration
POTW Publicly Owned Treatment Works

PPM Parts per million

RWQCB Regional Water Quality Control Board

SARI Santa Ana River Inceptor

SAWPA Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority
SBVMWD San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District
SCADA Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition system
SSMP Sanitary Sewer Management Plan

SSO Sanitary Sewer Overflow

SWRCB State Water Resources Control Board

TDS Total Dissolved Solids

TMDL Total Maximum Daily Load

TSS Total Suspended Solids

WDR Waste Discharge Requirements

YVWD Yucaipa Valley Water District

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 13, 2018 - Page 166 of 166





